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Vision Statement

We are dedicated to adding value for customers, employees, shareholders and
the community through the delivery of total quality financial services.

Mission Statement

We aim to be a global player in the financial services industry, and a leader in

the Greater China region. To achieve this, we will

— always place the interests of our customers first;

— maintain the trust of our customers through our integrity, quality and
professionalism;

— provide innovative solutions, using advanced technology, without losing
sight of our traditional values; and

— develop a culture which fosters innovation, knowledge, communication and
continuous improvement.
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For many centuries, exquisite Chinese
art pieces have been renowned for
its remarkable tradition, delicate
craftsmanship, profound creativity and
aesthetic appeal, attracting worldwide
attention, appreciation and collection.

Similarly, we are best known for our
quality service, integrity, professionalism
and innovation. Over the past 36 years,
we have earned the trust of our clients
and received numerous accolades.
Today, we are one of the leading financial
services providers in the Greater China
region, offering first-class global financial
services to our clients.
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o3 FVER

General Information

Executive Directors

CHENG Kar Shun, Henry Chairman
DOO Wai Hoi, William Deputy Chairman
WONG Shiu Hoi, Peter Managing Director

LEE Yiu Wing, William
CHAN Chi On, Derek
POON Mo Yiu, Patrick
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Non-executive Directors
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Place of Incorporation
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Registered Office
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Bermuda
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Hong Kong
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Financial Highlights
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18 months 12 months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 31 December Change
2009 2007 Increase/
20094 20074 (Decrease)
6A30H 12A31H SEHEILL
11818 A 1E1218 A B,/ (HD)
For the period end BZEHR
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FETT) 1,084,604 1,465,213 (26)
Net Profit (HK$'000) R (FHTT) 188,974 484,847 (61)
At the period end ZHE
Shareholders’ Funds (HK$'000) BRRES(FAT) 1,925,464 1,856,490 4
Total Assets (HK$'000) wEE(TAT) 8,904,160 7,771,610 15
Number of Shares in Issue BEITRHEE 706,448,228 653,949,699 8
Per share Bk
Basic Earnings Per Share (HK Cents) AR EARZF (B 27.61 78.84 (65)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (HK Cents) GHEERR AL 27.59 77.97 (65)
Dividend Per Share (HK Cents) AR B GEAL) 13 38 (66)
NAV Per Share (HK$) BREEFE(ET) 2.73 2.84 (4)
Share Price W&
- High (HK$) — &= (BT 5.44 7.33 (26)
- Low (HK$) —&EGET) 0.88 1.64 (46)
Financial ratios Bt =
Gearing Ratio BERBER
- Borrowing to Total Assets —EEHEEE 0.25 0.18 39
- Borrowing to NAV —[EERHEBEFE 1.13 0.74 53
Return on Total Assets (%) BEELIR(%) 2.12 6.24 (66)
Return on Shareholders’ Fund (%) e EAEECA) 9.81 26.12 (62)
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Corporate Structure
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review

Our Group's operations faced immense pressure during
the height of the financial tsunami which swept across the
world from September 2008 to the first half of 2009. Given
the unprecedented uncertainties in the financial markets
arising from the credit crunch, confidence plummeted and
our operations faced severe challenges during the latter
part of the financial period that covers 18 months from the
start of 2008, due to a change in our accounting year from
the year ending 31 December to the year ending 30 June
effective from 2009.

Pursuant to our second interim report covering the
12 months ended 31 December 2008, we are pleased
to present our results for the 18 months ended 30 June
2009. We achieved a net profit of HK$189 million for the
financial period, compared to HK$112.2 million for the first
12 months. Our overall business remained profitable for
the period as a whole even though it represented a sharp
setback from our record earnings made in 2007. While
earnings per share of HK27.61 cents for the financial
period were eroded moderately by investment impairment
losses, we still grew our shareholders’ fund by 3.7% to a
total of HK$1,925.5 million.

Dr. CHENG Kar Shun, Henry
Chairman

We have not only maintained our financial strength
but have also sharpened our competitiveness, taking
advantage of market participants seeking alternative
financial products and quality service they could trust.
Faced with the loss of investment confidence in the
equity market, the dwindling activity in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange resulted in an 18% drop in average daily
turnover to HK$72.1 billion in 2008, and a further 19%
decline to HK$58.2 billion in the first half of 2009. On the
other hand, the derivatives market performed strongly
during the turmoil, thanks to rising hedging needs by
investors. Our futures broking business thus helped
mitigate our earnings drop.

The total market capitalisation of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange topped HK$23 trillion in October 2007. The
steep decline in share prices coupled with the lack of
major new listings resulted in a sharply lower market
capitalisation of about HK$14 trillion at the end of June
2009. Diminishing activity was a major challenge for us,
though we reacted promptly by cutting our operating
expenses. Our staff costs were well contained as the
annualised figure for the financial period represented a
23% decline from the total for 2007.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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Chairman’s Statement

The liquidity strain in both the money and capital markets
had no material impact on us. Our financial position
remained liquid as external funding was only needed
to finance our margin financing business, which saw
subdued demand immediately after the market turned
shaky and uncertain. Our own investment exposure
was well disciplined and scaled down in time to avoid
unnecessary risk exposure. We regret that no dividend
was declared for the 12-month period ended 31 December
2008 after the first interim dividend of HK5 cents per
share was paid in November 2008, in order to preserve
our financial flexibility. Demonstrating confidence in our
business recovery, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of HK8 cents per share for the financial period,
which is expected to be payable on 15 January 2010.

Prospects

Since the trough in March, global stock markets have
started to recover robustly in the past several months, as
there have been successive economic indicators pointing
to a recovery in the global economy. It is generally
reckoned that China’'s economy has been the first to
escape the doldrums, while the US economy has already
seen the worst. Closer to us, the Hong Kong economy
has in fact fared better, with property prices holding
relatively firm compared to the previous economic crises.
Investment confidence in Hong Kong also proved resilient,
evidenced by an increase in risk appetite.

We will remain alert to possible hiccups in the economic
recovery, as it would be overly optimistic to expect a full
resurgence of economic strength in the US in a short
period of time. The country is undergoing economic
adjustments that may have a bearing on private
consumption and investment confidence. However, we
are optimistic that the low interest rate environment will
continue to shore up economic activity and sustain the

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009

buoyancy in the stock markets. Hong Kong will particularly
benefit from China’s “going out” policy and offers an ideal
marketplace for global investors interested in benefiting
from China’s dynamic economic development. | have
full confidence in the future prospects of the Group's
development.

Dr. CHENG Kar Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 October 2009



Managing Director’s Review

Review of Operations

We continue to be a full-fledged investment services
provider having established our solid business platforms in
agency broking, corporate finance and asset management,
which are the pillars of our growth. We reiterate our
emphasis on staff training and development, as manpower
represents the most important asset of our operations.
Despite business setbacks largely because of the adverse
market conditions, we have maintained our spirit and
efficiency to assure our resiliency when demand revives.

Contributions from our various business segments were
mixed during the financial period. However, it has been
our strategy to diversify our business exposure and
customer mix to achieve overall stable growth. During the
financial crisis, equity, derivatives and foreign exchange
products offered differing appeal to investors and our
comprehensive service coverage proved to be the
right strategy. With the increased sophistication of our
electronic trading platforms, we expect our strategy to

WONG Shiu Hoi, Peter
Managing Director

E——

pay off even more prominently. On market development,
our efforts on the mainland are already bearing fruit, as
revenue contribution is significant. China has been an
important source of business for our various segments.

Agency Broking

Offering a wide range of financial products in Hong Kong
and overseas, our agency broking generated revenue
of HK$712.9 million for the financial period, and a
segment profit of HK$146.6 million. This segment was
our largest earnings contributor thanks to our diversified
product offerings that suited different investors’ needs
during the financial storm. Equity broking was the most
vulnerable during the financial period, as activity from
both institutional and retail investors dropped significantly.
However, the demand for broking services for futures and
other commodities was strong. We have continued to
expand our sales force to enhance productivity, while our
retail outlets remain unchanged at 11 in Hong Kong and
one in Macau. The demand for our online trading services
is encouraging and more than half of our broking business
has been conducted online.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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Managing Director’s Review

Corporate Finance

This division contributed revenue of HK$71.8 million and
a profit of HK$12.6 million for the financial period. On the
whole, fund-raising activity was quiet in the period, though
there remained a long list of listing candidates awaiting
official approval and an improvement in market conditions.
Despite the depressed market, we still managed to
successfully sponsor one new listing in the first quarter
of 2009. Our listing assignments on hand have continued
to increase, which bodes well for our sponsorship and
underwriting income during the current financial period.
We participated in the pre-IPO stage of the fund-raising
exercises during the tough economic times.

Margin and Other Financing

There was a significant decline in our margin loan portfolio
as trading activity turned slow. Compared to the end
of 2007, our margin loans dropped 39% to HK$1,726.7
million as at the end of June 2009. The diminished loan
portfolio and a squeezed interest margin resulted in
an annualised 67% decrease in revenue to HK$176.5
million and a 71% drop in profit to HK$97.5 million. There
was minimal credit cost, as we have monitored our risk
exposure effectively and provide margin financing facilities
primarily to creditworthy clients to maximise their trading
capacity.

Other Investment Services and Activities

We kept our own investment exposure low when
uncertainty prevailed. The loss on our investment included
provisions for unrealised loss which represented a
reversal of the revaluation gains in the previous period.
Our fledging asset management and wealth management
businesses were stable as investors were generally
cautious.

Future Plans
Foreseeing increased business opportunities on the

mainland, as we believe deepening economic reforms
and market opening are ahead, we have increasingly

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009

committed our financial and human resources to our China
business development. The mainland is expected to be
a major source of earnings for our various divisions going
forward. While Hong Kong companies already enjoy the
privileges of doing business on the mainland under the
bilateral CEPA agreements, we would take advantage of
suitable opportunities to acquire or form joint ventures
with domestic entities to facilitate our market penetration.

We are confident that our established business platforms
and competent management in Hong Kong can cope with
our growth across the border. The growth of the Group
would only be handicapped by a shortage of talented
people. We believe our strength in staff training and
development gives us an edge against our competitors.
We will be maintaining a stable workforce both in Hong
Kong and the mainland. In conclusion, | would like to
thank our staff for their dedication, commitment and
loyalty during this turbulent time. | am also grateful for the
unfailing support of our shareholders and stakeholders.

WONG Shiu Hoi, Peter
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 7 October 2009
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Financial Review

Financial Performance

Revenue
Revenue of the Group for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 was HK$1,084.6 million (12 months ended 31 December
2007: HK$1,465.2 million). A summary of the revenue from different operations of the Group is set out below:

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Securities dealing and broking 532,757 49.1 724,925 49.5
Futures dealing and broking 167,419 15.4 65,619 4.5
Interest income 176,461 16.2 359,559 24.5
Corporate finance and advisory 71,789 6.7 111,315 7.6
Bullion contracts dealing 12,662 1.2 6,896 0.5
Income earned from the provision of nominee
and custodian services 22,693 21 18,430 1.3
Fund management 26,762 25 50,687 3.4
(Loss)/gain from proprietary trading (23,336) (2.2) 51,018 3.5
Income from leveraged foreign exchange trading, net 26,857 25 11,705 0.8
Commission income from the provision of financial
planning and advisory services 70,540 6.5 65,059 4.4
1,084,604 100.0 1,465,213 100.0

©25% ©6.5%
(2.2)%*
©25% ﬁ

Analysis of 2009 Revenue
(For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009)

Analysis of 2007 Revenue
(For the 12 months ended 31 December 2007)

© 0.8% ®4.4%
3.5% SN
®34% ﬂ
[0)
®13% — W

02.1%
®12% ® 0.5%
©6.79 ® 76%
6.7% ®49.5%
® 24 5%
0®16.2%
®15.4% 04.5%
@ Securities dealing and broking ® Futures dealing and broking @® Interestincome
® Corporate finance and advisory ® Bullion contracts dealing ® Income earned from the provision of
. . . nominee and custodian services
® Fund management (Loss)/gain from proprietary trading
® Income from leveraged foreign exchange ® Commission income from the provision of
trading, net financial planning and advisory services

* Negative percentage figure not shown in the chart.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009



Financial Review

Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 was HK$948.9 million (12 months ended 31
December 2007: HK$1,002.5 million). An analysis of these expenses is as follows:

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Salaries and allowances, bonuses and pension
scheme contributions 349,099 36.8 300,854 30.0
Commission to account executives 223,347 23.5 240,344 24.0
Finance cost 35,401 3.7 257,097 25.6
Depreciation 42,295 4.5 24,886 25
Other operating expenses 274,641 28.9 179,320 17.9
Loss on re-measurement of assets/liabilities
classified as held for sale 24,132 2.6 - -
948,915 100.0 1,002,501 100.0

Analysis of 2009 Expenses
(For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009)

®26% \

28.9%

036.8%

04.5%4’
03.7%4'
©235%

@ Salaries and allowances, bonuses and
pension scheme contributions

Other operating expenses

® Depreciation

® Commission to account executives

Analysis of 2007 Expenses
(For the 12 months ended 31 December 2007)

17.9% —\

025% — iy

©30.0%
025.6%

024.0%

@® Finance cost

@® Loss on re-measurement of assets/
liabilities classified as held for sale
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Financial Review

On an average monthly basis, salaries and allowances,
bonuses and pension scheme contributions actually
declined by 23%. This is mainly attributable to decrease
in incentive and bonuses paid as well as our manpower
rationalisation measures in response to the market
downturn.

Commission to account executives are generally in line
with business turnover and brokerage income.

Finance cost decreased due to fall in interest rates,
substantial decline in advances to customers and IPO
financing activities as well as bank borrowings, which are
mainly used for financing.

Increase in depreciation charge was attributable to the
capitalisation of the development cost of the new front
and back office system.

Increase in other operating expenses was mainly due
to increase in monthly rental on tenancy renewal of the
head office at New World Tower. In order to mitigate the
impact of surging rental costs, we have, in the first quarter
of 2009, relocated certain support departments to less
expensive locations.

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders for the 18 months
ended 30 June 2009 was HK$189.0 million, compared
with a net profit of HK$484.8 million for the 12 months
ended 31 December 2007.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cash flow, bank borrowings and unsecured
term loans from independent third parties. Save for a
5-year, HK$500 Million Revolving Credit Facility from a
syndicate of 19 international and local banks, the Group's
banking facilities are mainly renewable on a yearly basis
and are subject to floating interest rates.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009

It is the policy of the Group to maintain adequate liquidity
at all times to meet its obligations and commitments
as and when they fall due. The Group’s financial risk
management strategies include obtaining substantial long-
term and other standby banking facilities, diversifying the
funding sources, spacing out the maturity dates to reduce
interest volatility exposure and reviewing capital adequacy
ratio from time to time.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and
recorded in Hong Kong dollars and the level of foreign
currency exposure on non-Hong Kong dollar assets and
liabilities is relatively immaterial as compared with its total
asset value or outstanding liabilities. Hence, the Group
considers that it has no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group remained sound and
healthy during the period under review. At 30 June 2009,
the Group's cash balance totalled HK$403.8 million,
compared with HK$422.9 million as at 31 December
2007. Cash held on behalf of customers stood at
HK$3,661.9 million, increased from HK$3,361.9 million
as at 31 December 2007. The current ratio was healthy at
1.25 times.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group's gearing ratio, measured
on the basis of total borrowings as a percentage of total
shareholders’ equity, was 113%, up from 74% as at
31 December 2007. The increase in gearing ratio resulted
from the provision of financing on certain IPO issues by
the Group to its clients at the end of June in the amount
of HK$1,645 million. These IPO loans were borrowed
back-to-back from banks and were repaid in early July
following the allotment of the corresponding new issues.
If these short-term loans (i.e. around 7 days) were taken
out, the Group’s gearing ratio would have been 28%. All
borrowings are of short-term maturities. Other than the
aforementioned IPO loans of HK$1,645 million, bank and



Financial Review

other borrowings totalled HK$539.2 million (31 December
2007: HK$1,372.2 million), against total margin loans
of HK$1,726.7 million (31 December 2007: HK$2,816.3
million). The ratio of interest income to interest expense
was 6.94 times, compared with 1.84 times for the
12 months ended 31 December 2007. The marked
improvement was mainly due to decrease in interest rates
and bank borrowings.

Our operating cash flow remains adequate for financing
our recurrent working capital requirements as well as any
investment opportunities that may arise. Besides, the
Group has unutilised banking facilities of HK$2.33 billion,
while our capital commitments are minimal. The Group’s
assets and liabilities are substantially denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, so our foreign exchange exposure
is immaterial. Except for the guarantees provided to
the banks for securing normal banking facilities for our
subsidiaries, the Company has no other significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital Structure

During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the
subscription rights attaching to 1,901,830 share options
were exercised at the subscription prices ranging from
HK$0.907 per share to HK$1.2 per share, resulting in the
issue of 1,901,830 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,877,000.

40,572,800 and 23,991,899 new shares were issued by
the Company at HK$2.60542 and HK$0.968 per share
respectively for the settlement of 2007 final and 2008 first
interim dividend.

The Company made share re-purchases of a total
of 13,968,000 shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an average price from
HK$0.905 to HK$0.937 per share to enhance the net asset
value of the Company.

As at 30 June 2009, the total issued share capital of
the Company stood at HK$70.6 million, comprising
706,448,228 shares of HK$0.10 each.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of
Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

There was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Group for
the period.

Employees

The Group’'s total staff costs for the 18 months
ended 30 June 2009, excluding commissions paid to
commission-based staff, amounted to HK$349.1 million.
This represents a decrease of 23%, on an average
monthly basis, from the 12 months ended 31 December
2007. Such decline is mainly due to decreased incentives
and bonuses paid and manpower rationalisation measures
undertaken to cope with the market downturn. As at
30 June 2009, the Group employed a total of 1,016 (31
December 2007: 937) permanent staff of which 302 (31
December 2007: 245) were commission-based staff.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices within the Group. Throughout
the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the Company has
fully complied with the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).
The followings summarise how the Company has applied
the principles of the Code in its corporate governance
practices.

Corporate Governance Structure

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate
governance structure will enable the Company to better
manage its business risks and thereby ensure the
Company is run in the best interests of its shareholders
and other stakeholders. The following diagram depicted
the overall corporate governance structure of the
Company. The Board is primarily responsible for setting

directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance
and managing risks of the Group. At the same time, it is
also charged with the duty to enhance the effectiveness
of the corporate governance practices of the Group. Under
the Board, there are altogether 6 board committees,
namely Audit Committee, Business Review Committee,
Cost Rationalisation Committee, Credit Committee,
Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and
assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the
senior management.

The Board hosts regular meetings to discuss direction, strategy,
performance and control of the Group.

The Board

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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The following table shows the attendance of each individual member of the Board and the respective board committees
at the Board and the respective board committees meetings held during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

Business Cost
Name of Members of Audit Review Rationalisation Credit Executive Remuneration
the Board/the respective Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board Committees Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
The Board
Chairman
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry 6/6 nfa n/a nfa nfa nfa nfa
Deputy Chairman
Lo Lin Shing, Simon (Note 1) 0/6 nfa nfa nfa 0/6 nfa nfa
Doo Wai Hoi, William 416 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa
Managing Director
Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter 6/6 nfa 18/18 11 6/6 31/36 nfa
Executive Directors
Lee Yiu Wing, William 6/6 nfa 18/18 1 6/6 35/36 nfa
Chan Chi On, Derek 6/6 nfa n/a nfa nfa 32/36 n/a
Non-executive Directors
Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew 6/6 nfa 18/18 n nfa nfa 212
Lam Wai Hon, Patrick 6/6 nfa 18/18 1 n/a nfa 22
Ho Hau Chong, Norman (Note 1) 416 213 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa
To Hin Tsun, Gerald 5/6 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa
Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo 5/6 33 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa
Independent Non-executive Directors
Man Mo Leung 6/6 33 nfa nfa nfa nfa 22
Tsui Hing Chuen, William 6/6 33 nfa nfa nfa nfa 2/2
Lau Wai Piu, Bill 46 33 nfa nfa n/a nfa 22
Senior Management Executives
Poon Mo Yiu, Patrick (Notes 1 &2) nfa nfa nfa n 313 1414 n/a
Hui Yee, Wilson nfa nfa nfa nfa 6/6 34/36 nfa
Wu Kwok Leung, Edmond nfa nfa nfa nfa 6/6 35/36 nfa
Ying Tak Sun, Nelson nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa 34/36 nfa
Lo Wai Ho, Kendy nfa nfa nfa nfa 6/6 36/36 nfa
Lau Yiu Wai, Joseph (Note 3) nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa 30/34 nfa
Wong Yat Hang, Peter (Note 4) nfa nfa nfa nfa 2/3 1718 nfa
Chang Chow Kam Wen, Margaret (Note 5} nfa nfa nfa nfa 6/6 nfa nfa
Others
Chow Tak Wing, Derek (Note 6) nfa nfa nfa 11 nfa nfa nfa
Average Attendance : 83% 93% 100% 100% 85% 94% 100%
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Notes:

1. On 1 July 2009, Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon resigned as a
deputy chairman and an executive director as well as a
member of the Credit Committee of the Company and
Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman resigned as a non-executive
director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. On the same date, Messrs. Poon Mo Yiu, Patrick
and Cheng Chi Ming, Brian were appointed as executive
directors of the Company.

2. Mr. Poon Mo Yiu, Patrick was appointed as a member of
the Credit Committee and the Executive Committee of the
Company on 1 November 2008 and a member of the Cost
Rationalisation Committee of the Company on 3 June 2009.

3. Mr. Lau Yiu Wai, Joseph was appointed as a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company on 1 February 2008.

4. Mr. Wong Yat Hang, Peter resigned as a member of the
Credit Committee and the Executive Committee of the
Company on 1 November 2008.

5. Mrs. Chang Chow Kam Wan, Margaret resigned as a
member of the Credit Committee of the Company on
1 August 2009 and Ms. Chan Wai Man, Cilla was appointed
as a member of the Credit Committee of the Company on
1 September 2009.

6. Mr. Chow Tak Wing, Derek, the Group Financial Controller
of NWS Holdings Limited, a listed holding company of the
Group, was nominated to be appointed as a member of the
Cost Rationalisation Committee of the Company on 3 June
2009.

The Board

The Board currently comprises a total of 14 directors,
with 7 executive directors, including the Chairman, the
Deputy Chairman and the Managing Director, 4 non-
executive directors and 3 independent non-executive
directors following the resignation of Mr. Lo Lin Shing,
Simon as a deputy chairman and an executive director and
Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman as a non-executive director
as well as the appointment of Messrs. Poon Mo Yiu,
Patrick and Cheng Chi Ming, Brian as executive directors
of the Company effective from 1 July 2009. Details of the
directors and the relationship among the directors as of
the date of this report are disclosed in pages 64 to 68 of
this Annual Report.

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term of 3 years subject to the retirement and re-election
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company. One-third of
the directors of the Company are required to retire from
office by rotation and being eligible for re-election at
each annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company. Throughout the 18 months ended
30 June 2009, the Company has complied at all times with
the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive
directors and one of which should have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Pursuant to the requirement of
the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
directors of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
directors were independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules throughout the 18 months ended 30 June 2009.

Full board meeting is held no less than 4 times a year
and notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular board
meeting so as to give all directors an opportunity to
attend. Agenda and accompanying board papers for each
meeting are circulated in full to all directors normally with
at least 7 days in advance of the date of the meeting.
Senior management executives may, from time to time,
be invited to attend the board meetings for making
presentation and/or answering any queries that may be
raised by the Board.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities to prepare
accounts for each half and full financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Committee currently comprises 3 independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Messrs. Man
Mo Leung (Chairman of the Committee), Tsui Hing
Chuen, William and Lau Wai Piu, Bill and 1 non-executive
director of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo
following the resignation of Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman
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as a non-executive director of the Company effective
from 1 July 2009. The Chairman of the Committee has
the appropriate professional qualification and experience
in financial matters. The Committee will meet no less
than twice a year to review all business affairs managed
by the executive directors in particular on connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions, if any,
to review the interim and final financial statements before
their submission to the Board and the annual general
meeting for approval and to review the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management system of the
Group. The terms of reference of the Committee are
aligned with the requirements of the Listing Rules and
the recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and any updates thereof.
A copy of the terms of reference of the Committee has
been posted on the Company’s website.

During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the
Committee met on 3 occasions and discharged its
responsibilities in its review of the interim, the second
interim and annual results and the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management system of the
Group. The works performed by the Committee for the
18 months ended 30 June 2009 included reviews of the
followings:

— the consolidated financial statements for the
6 months ended 30 June 2008 and for the 12 months
ended 31 December 2008 of the Group, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

—  the directors’ report and the consolidated financial
statements for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009
of the Group, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval,

—  the new accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group;

—  the audit fees for the 18 months ended 30 June

2009 proposed by the External Auditors, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;
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— the continuing connected transactions and the
connected transactions, if any, undertaken by the
Group;

—  the internal control and risk management system of
the Group;

—  the findings and the recommendations of the Group’s
Internal Auditor on the Group's operations and of the
regulatory review carried out by the regulators;

— the compliance status of the Group with the
applicable regulatory and other legal requirements;

—  the Group’s investment policy and the adequacy of
provision made for diminution in value for the Group’s
investments;

—  the litigation cases of the Group;

—  the adequacy of the provision for bad debts; and

— the error trades occurred during the 18 months
ended 30 June 2009.

Business Review Committee

The Committee is made up of 2 executive directors and
2 non-executive directors of the Company. The Committee
meets once a month to review the performance of the
Group's business and reports to the Board regularly.

Cost Rationalisation Committee

The Committee was established on 3 June 2009 for
the purposes of, inter alias, reviewing the existing
organisational structure of the Group for promoting
more intensive and effective deployment of the Group's
resources. Members of which are appointed by the
Board. The Committee currently comprises the Managing
Director, 2 executive directors and 2 non-executive
directors of the Company together with the Group
Financial Controller of NWS Holdings Limited, a listed
holding company of the Company. The Committee is
chaired by a non-executive director of the Company. The
Committee meets at least twice a year and any members
of the Committee may request for a meeting as and when
they consider necessary.
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Credit Committee

Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board
and is currently composed of certain executive directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries. The main responsibility
of the Committee is to set direction for credit policies and
to improve asset quality of the Group. The Committee
meets quarterly and reports to the Board from time to
time. Ad-hoc meetings will be held as and when market
conditions change significantly.

Executive Committee

The Committee is currently composed of the Managing
Director, 3 executive directors of the Company and
heads of certain major business divisions of the Group.
Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board.
The Committee is duly authorised by the Board to manage
the day-to-day business of the Group on the Board's
behalf. Financial commitments under delegated power of
the Board is subject to a cap to be reviewed by the Board
from time to time. Such authorisation may be revoked
at the discretion of the Board. The Executive Committee
meets every two weeks and reports to the Board from
time to time.

Remuneration Committee

The Committee is composed of 3 independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Messrs. Tsui
Hing Chuen, William (Chairman of the Committee), Man
Mo Leung and Lau Wai Piu, Bill and 2 non-executive
directors of the Company, namely Messrs. Wong
Kwok Kin, Andrew and Lam Wai Hon, Patrick. The
responsibilities of the Committee include setting
remuneration policy of the Group and fixing remuneration
packages of the executive directors and the Board as
a whole in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Details of the remuneration
paid to the respective directors are set out in note 7 to
the financial statements. No directors of the Company
can determine their own remuneration packages. The
Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its
responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference
which has been posted on the Company's website.
The Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties. The chairman of the Committee will
report their findings and recommendations to the Board

for consideration and approval.

Executive Committee members of the Group (from left to right): Mr. Kendy Lo, Mr. Nelson Ying, Mr. Joseph Lau, Mr. Patrick Poon,
Mr. Peter Wong, Mr. William Lee, Mr. Derek Chan, Mr. Wilson Hui and Mr. Edmond Wu.
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During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the works
performed by the Committee included reviews of the
followings:

—  the proposal for salary adjustment of Messrs. Lee Yiu
Wing, William and Chan Chi On, Derek;

—  the proposal for 2009 remuneration adjustment and
2008 bonus distribution;

—  the proposal for renewal of service contracts with
each of Messrs. To Hin Tsun, Gerald and Lee Ka Sze,
Carmelo as non-executive directors and Messrs. Man
Mo Leung, Tsui Hing Chuen, William and Lau Wai
Piu, Bill as independent non-executive directors of
the Company; and

—  the service agreements in respect of the appointment
of Messrs. Poon Mo Yiu, Patrick and Cheng Chi
Ming, Brian as executive directors of the Company.

Proceedings of the Board and the Respective
Board Committees Meetings

The Company Secretary will assist the chairman of the
Board and the respective board committees in setting
agenda for meetings, and each director of the Company
is given an opportunity to include any matters to be
transacted in the agenda. Where any director of the
Company is considered to be having a conflict of interest
in any transactions, the director concerned will not be
counted in the quorum of the relevant meeting. Minutes
of meetings of the Board and the respective board
committees are recorded in details. All draft minutes
are circulated to all those present at the meetings
for comment before submission to the chairman of
the meetings for approval. To further enhance better
communication with the directors of the Company as to
the business transacted at the Board and the respective
board committees meetings, an exclusive Intranet site
is maintained to enable all directors of the Company to
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gain access to minutes of the respective meetings of the
Board and the board committees. Minutes of the Board
and the respective board committees meetings will be
posted on this exclusive site within reasonable time for
the information of all directors.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for
its directors to seek independent professional advice, in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense
in discharging their duties to the Company. In order to
safeguard the interest of individual director, the Company
has also arranged directors’ and officers' liability insurance
for its directors and subsidiaries directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a clear segregation of roles between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ"). This
segregation ensures a clear distinction between the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
CEQ’s responsibility to manage the Company and its
subsidiaries’ businesses. The duties of the Chairman
and the CEO are carried out respectively by Dr. Cheng
Kar Shun, Henry and Mr. Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter. There is
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships between the Chairman and the CEQO.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by the directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the 18 months ended 30 June 2009. Securities interests in
the Company and its associated corporations held by each
of the directors of the Company are disclosed in pages 78
to 83 of this Annual Report.
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Sub-committees

Owing to the complexity of the Group’s business, sub-
committees are formed and members of the sub-
committees are appointed by the Executive Committee
to deal with special projects, such as Cost Management
Committee, IT Steering Committee and Investment
Committee.

The following is an attendance record of the meetings
held by the various sub-committees in the 18 months
ended 30 June 2009 and their average attendance rates:

Percentage

Number of of Average

Name of Sub-committees Meetings held Attendance
Cost Management Committee 7 86%
IT Steering Committee 18 91%
Investment Committee 15 82%

All business transacted at the respective meetings are
well documented by minutes.

Internal Control and Risk Management

It is acknowledged that the Board has the ultimate
responsibility for the Group’s internal control system and,
through the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the system. To maintain a sound
system of internal control and safeguard our shareholders’
investments and the Company’s assets at all times, the
Company has an independent and objective internal audit
team which reviews and monitors all critical aspects of the
Group’s activities and its internal controls.

The Group has maintained a set of up-to-date operation
manuals with ISO certification on its major operations.
Periodic assessments are conducted every year to ensure
that we are complying with the standards. As regards the
code of conduct of licensed persons, a set of compliance
policies has been published and updated from time to
time to provide guidance on matters such as employee
dealings, ethics code, Chinese wall policy and etc. On a

regular basis, audit and compliance surveillance checks on
procedures of the Group’s core operations are conducted.

The Group also adopts very stringent risk management
policies and monitoring systems to contain exposure
associated with credit, liquidity, market and IT systems in
all its major operations.

Credit Risk

The Credit Committee has appointed a group of authorised
persons who are charged with the responsibility of
approving credit limit for individual customers. The
Committee is responsible for approval of individual
stocks acceptable for margin lending at a specified
ratio. The approved stock list is updated bi-monthly, and
will be revised as and when deemed necessary by the
Committee. The Committee will prescribe from time to
time lending limits on individual stocks or on an individual
customer and his or her associates.

The Credit Control Department is responsible for
monitoring and making margin calls to customers whose
trades exceed their respective limits. Any such excess is
required to be made good within 2 days for securities and
the next day for futures from the date of the deficiency
report. The deficiency report will be monitored daily by the
Group's finance director and responsible officers. Failure
to meet margin calls will result in the liquidation of the
customer’s positions.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various
statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed by the
authorities. The Group has put in place monitoring system
to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund
its business commitments and to comply with the relevant
Financial Resources Rules.

As a safeguard, the Group has maintained very substantial
long-term and other stand-by banking facilities to meet
any contingency in its operations. Even in periods of
high market volatility, the management believes the
Group's working capital is adequate to meet its financial
obligations.
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Market Risk

If the advanceable value of a margin customer’s portfolio
falls below his margin loan and the customer fails to meet
margin calls, the Group will be exposed to the defaulter’s
liabilities. When stock prices come down, these may
affect the value of the Group’'s proprietary trading
portfolio. Any loss incurred will be charged direct to the
Group’s profit and loss account. The Group's exposure
to underwriting commitments will also be affected if the
prices of the underlying stocks come down.

The Group has adopted an investment policy to cap its
proprietary trading, exposed underwriting commitments
and position limits for forex and bullion transactions as
follows:—

(i)~ For proprietary trading
—  total investment exposure of both short-term
and long-term investments should not exceed
25% of the Group’'s NAV and the maximum
exposure limit for short-term investment is
capped at HK$120,000,000.00.

(i) For exposed underwriting commitments
— underwriting limit per issue should not exceed
25% of the "Adjusted NAV" of Taifook
Securities Company Limited (“TFSC"),
being NAV of TFSC plus the total amount of
subordinated loans granted by the Group from
time to time.

(i) Position limits for forex and bullion transactions

Risk Exposure Limit Forex  Bullion Total
Net Position Us$eM  US$14M  US$20M
Intraday Open Position US$10M  US$20M  US$30M
Ovemight Open Position US$am  US$7M  US$10M
Monthly Trading Loss Limit US$150K  US$350K  US$500K

Such policy may be varied at the discretion of the Board.
Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor availability and
performance of various IT systems with equipments
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housed in a tier 1 data centre provided by a renowned
outsourcing data center provider. A vigilance team will act
and report to the senior management in accordance with
laid-down procedures in the event of disruption, instability
and other situations which may warrant to trigger
contingency procedure to protect interests of clients.

Taking into account of the changing regulatory
environment, the Group has maintained and constantly
updated its operation manuals of its major operations.
We have also put in place competent compliance, internal
audit and quality assurance teams with their respective
aims at carrying out checks on statutory compliance and
Company’s rules and regulations; detecting systemic risks
and recommending policy changes; and implementing
ongoing checks and verification of satisfaction rate of
Company’s prescribed service pledge and standards.

Insurable Risk

Other than the abovementioned stringent risk
management policies and monitoring systems, the Group
has taken up a wide variety of insurance policies to cover
its insurable risks associated with its Hong Kong, Macau
and PRC businesses.

Internal Auditors

The Company has an independent internal audit team,
which plays a major role in monitoring the corporate
governance of the Group and providing objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated by the management. The head
of the internal audit team directly reports to the Board
and the Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting
a risk-based approach to evaluate risk level on control
environment, the internal audit team plans internal audit
schedules annually in consultation with, but independent
of, the management, and the audit plan is submitted to
the Audit Committee for approval. On a yearly basis, the
head of the internal audit team will present a report and
express an opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal
control environment of the Group. The annual audit work
plan covers major activities and processes of the Group's
operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be
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performed on specific areas of concern identified by the
Audit Committee and the management.

External Auditors

During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, Ernst
& Young resigned as auditors of the Group and
PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed by the directors
to fill the casual vacancy so arising. During the period/year,
the Group has engaged the External Auditors to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged
are set out as follows:

Fee charged
for 18 months for the year
ended ended
30 June 31 December
Type of Services 2009 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Audit fee for the Group 4,955 2,550
Taxation services 593 225

Corporate Communication

The Company encourages two way communications
with both its institutional and private investors. Extensive
information about the Company's activities is provided
in its Annual Report and Interim Report, which are sent
to shareholders of the Company. Press conferences are
held on results announcement to explain the Company's
activities, performance and future plans and to enable
better understanding of the Group by the public. The
annual general meeting provides a forum for direct
communication between the Board and the Company's
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each separate issue and voting of which are
taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. Any results
of the poll are published on the Company's website. All
corporate communication with shareholders will be posted
on the Company’s website for shareholders’ information.

Besides, the Company arranges media luncheons, invites
media to attend corporate events, maintains regular
communication with them via interviews and article
contribution covering diverse topics and uses its corporate
website to disseminate its press releases, financial and
other information relating to the Group and its business to
the public in order to foster effective communication.

(*) taifookxia

FAEN

2008 / 02 Final Results Annoustement
EEN_EFLEEARESELS

Taifook management hosting the 2008/2009 Final Results Press
Conference.

Corporate Citizenship

The Group is committed to playing a full role as a
responsible market practitioner in the securities industry. It
endorses its senior executives in accepting public offices
of various regulatory advisory boards and/or associations
of the industry. Through their participation, the Group aims
at fostering and promoting the healthy development of the
securities and futures industry of Hong Kong.

The Group holding its inaugural "“Taifook Institutional Investor
Conference”.
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As one of Hong Kong's leading financial institutions, the
Group actively takes part in various community services
and makes contributions to the community. The Group
strives to promote a caring culture and help staff enhance
communications and cohesiveness. In order to foster a
caring environment, the “Taifook Caring Ambassadors”
was formed in 2004, and has organised a variety of
community service activities, which staff have actively
participated in. During the 18 months ended 30 June
2009, members of the Taifook Caring Ambassadors and
our colleagues took part in caring visits, fund raising
charity programmes, blood donation, youth exchange
programme and others.

Apart from the above, our colleagues also participated in
activities organised by major charities, such as Community
Chest, Helping Hand, Hong Kong Red Cross, Oxfam Hong
Kong, ORBIS Hong Kong, the Salvation Army Hong Kong
& Macau Command, U-Hearts, the Youth Entrepreneurs
Development Council, Yan Oi Tong, Christian Action,
Friends of the Earth (HK), Medecins Sans Frontieres,
Hong Kong Children & Youth Services, Hok Yau Club
and UNICEF. We hope our staff will further develop
their potential and sense of social responsibility through
participation in these community activities.

Taifook management and staff at the Community Chest'’s
Corporate Challenge.

In respect of environmental protection, the Group formed

an Environmental Committee focusing on developing
environmental friendly measures to conserve resources,
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minimise waste and promote energy efficiency in our
business operation. Leveraging on its IT capability, the
Group strongly promotes its e-statement and other
paperless e-communication services among its clients and
associates so as to make the world a greener place to live
in.

The Group is keen to promote environmental protection such as
CD recylcing.

In addition, our board members and senior management
staff have also been invited to be speakers in various
seminars organised in Hong Kong or the mainland on
topics which cover listing issues, corporate financing,
corporate governance, global investment knowledge and
wealth management.
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Corporate Highlights

Through taking a proactive approach in pursuing diversified
business development opportunities in the 18-month
period ended 30 June 2009, the Group saw stable growth
in both its business scope and market reach despite the
impact of the financial tsunami that took its toll on the
global markets.

Market and Business Development

Apart from brokerage services, the Group has expanded
its corporate finance, asset management and wealth
management businesses. This strategic implementation
is in alignment with the Group’s strategy to become a
leading one-stop provider of investment services.

Corporate Finance

Taifook specialises in the provision of corporate finance
and financial advisory services to private organisations
and listed companies in Hong Kong and China. During
the period, the Group completed an IPO sponsorship
assignment, 11 IPO underwriting deals, 4 securities
placements, 4 rights issues underwriting and over 70
advisory assignments. The Group is currently the retained
compliance adviser of b listed issuers.

The capital markets in Hong Kong were full of challenges
during the period. The number of listed IPOs dropped
significantly in terms of both number and size while
there was a corresponding decrease in overall corporate
financing activities. Built on its strong presence and
reputable professional services in the local and China
markets, the Group was able to sustain its market share.

The Group specialises in the provision of corporate finance and
financial advisory services.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009

Asset Management

The Group provides comprehensive fund management
service to individual and institutional clients in Hong Kong
and overseas. Locally, the Group is a home-grown non-
bank financial service company that has acquired approved
Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) service provider status.
It offers a diversified range of MPF products to its
members, ranging from global equity funds to funds that
invest in the Asia Pacific region and Hong Kong. It also
establishes public unit trust funds for local retail investors
in Hong Kong.

Given the rising appetite of overseas professional
investors in Hong Kong and China markets, the Group has
set up private offshore investment funds to facilitate client
investments into China in a professional manner.

The Group also provides dedicated discretionary portfolio
management services to high net worth and institutional
clients in Hong Kong, encompassing client risk-return
analysis, investment portfolio recommendation and
management, and regular investment reporting.

Lipper Fund Awards Hong Kong 2009
WELCOME THE VI

The Group expands fund management and investment advisory
services.

Brokerage Services

Taifook provides innovative and flexible securities trading
and investment services to hundreds of institutional
and corporate clients as well as over 120,000 individual
investors in Hong Kong and China. Service offerings
include securities and derivatives, futures and options,
funds, bonds, forex and bullion, IPO and placing, online
trading, margin financing, wealth management, nominee
and custodian services as well as research.
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The Group's branch network in Hong Kong and Macau.

Taifook always embraces technological innovation, and
has made substantial investment of over HK$100 million
as early as 2000 to build the online trading platform that
today offers customers speed, convenience and flexibility.
Seeing the growing popularity of online trading services,
the Group has taken a proactive approach in developing
and upgrading its online platform. As part of our one-
stop investment solutions, the Group launched Taifook
Mobile Trading and enhanced 24-hour online overseas
futures trading services at the beginning of 2009, enabling
the clients to perform trading of a greater diversity of
global investment products across key markets any time,
anywhere.

Looking ahead, the Group expects to launch successively
an online US stock trading service and enhanced online
forex and bullion trading platforms. This innovation gives
the Group an unrivalled competitive advantage, providing
additional enabling tools for clients to make informed
decisions in today’s dynamic markets.

Taifook is the pioneer when it comes to new product
launches. Several hundred financial products across
different markets and brands are supported by the Group’s
platform. Globalisation, combined with an increasingly
sophisticated and fast-moving business environment, has
resulted in clients’ increasing awareness of, and interest
in, products from other markets; therefore, one aspect of

the Group's strategy has been to team up with securities
firms in Taiwan, Japan and Korea in order to add additional
overseas products in a move to offer a one-stop-shop
service. In return, their clients can access the Group's
service offerings at the same time.

Guarded by this strategic vision, the Group launched a
Japanese online platform during the period to provide
Japanese clients with research reports and news updates,
and produced both Japanese and Korean corporate videos
to introduce its corporate background and key businesses.
The Group will continue to allocate more resources in
providing investor education programme to different
markets.

During the period, the Group opened its Kwun Tong
Branch in Kowloon East and relocated its Sham Shui
Po Branch. The branches, which were equipped with
advanced trading facilities and manned by professional
investment consultants and service staff, aimed to create
a welcoming and relaxing environment for clients to
trade. The Group will continue to expand its territory-
wide presence in future in order to maintain its leadership
position.

In appreciation of the continued support from its clients,
the Group established Taifook Wealth Club in May 2009
to bring them extra benefits. All Taifook clients have been
automatically become prestigious members of Taifook
Wealth Club and can enjoy exclusive benefits such as
free investment seminars, monthly e-newsletters, latest
promotions, comprehensive online information and
regular gatherings. Looking forward, Taifook will add more
services and organise more activities for its members,
with its long-standing commitment to “Customer-First
Culture”.

Wealth Management

During the period, the Group continued to expand its
financial planning and portfolio advisory services under
two entities: Taifook Lexton Wealth Management Limited
and Taifook Lexton Consultants Limited. Both entities
continued to expand their sales team and new providers
of financial products to their clients. To further strengthen
the Group's competitiveness in the market, a new web-
based e-service system, backed by a sophisticated
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) programme,

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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was developed and installed for consultants and clients.
This greatly enhances the service quality and the efficiency
in managing clients’ portfolios.

Taifook Lexton also developed a new training manual to
enable heads of different sales teams to provide training
to new investment consultants in a more systematic and
efficient manner. Marketing and promotion efforts were
stepped up to enhance brand visibility and explore more
business opportunities. The Group is well positioned
for further development and business expansion in the
market in future.

Wealth Management business will become a significant
contributor of revenue to the Group in future.

Mainland Market

The PRC market is a key focus of the Group's business
strategy. Through the initiation of and active participation
in seminars, forums and exhibitions in Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Chengdu, Xiamen, Hangzhou,
Chongging, Dongguan, Kunming, Shenyang, Tianjin,
Wouhan, Nanning, Dalian, Fuzhou, Shantou and Suzhou, the
Group has begun the process of building brand recognition
and presence.

Leveraging on the progressive financial market reforms
introduced by the Chinese government, such as the
implementation of QFIl and QDII, gradual rollout of stock
futures index, margin financing and short selling, together
with the strong flow of listings in Hong Kong from many
mainland enterprises, the Group is well positioned to
benefit from the enormous opportunities in China.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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The Group's investment consultancy centres in China.

Research

Taifook Research Limited is the Group's wholly-owned
subsidiary dedicated to the provision of independent
equity research services. Research reports are produced
independently to help investors and clients make informed
investment decisions. Investors may also access these
research reports by visiting the Group's website, or by
subscription to other external information providers’
services.

In April 2009, Taifook Research was ranked one of the top
ten brokers in Hong Kong in stock recommendations in
"StarMine Brokers Ranking 2009” by Thomson Reuters
and South China Morning Post, in the categories of “HK
Mid and Small Caps” and “Hang Seng China Enterprises
Index Stocks"”. Being the only local securities firm to have
achieved such top rankings in these two categories, the
Group's superior stock analysis and picking capability
among foreign peers has been affirmed.

The Group provides investors with professional and comprehensive
investment research reports on a regular basis.
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Corporate Development

Implementation of Balanced Scorecard

The four dimensions of Taifook's Scorecard — finance,
customers, internal business processes, and learning and
growth — provide quantifiable Key Performance Indicators
across financial and non-financial perspectives, and align
the Group's vision and mission more fully with customers’
needs to achieve the requisite balance between strategy
and operations. Given the Group's sound foundation
for Balanced Scorecard usage, Taifook's management
continued to fine-tune existing management strategies
and sharpen the Group's competitive edge.

During the period, the Group continued its Balanced
Scorecard implementation as a performance management
tool to enhance transparency and corporate governance.
Implementation of Balanced Scorecard at corporate level
has been completed, while its deployment at department
level throughout the organisation is expected to be ready
by the end of 2009.

*) taifook?'tﬁ
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The four perspectives of a full Scorecard — finance, customers,
internal business processes, and learning and growth.

Human Capital Management

Staff Learning and Development

The Group has always regarded human resources as being
its most valuable asset, and believes sound human capital
management enhances staff productivity and loyalty,
which will ultimately translate into business growth and
customer satisfaction. To this end, the Group consistently
provides staff with ample training opportunities in the

fields of management skills development, customer
service, product knowledge, industry trends and language
proficiency, via various workshops and seminars.

To strengthen the cooperation and teamwork among
departments, during the period the Group organised 14
inter- and intra-department team building and business
workshops, in which staff were provided the opportunity
to exchange their views and best practices.

The Group provides staff with ample training opportunities.

In order to encourage high calibre staff to engage in
sustainable career development and acquire professional
knowledge through different job duties, the Group
introduced a Job Rotation Programme in June 2009,
in which participating staff were given the opportunity
to work in different departments to enhance their job
exposure and collaborate with different colleagues.

The Group also encourages and supports staff in their
pursuit of continuous learning through the provision
of training sponsorship, study allowance, study leave,
examination reimbursement and examination leave.
These measures are geared towards upgrading staff’s
professional standards and assisting them in their career
development.

In light of the development of China market, the Group
has also provided training to PRC staff in the areas of
corporate information, performance management system,
team building, etc.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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Professional Standards

103 training sessions with 56 topics were organised
and coordinated to fulfil the Continuous Professional
Training (CPT) requirements for SFC licensed persons;
and Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
requirements for CIB's Technical Representatives and
MPF Intermediaries. At management level, 5 modules of
Management Development Programme were organised
for selected managers and directors.

An outdoor training session of the Group's Management
Development Programme.

In 2008, the Group achieved 107.2% for managerial staff
of the targeted 30 hours and 215% for non-managerial
staff of the targeted 40 hours training per head per annum
respectively. During the period from January to June
2009, the Group achieved 56.4% against annual target for
managerial staff and 74.3% for non-managerial staff.

As a result of the Group’s efforts in upholding the high
standard of its accounting and finance professionals,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) awarded the Group ACCA Approved Employer
status; while the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) named the Group as Authorised
Employer.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Over the course of 36 years since the Group was
established, corporate social responsibility has become

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009

embedded in Taifook’s culture. The Group has committed
considerable resources toward professional development,
nurturing talents, promoting environmental protection and
raising service standards in the financial services industry
to international levels.

Professional Development and Industry Exchange
Board members and senior management actively
participate in various working committees of local
regulatory bodies and are frequently invited by various
public organisations, professional bodies, trade
associations, financial institutions and the media to give
speeches in seminars and forums across Hong Kong
and China. A diverse range of topics has been covered,
including listing issues and corporate financing, corporate
governance, global investment knowledge and wealth
management.

In a bid to promote the exchange of best practices among
regional industry practitioners, the Group sponsored
the “Asia Securities Forum” organised by Hong Kong
Securities Association (formerly called Hong Kong
Stockbrokers Association), which was held in Hong
Kong in September 2008 carrying the theme “The Asia
Era — Challenges and Opportunities for Asia Pacific
after Subprime”. Delegates from all around Asia such
as Mainland China, Singapore, South Korea, Russia and
Middle East gathered to exchange ideas.

Additionally, in April 2009, the Group held its inaugural
"Taifook Institutional Investor Conference” and brought
together around 50 fund managers, including QDII,
across Asia Pacific and senior management of 14 listed
companies from Hong Kong and Singapore, to exchange
innovative ideas and share winning strategies.

On the CSR front, the Group sponsored the "CUMBA
CSR Conference” in May 2008, which aimed to create
awareness on the latest CSR issues corporations and non-
governmental organisations were facing, and how they
were implementing and integrating CSR efforts into their
corporate culture.
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Investor Education

Despite market volatility, protecting clients’ assets is
Taifook's top priority, and flourishing client relationship
is the Group's motto. Based on this vision, Taifook takes
a proactive “multi-market, multi-channel and multi-level
approach” in investor education. The Group has been
teaming up with other market practitioners and country
teams to organise investment seminars, workshops
and discussion forums to enhance the awareness and
knowledge of general investors, professionals at various
international and local institutions and most importantly its
staff.

Taifook research team regularly produces independent
market reports as well as ideas-driven company and
sector reports to help investors and clients make informed
investment decisions. In addition, Taifook takes the lead to
introduce on its corporate website, www.taifook.com, an
array of online simulators for equities, futures, forex and
bullion that offer valuable investment experience to clients
and novice investors alike.

The Group proactively promotes investor education.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to keep up and
enhance its effort in investor education to ensure that
Taifook clients fully understand the products and services
and their involved risks before making their investment,
and to do its utmost to meet their investment needs in
the most professional manner.

Employee-Friendly Policies

As a family-friendly organisation, the Group always cares
about the psychological and physical well-being of all
staff and encourages them to achieve work-life balance.
With this objective in mind, the Group has introduced
measures including 5-day working week, flexible work

time and 3-day paid paternity leave for male staff. During
the period, Taifook Staff Club also regularly organised
social and recreational activities for staff and their families’
participation. These initiatives have brought benefits to
staff such as stress reduction, more opportunity for self-
development, as well as more time for families without
impairing operational efficiency.

To enhance internal communication, company-wide staff
communication meetings were held twice a year to foster
direct dialogue between management and staff on various
issues of concern.

Social and Community Services

During the period, the volunteer team “Taifook Caring
Ambassadors” and fellow colleagues of the Group
organised and participated in a variety of community
services that benefited many charitable organisations,
including fund-raising events such as Corporate Challenge
and Dress Special Day organised by the Community
Chest; Blood Donation Day co-organised by the Group
and Hong Kong Red Cross; Helping Hand's Cookie
Campaign; Oxfam Hong Kong's Oxfam Rice Selling; Heifer
International Hong Kong's Race to Feed; The Salvation
Army Hong Kong and Macau Command’s HK & Macau
O! Day; ORBIS Hong Kong's ORBIS Pin Day in support of
World Sight Day; U-Hearts’ Youth Exchange Programme
in Guangxi; Kick off Poverty — Homeless World Cup co-
organised by Society for Community Organisation and
Wofoo Social Enterprises. Most importantly, the Group
and its staff collectively made donations to Hong Kong
Red Cross and Red Cross Society of China during the
period, in support of their relief work in the Sichuan
Earthquake and Mainland Snow Storm.

Taifook Caring Ambassadors organise or participate in various
community and charity activities.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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Environmental Protection

With respect to environmental protection, the Group
leveraged its IT capability by promoting its e-statement
and other paperless e-communication services among its
clients and associates so as to make the world a greener
place to live in.

To build a green office, the Group took proactive steps in
energy saving, including the removal of lamps for over-lit
areas, installation of timers to save standby power loss for
idle office equipment, and encouraging staff to implement
energy saving practices. A saving of over 20% of the
annual electricity consumption was achieved.

The Group also organised and supported a host of
environmental protection activities, including The Salvation
Army and Friends of the Earth (HK)'s CD Recycling
Programme; Friends of the Earth (HK)'s Recycling of Moon
Cake Boxes; and Christian Action’s Second-Hand Books
Charity Sale to raise staff's environmental awareness.

L) tafook:AiE

The Group is keen to promote environmental protection among
staff and clients.

Education

On the educational front, the Group sponsored the
“Student Awards Plan” organised by HKIVE of the
Vocational Training Council for students demonstrating
outstanding performance in financial subjects. In addition,
the Group participated in the Young Entrepreneurs
Development Council’'s School-Company Partnership,
providing coaching workshops to students. To promote
financial education at university level, the Group sponsored
an MBA Programme scholarship named “Taifook
Securities Group Scholarship in Financial Services"” at

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009

PolyU’s Graduate School of Business during the period,
together with an undergraduate scholarship at CUHK's
Faculty of Business Administration in August 2009.

During the period, the Group sponsored ACCA Job
Hunting Competition in Hong Kong and Guangzhou,
as well as the Joint University Business Management
Challenge co-organised by several universities in Hong
Kong. The goal of these events was to enhance language
proficiency, presentation skills and interpersonal skills
of tertiary students in Hong Kong and China. As part
of its dedicated efforts in providing investor education
to the public, the Group organised the “Mini H-Shares
Index Futures Simulation Game"” and “21CN & Taifook —
HK Warrants and CBBCs Simulation Game" along with
investment seminars targeting investors and students
alike in Hong Kong and China.

Through committed involvement in community services,
Taifook staff demonstrated their care for those in need,
and enhanced their communication and bonding in the
process.

In recognition of Taifook's active participation in and
support of social and community service, the Group has
been publicly acknowledged as a “Caring Company”
by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for five
consecutive years; while the respected local business
magazine Prime Magazine presented the “Prime Award
for CSR” to the Group again in its “Prime Awards for
Corporate Social Responsibility”.

The Group receiving the “Prime Award for CSR".
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The Group has won numerous accolades over the past
36 years in recognition of its outstanding achievements in
innovation and service excellence. During the period, the
Group was awarded “Best Equity House in Hong Kong”
by the international finance magazine Asiamoney for the
fourth year and FinanceAsia for the sixth year respectively.
In January 2008, the Group was bestowed the “Hong Kong
Top Service Brand” by the Hong Kong Brand Development
Council and the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong.

. s
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The Group receiving the “Best Equity House in Hong Kong 2008
Award from FinanceAsia.
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Over the years, the comprehensive and quality financial
services delivered by Taifook have been widely recognised
by the industry. As early as 1999, Taifook was the first
financial institution in Hong Kong and China to acquire ISO
9002 Quality Management System Certification, which has
been upgraded to ISO 9001:2008 Certification in 2009.

In August 2009, the Group received the “Qutstanding
Achievement Award for Best Investor Education” in the
inaugural “"Best Practice Financial Services Awards”
jointly organised by international professional institutions
Benchmark Magazine and Best Practice Management, in
recognition of its outstanding achievements in providing
comprehensive and quality investor education at all levels
in the region.

The Group winning the “Outstanding Achievement Award for
Best Investor Education”

With regard to environmental protection, the Group
was also awarded the “Class of Good” Wastewi$e
Label and the “Class of Good" Energywi$e Label of
the “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence”
organised by the Environmental Campaign Committee
and the Environmental Protection Department during the
period. These labels are a further proof of the Group's
commitment to waste reduction and energy saving efforts
and concern for our environment.

The Group is renowned for its outstanding achievements
in information technology application. During the period, iT
Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Limited, the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, received the CMMI Maturity Level 3
Certification for its excellence in software development.

While online trading services have gained in popularity,
there remain concerns regarding the safety and reliability of
online trading, particularly on issues such as hacker attacks
on various websites and the safety of personal information.
As such, the Group has committed considerable resources
to strengthen risk management in information technology.
Today, the Group is one of the few financial institutions
to have attained the ISO 27001:2005 Information Security
Management System Certification in Hong Kong and
China. This standard in information security management
system assures our customers that the Group complies
with international best practices in the area.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. CHENG Kar Shun, Henry GBs, aged 62, joined the Group in November 1976 and was appointed as the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company on 14 May 1996. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Dr. Cheng is the managing director of New World Development Company Limited, the chairman and managing
director of New World China Land Limited and the chairman of New World Department Store China Limited, NWS
Holdings Limited and International Entertainment Corporation. He also acts as an independent non-executive director
of HKR International Limited and a non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited. Dr. Cheng was
the chairman of New World Mobile Holdings Limited up to his resignation on 1 February 2007. The shares of all these
companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, Dr. Cheng is the managing director of
New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited, a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, Centennial Success Limited and
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited. Dr. Cheng is the chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong Kong
Foundation and a standing committee member of the Eleventh Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
The People’s Republic of China. In 2001, he was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Dr. Cheng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William who is the Deputy Chairman
of the Company and the father of Mr. Cheng Chi Ming, Brian who is an Executive Director of the Company.

DOO Wai Hoi, William Jp, aged 65, joined the Group in June 1986, left in July 1988 and rejoined in May 1996. Mr. Doo
was appointed as the Deputy Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company on 14 May 1996. He is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Doo holds a Degree of Bachelor of Science from the University of Toronto, Canada,
a Master Degree of Science from the University of California, U.S.A. and a Diploma of Graduate Gemologist from the
Gemologist Institute of America. Mr. Doo is currently the vice chairman of New World China Land Limited and the
deputy chairman of NWS Holdings Limited. He is also an executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
and an independent non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. Mr. Doo was an executive director of New
World Mobile Holdings Limited from 6 July 2004 to 1 February 2007. The shares of all these companies are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, Mr. Doo is a director of New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited
and Fung Seng Diamond Company Limited. Mr. Doo is a member of the Standing Committee of the Eleventh Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in Shanghai and the Convener of the Shanghai Committee in Hong Kong
and Macau. He has served as the Governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong since 1995. He was
appointed as the “Justice of Peace” by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2004. In
June 2005, he was appointed by the Kingdom of Morocco as the Honorary Consul General in Hong Kong. Mr. Doo is the
brother-in-law of Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry who is the Chairman of the Company and the uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi Ming,
Brian who is an Executive Director of the Company.

WONG Shiu Hoi, Peter, aged 68, joined the Group in November 1987 and was appointed as the Managing Director and
an Executive Director of the Company on 14 May 1996. Mr. Wong is the Chief Executive of the Company as well as a
member of the Business Review Committee, the Cost Rationalisation Committee, the Credit Committee, the Executive
Committee, the Investment Committee and the IT Steering Committee of the Company. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and a responsible officer of Taifook Securities Company Limited and Taifook Capital
Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the University of East Asia, Macau (currently known as the “University of Macau"). He possesses over 30 years
of experience in the financial services industry. Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive director of High Fashion
International Limited and Theme International Holdings Limited. He was also an independent non-executive director of
Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited from 19 January 2000 to 25 July 2007. The shares of all these companies are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Wong is the immediate past chairman and council member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors as well as a director of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009



Board of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continued)

LEE Yiu Wing, William, aged 49, first joined the Group in 1988 and subsequently rejoined in 1997 after his departure
in 1995. Mr. Lee was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 29 June 2000. He is the Deputy Chief
Executive and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company as well as a member of the Business Review Committee,
the Cost Rationalisation Committee, the Credit Committee, the Executive Committee, the Investment Committee and
the IT Steering Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Lee is the managing director of Taifook Securities Company
Limited and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee is also a responsible officer of Taifook Securities
Company Limited, Taifook Futures Limited, Taifook Investment Services Limited and Taifook Lexton Consultants Limited
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is responsible for the management of all operations divisions as well
as business development on brokerage sector. Mr. Lee holds a BA Degree in Economics and Management from the
University of Guelph, Canada. He possesses over 20 years of experience in the financial services industry. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of Hong Kong Securities Association. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the Hong
Kong Securities Institute, the Chamber of Listed Companies and the Cash Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

CHAN Chi On, Derek, aged 46, joined the Group in 1996 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 29 June 2000. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Chan is a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company, the managing director of Taifook Capital Limited and a responsible officer of
Taifook Capital Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Chan is in charge of the corporate finance
division. Mr. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology as well as a Social Sciences Degree in Economics from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan published a
book on the subject of listing procedures and securities rules and regulations. He possesses over 20 years of experience
in the financial services industry. Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive director of GST Holdings Limited and GZI
Real Estate Investment Trust. The shares of both companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

POON Mo Yiu, Patrick, aged 45, joined the Group in August 2008 and was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 1 July 2009. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, a member of the Cost Management
Committee, the Cost Rationalisation Committee, the Credit Committee, the Executive Committee, the Investment
Committee and the IT Steering Committee as well as a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Poon
holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of both
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. Mr. Poon has extensive experience in financial
management, management information systems, accounting projects as well as various aspects of mergers and
acquisitions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Poon worked for Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited as the Group Chief Operating
Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer. He was also previously the Vice President in Finance of JPMorgan Chase
Bank and the Group Financial Controller of Jardine Fleming Group in Asia before its merger with JPMorgan Chase Bank.
Mr. Poon was an executive director of The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited from 28 September 2006 to
3 July 2007. The shares of this company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continued)

CHENG Chi Ming, Brian, aged 26, joined the Group in June 2009 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 July 2009. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of
Science Degree from Babson College in Massachusetts, U.S.A. He is an executive director of NWS Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of NWS Holdings Limited. He is mainly responsible for overseeing the infrastructure business and the
merger and acquisition affairs of NWS Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. In addition, Mr. Cheng is a director of Sino-
French Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited, Sino-French Energy Development Company Limited, The Macao Water Supply
Company Limited as well as a director of a number of companies in Mainland China. Mr. Cheng had previously been
working as a research analyst in the Infrastructure and Conglomerates sector for CLSA Asia-Pacific Markets. Mr. Cheng
is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry who is the Chairman of the Company and the nephew of Mr. Doo Wai Hoi,
William who is the Deputy Chairman of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

WONG Kwok Kin, Andrew, aged 63, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 29 September
2000. He is also the Chairman of the Cost Rationalisation Committee, a member of the Business Review Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong posseses over 25 years of experience in hotel and project
management, as well as finance and human resources administration. Mr. Wong is presently an executive director of
NWS Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He had been an
executive director of Renaissance Hotel Group N.V., a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, from 1995
to 1997. Mr. Wong is also an executive director of Sky Connection Limited and a director of New World First Holdings
Limited and New World Telephone Holdings Limited. In addition, Mr. Wong has been an executive director of several
subsidiaries and affiliated companies of the New World Group, which provide duty-free liqguor and tobacco concession,
communication services as well as estate management in both Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Wong had been an
executive director of New World Hotels (International) Limited. He had also worked in Price Waterhouse and Bowater
Group of Companies (UK) before.

LAM Wai Hon, Patrick, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 February 2002.
He is also a member of the Business Review Committee, the Cost Rationalisation Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam is a Chartered Accountant by training and holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of Edinburgh and a Bachelor Degree from the University of Essex, the
United Kingdom. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Lam is presently Assistant General Manager of New World Development Company Limited. He is also an executive
director of NWS Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Wai Kee Holdings Limited. In addition, Mr. Lam was
a non-executive director of Build King Holdings Limited from 11 May 2006 to 24 October 2008. The shares of all these
companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lam is also a director of Guangdong Baolihua
New Energy Stock Co., Ltd. (a listed company in the PRC) and an executive director of Hong Kong Convention and
Exhibition Centre (Management) Limited. Prior to joining the New World Group, Mr. Lam worked for an international
accounting firm.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Directors (continued)

TO Hin Tsun, Gerald, aged 60, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 14 May 1996. Mr. To
has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1975. He is also qualified as a solicitor in the United Kingdom, as
well as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore. He is currently the senior partner of Messrs. T. S. Tong & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries. Mr. To is an executive director of International Entertainment Corporation and a non-executive director
of Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited and NWS Holdings Limited. He was also an executive director of New World
Mobile Holdings Limited from 28 March 2000 to 1 February 2007. The shares of all these companies are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

LEE Ka Sze, Carmelo, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 November 2007.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee received a Bachelor of Laws Degree and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong. He is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England
and Wales, Singapore and Australian Capital Territory and has been a partner of Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo since 1989.
Mr. Lee is a deputy chairman of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee is also an
adjudicator of the Registration of Persons Tribunal, a chairman of the Transport Tribunal of the Hong Kong Government
and a member of the Disciplinary Panel of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a member
of the Main Board Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2000 to 2003. Mr. Lee is a
non-executive director of Y.T. Realty Group Limited, The Cross-Harbour (Holdings) Limited, China Pharmaceutical Group
Limited, Hopewell Holdings Limited, Safety Godown Limited, Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited and
Yugang International Limited, and an independent non-executive director of KWG Property Holding Limited and Ping An
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.. The shares of all these companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

MAN Mo Leung, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2004. He is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Man
holds a Bachelor of Science Degree from the University College London. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales as well as a Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Man has been a partner of Moores Rowland Mazars, Chartered Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants since 1985 with extensive experience in assurance, business advisory and investigation
works. Since the reorganisation in June 2007, he has been the executive chairman of Mazars CPA Limited. Mr. Man
was an independent non-executive director of Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as First Sign
International Holdings Limited) from 1 June 2004 to 11 July 2008. He was also an independent non-executive director
of RBI Holdings Limited from 7 November 1995 to 3 July 2007. The shares of both companies are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

TSUI Hing Chuen, William Jp, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 July 2004. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tsui is the founder partner of Messrs. Lo, Wong & Tsui, Solicitors & Notaries since 1980. He has been a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1977, a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England & Wales since 1980 as
well as a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Victoria, Australia since 1983. He has also been an advocate and
solicitor of the Supreme Court of Republic of Singapore since 1985 and a notary public appointed by the Archbishop of
Canterbury, England since 1988. Mr. Tsui was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Government of Hong Kong in
1997. Mr. Tsui is currently an independent non-executive director of International Entertainment Corporation, Mongolia
Energy Corporation Limited and New World Mobile Holdings Limited. The shares of all these companies are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

LAU Wai Piu, Bill, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 December
2006. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau
possesses over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting and financial management. Mr. Lau is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lau is an independent non-executive director of International Entertainment Corporation, Mongolia Energy
Corporation Limited and New World Mobile Holdings Limited. The shares of all these companies are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Senior Management

HUI Yee, Wilson, aged 50, is the Director of Sales and Marketing for the Group, an Executive Director of Taifook
Securities Company Limited and the Managing Director of Taifook Futures Limited. Mr. Hui is responsible for the
development and management of the Group's retail brokerage business. He is a responsible officer of Taifook Securities
Company Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Hui holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics and
Management Studies from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui joined the Group in 1995 after 14 years of experience
in the banking and securities industries. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong
Kong Securities Institute.

WU Kwok Leung, Edmond, aged 55, is the Operations Director of the Group and an Executive Director of Taifook
Securities Company Limited. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of East
Asia, Macau (currently known as “the University of Macau”) and a Diploma of Management for Executive Development
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more than 25 years of experience in the field of banking and finance.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Wu held senior position with various financial institutions. He was formerly Vice-President
of First Pacific Bank Limited, Commmercial Banking Group and Chief Operations Manager of The Sanwa Bank Limited. He is
currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

YING Tak Sun, Nelson, aged 41, is the Chief Information Officer and Head of On-line Services of the Group. Mr. Ying
is responsible for developing the Group's strategic roadmap to enhance the Group's information technology capabilities
and responsiveness to business needs, as well as promoting and practising information technology governance.
Mr. Ying holds a Bachelor of Computer Science from Boston College in the United States of America. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Ying has over 16 years of experience in financial and technology management consulting, and
software development spanning several Wall Street financial institutions and global consulting firms.

LO Wai Ho, Kendy, aged 46, is the Finance Director of the Group. Mr. Lo is responsible for accounting, settlement, and
financial management. Mr. Lo holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from Columbia Southern University in
U.S.A. and a Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over 20 years'
experience in the securities and futures industry. Prior to joining the Group in April 2004, Mr. Lo has held senior positions
in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

LAU Yiu Wai, Joseph, aged 49, is the Managing Director of Taifook Asset Management Limited. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in 2000 and is responsible for the Group's asset management business, including management of investment
portfolios, business development and product development. He holds a Bachelor's Degree and a Master's Degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lau worked at Jardine Fleming Investment
Management between 1996 and 1999 and Schroders Investment Management from 1991 to 1996. Mr. Lau is currently
licensed with the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong for engaging in advising on securities, advising on
futures contracts and asset management. He has been a Chartered Financial Analyst since 1995.

LAU Chi Keung, Sammy, aged 49, is the Director of Internal Audit and Special Projects of the Group. Mr. Lau holds
a Master of Applied Finance Degree from the University of Western Sydney. He has over 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. Mr. Lau is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

LI Tung Wing, Mike, aged 42, is the Company Secretary and Compliance Director of the Group. Mr. Li is responsible
for the company secretarial and compliance functions of the Group. Mr. Li holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from Heriot-Watt University in the United Kingdom. He has over 15 years of experience in the company
secretarial and compliance fields. Mr. Li is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries as well as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the 18 months
ended 30 June 2009.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
comprise securities, futures and options contracts broking and trading, the provision of margin and other financing,
the provision of corporate advisory, placing and underwriting services, bullion contracts dealing and trading, leveraged
foreign exchange trading, the provision of nominee and custodian services, fund management and the provision of
financial planning and advisory services. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 107 to 223.

The directors have resolved to recommend a final dividend for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 in scrip form
equivalent to HK8 cents per share with a cash option to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 1 December 2009. Together with the first interim dividend of HK5 cents per share paid on
28 November 2008, the total distributions per share for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 will thus be HK13 cents per
share.

Subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting listing of and permission
to deal in the new shares, each shareholder will be allotted fully paid shares having an aggregate market value equal
to the total amount which such shareholder could elect to receive in cash and they will be given the option to elect to
receive payment in cash of HK8 cents per share instead of the allotment of shares. Full details of the final scrip dividend
will be set out in a circular to be sent to shareholders together with a form of election for cash on or about Thursday,
10 December 2009.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 24 November 2009 to Tuesday, 1 December
2009, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 November 2009.
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Report of the Board of Directors

Summary financial information

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the 18 months ended
30 June 2009 and the previous 10 financial periods/years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 224 of this Annual Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Charitable contributions

During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the Group made charitable contributions totalling HK$491,000.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
Distributable reserves

At 30 June 2009, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$65,019,000, of which HK$56,516,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009. In addition, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$894,677,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Fixed assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Company and the Group during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, together with the
reasons therefor, are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to its existing shareholders.
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Report of the Board of Directors

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company

During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the Company repurchased certain of its shares on the Stock Exchange and
these shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company. Further details of these transactions are set out in note 30
to the financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 other than as an agent for clients of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

Major customers and suppliers

In the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 under review, the revenue attributable to the 5 largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
5 largest customers.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details
of the Group's suppliers.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 were:

Executive directors
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry
Lo Lin Shing, Simon
Doo Wai Hoi, William
Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter
Lee Yiu Wing, William
Chan Chi On, Derek

Non-executive directors
Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew
Lam Wai Hon, Patrick

Ho Hau Chong, Norman
To Hin Tsun, Gerald

Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo
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Report of the Board of Directors

Independent non-executive directors
Man Mo Leung

Tsui Hing Chuen, William

Lau Wai Piu, Bill

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 1 July 2009, Messrs. Lo Lin Shing, Simon and Ho Hau Chong, Norman
resigned as an executive director and a non-executive director of the Company respectively and Messrs. Poon Mo Yiu,
Patrick and Cheng Chi Ming, Brian were appointed as executive directors of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry, Messrs. Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter, Lee Yiu Wing,
William, Chan Chi On, Derek, Poon Mo Yiu, Patrick, Cheng Chi Ming, Brian and To Hin Tsun, Gerald will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company within 1 year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group are set out on pages 64
to 69 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is for a duration that may exceed
3 years or which requires the Company to, in order to terminate such contract, give a notice period of more than 1 year
or pay compensation or make other payments equivalent to more than 1 year’'s emoluments.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009.
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Report of the Board of Directors

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures

As at 30 June 2009, the interests and short positions of the directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(a) The Company

Approximate

Number of percentage

underlying of the

Number of shares held shares held Company's

Personal Family Corporate under equity total issued

Name of directors Class of shares interests interests interests derivatives Total share capital

Doo Wai Hoi, William Ordinary shares - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.71

(Note 1)

Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter Ordinary shares/ 15,550,000 - - 2,073,242 17,623,242 249
share options (Note 2) (Note 3)

Lee Yiu Wing, William Share options - - - 1,554,931 1,554,931 0.2
(Note 4)

Chan Chi On, Derek Ordinary shares/ 864,421 - - 1,554,931 2,419,352 0.34
share options (Note 2) (Note 5
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Report of the Board of Directors

(b) The associated corporations of the Company

Approximate
percentage
of the
associated
corporation's
Number of shares/ Number of total issued
amount of registered capital/ underlying share capital/
Name of Class of amount of debentures held shares held registered
associated shares/ Personal Family Corporate  under equity capital/
Name of directors corporations debentures interests interests interests derivatives Total debentures
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry - NWS Holdings Limited Ordinary shares/ 9,179,199 - 8,000,000 3,001,277 20,180,476 097
share options Note 2) Note 6) (Note 7)
Mega Choice Holdings Ordinary shares - - 3,710 - 3,710 3461
Limited (Note 6)
New World China Land Ordinary shares/ 12,500,000 1,950,000 52,271,200 3,600,000 70,321,200 183
Limited share options Note 2 Note8) Note 6) (Note 9)
New World Department -~ Share options - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.06
Store China Limited (Note 10)
New World Development  Ordinary shares/ - 300,000 - 36,710,662 37,010,652 0.96
Company Limited share options Note8) (Note 11)
Lo Lin Shing, Simon Taifook Finance Non-voting - - 47,670,000 - 47,670,000 4734
Company Limited deferred shares (Note 12)
Doo Wai Hoi, William  NWS Holdings Limited Ordinary shares/ 2,006,566 - 9,130,000 2,000,851 13137417 063
share options Note 2) Note 1) Note 13)
New World China Land Ordinary shares/ 8,750,000 - 69,010,000 18,833,300 96,593,300 252
Limited share options/ Note 2) (Note 1) (Notes 14&15)
convertible bonds
of New World
China Land
Finance Limited
New World China Land Convertible RMB10,000,000 RMB36,000,000 RMB87,700,000 - RMB133,700,000 5.24
Finance Limited bonds Note 2 Note 16) (Note 1)
New World Development  Ordinary shares - - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 003
Company Limited (Note 1)
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Approximate
percentage
of the
associated
corporation's
Number of shares/ Number of total issued
amount of registered capital/ underlying share capital/
Name of Class of amount of debentures held shares held registered
associated shares/ Personal Family Corporate  under equity capital/
Name of directors corporations debentures interests interests interests derivatives Total debentures
Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter -~ New World China Land Convertible bonds - - - 130,017 130,017 0.00
Limited of New World (Note 17)
China Land
Finance Limited
New World China Land Convertible RIMB1,000,000 - - - RMB1,000,000 0.04
Finance Limited bonds (Note 2
Lee YiuWing, Wiliam  New World China Land Convertible bonds - - - 130,017 130,017 0.00
Limited of New World (Note 18)
China Land
Finance Limited
New World China Land Convertiole bonds ~ RMB1,000,000 - - - RMB1,000,000 0.04
Finance Limited (Note 2
Wang Kwok Kin, Andrew  NWS Holdings Limited Ordinary shares/ 1,400,000 - - 1,600,638 2,900,638 0.14
share options Note 2) (Note 19)
New World China Land Convertible bonds - - - 3,380,447 3,380,447 0.09
Limited of New World (Note 20)
China Land
Finance Limited
New World China Land Convertible RMB26,000,000 - - - RMB26,000,000 102
Finance Limited bonds (Note 2
New World Development  Ordinary shares 150,000 50,000 - - 200,000 001
Company Limited Note 2) Note 21)
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Approximate
percentage
of the
associated
corporation’s
Number of shares/ Number of total issued
amount of registered capital/ underlying share capital/
Name of Class of amount of debentures held shares held registered
associated shares/ Personal Family Corporate  under equity capital/
Name of directors corporations debentures interests interests interests derivatives Total debentures
Lam Wai Hon, Patrick WS Holdings Limited Ordinary shares/ 991,191 - 5072 1,500,638 2,496,901 0.12
share options Note 2) Note 22) Note 23)
New World China Land Ordinary shares 180,000 - - - 180,000 0.00
Limited (Note 2)
To Hin Tsun, Gerald NWS Holdings Limited Share options - - - 300,127 300,127 0.01
(Note 24)
Notes:

1. These shares/convertible bonds are held by a company/companies wholly-owned by Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William.
2. These shares/convertible bonds are held by the relevant director as beneficial owner.

3. These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Mr. Wong under the 2002 share option scheme of the Company. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$5.875 per share during the period from
1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016.

4.  These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Lee Yiu Wing, William upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Mr. Lee under the 2002 share option scheme of the Company. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$5.875 per share during the period from
1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016.

5. These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek upon the exercise in full of the share options granted
to Mr. Chan under the 2002 share option scheme of the Company. These share options, all of which remained exercisable
as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$5.875 per share during the period from 1 June 2008 to
31 May 2016.

6.  These shares are held by a company/companies wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry.

7. These shares would be allotted and issued to Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Dr. Cheng under the share option scheme of NWS Holdings Limited. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$16.193 per share during the period from

21 August 2008 to 20 August 2012.

8.  These shares are held by the spouse of Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Dr. Cheng under the share option scheme of New World China Land Limited. These share options, all of which
remained exercisable as at 30 June 2009. Among these shares options, 2,000,000 share options were exercisable at the
subscription price of HK$6.972 per share during the period from 8 February 2008 to 7 February 2011 and 1,600,000 share
options were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$1.5 per share during the period from 30 January 2009 to 29 January
2013.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Dr. Cheng under the share option scheme of New World Department Store China Limited. These share options,
all of which remained exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$8.66 per share during
the period from 27 November 2008 to 26 November 2013.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Dr. Cheng under the share option scheme of New World Development Company Limited. These share options,
all of which remained exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$17.654 per share
during the period from 19 March 2007 to 18 March 2012.

These shares are held by a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Mr. Doo under the share option scheme of NWS Holdings Limited. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$16.193 per share during the period from
21 August 2008 to 20 August 2012.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William upon the exercise in full of the share options granted
to Mr. Doo under the share option scheme of New World China Land Limited. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 30 June 2009. Among these share options, 800,000 share options were exercisable at the subscription
price of HK$6.972 per share during the period from 8 February 2008 to 7 February 2011 and 650,000 share options were
exercisable at the subscription price of HK$1.5 per share during the period from 30 January 2009 to 29 January 2013.

These shares would be allotted and issued to the following parties in the respective amounts upon the conversion in full of
their respective holdings of convertible bonds of New World China Land Finance Limited. These convertible bonds, all of
which remained convertible into shares of New World China Land Limited as at 30 June 2009, were convertible during the
period from 26 June 2007 to 26 May 2012.

- 1,300,172 shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William upon the conversion in full of
RMB10,000,000 convertible bonds of New World China Land Finance Limited held by him;

- a total of 11,402,509 shares would be allotted and issued to companies wholly-owned by Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William
upon the conversion in full of a total of RMB87,700,000 convertible bonds of New World China Land Finance Limited
held by such companies;

- 4,680,619 shares would be allotted and issued to a company wholly-owned by the spouse of Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William
upon the conversion in full of RMB36,000,000 convertible bonds of New World China Land Finance Limited held by
Mrs. Doo.

These convertible bonds are held by a company wholly-owned by the spouse of Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter upon the conversion in full of RMB1,000,000
convertible bonds of New World China Land Finance Limited held by Mr. Wong. These convertible bonds, all of which
remained convertible into shares of New World China Land Limited as at 30 June 2009, were convertible during the period
from 26 June 2007 to 26 May 2012.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Lee Yiu Wing, William upon the conversion in full of RMB1,000,000
convertible bonds of New World China Land Finance Limited held by Mr. Lee. These convertible bonds, all of which
remained convertible into shares of New World China Land Limited as at 30 June 2009, were convertible during the period
from 26 June 2007 to 26 May 2012.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Mr. Wong under the share option scheme of NWS Holdings Limited. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$16.193 per share during the period from
271 August 2008 to 20 August 2012.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew upon the conversion in full of RMB26,000,000
convertible bonds of New World China Land Finance Limited held by Mr. Wong. These convertible bonds, all of which
remained convertible into shares of New World China Land Limited as at 30 June 2009, were convertible during the period
from 26 June 2007 to 26 May 2012.

These shares are held by the spouse of Mr. Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew.
These shares are held by a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Wai Hon, Patrick.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. Lam Wai Hon, Patrick upon the exercise in full of the share options
granted to Mr. Lam under the share option scheme of NWS Holdings Limited. These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$16.193 per share during the period from
21 August 2008 to 20 August 2012.

These shares would be allotted and issued to Mr. To Hin Tsun, Gerald upon the exercise in full of the share options granted
to Mr. To under the share option scheme of NWS Holdings Limited. These share options, all of which remained exercisable as
at 30 June 2009, were exercisable at the subscription price of HK$16.193 per share during the period from 21 August 2008
to 20 August 2012.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its

associated corporations.

In addition to the above, a director has a non-beneficial personal equity interest in a subsidiary/subsidiaries held for the

benefit of the Group solely for the purpose of complying with the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, none of the directors or their associates had registered any other interests

or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above and “Share option schemes” below, at no time during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Share option schemes

On 23 August 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share
Option Scheme”). A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with
the Listing Rules, is set out as follows:

Purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme

To attract, retain and motivate talented employees to strive towards long term performance targets set by the Company
and its subsidiaries and at the same time to allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained through
their effort and contribution.

Participants of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
Any full time employees, executive and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates.

Total number of shares available for issue under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and percentage of the
Company'’s issued share capital as at the date of this report

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2002 Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
but the Company may seek approval of its shareholders at general meetings to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit, save
that the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted by directors of the Company under the
2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the Company at general meetings where
such limit is refreshed. Options previously granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised options) will not be counted for
the purpose of calculating such 10% limit as refreshed. Notwithstanding the aforesaid in this paragraph, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such
higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under the 2002 Share Option Scheme was
33,523,747 shares, which represented approximately 4.75% of the issued share capital of the Company at that day.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of the Company’s shares in issue.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at the date on which such grant is
proposed by the directors or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
on which such grant is proposed by the directors) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance at a general meeting of the Company.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an option and the minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and such period shall commence not
earlier than 6 months from the date of the grant of the options and expire not later than 10 years after the date of grant
of the options.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made or loans for such purposes must be paid

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares.
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The remaining life of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the date on which
it is conditionally adopted by resolution of the Company at general meetings and will expire on 22 August 2012.

Details of the movement of share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the 18 months ended 30 June
2009 were as follows:

Number of share options Price of Company's shares***
Atimmediately ~ At immediately
At Granted Adjusted Exercised Lapsed At Date of Exercise Exercise price  preceding the  preceding the
Name or category 1 January during during during during 30 June grant of period of ofshare  grant date of exercise date of
of participants 2008 the period the period the period the period 2009 shareoptions*  share options options** share options  share options

HKS pershare  HKS pershare  HKS per share

Directors
Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter 2,000,000 - 73242 - - 2,073,242 1December 2007 1June 2008- 5875 569 NA
Note 1) 31 May 2016 [Note 1)
Lee Yiu Wing, William 1,500,000 - 54,931 - - 1,554,931 1 December 2007 1June 2008- 5875 569 NA
Note 1) 31 May 2016 (Note 1)
Chan Chi On, Derek 1,500,000 - 54,931 - - 1554931 1 December2007 1 June 2008- 5875 569 N/A
Note 1) 31 May 2016 [Note 1)
5,000,000 - 183,104 - - 5,183,104
Continuous contract
employees
n aggregate 650,000 - 10985 (350,000) (310,985) - 5 September 2003 5 March 2004 - 1158 116 364
Note 2) Note 4) 4 March 2009 Note 2
In aggregate 1,550,000 - 1830 (1,551,830) = - 10February 2006 10 August 2006 - 0.907 0.94 N
Note 3) 9 August 2014 Note 3)
In aggregate 23,700,000 - 817,119 - 3,007,235) 21,509,884 1December 2007 1June 2008- 5875 569 NA
Note 1) Note 5) 31 May 2016 Note 1)
25,900,000 - 829,934 (1,901,830) (3318220 21,509,884
30,900,000 - 1,013,038 (1,901,830) (33182200 26,692,988
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* %

* %%

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the commencement of the exercise period. All share
options referred to above are subject to a 6-month vesting period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company's share capital.

The price of the Company's shares disclosed at immediately preceding the grant date of the share options is the Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the share options. The price of the Company's shares
disclosed at immediately preceding the exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing
prices over all the exercises of share options within the disclosure category.

Notes:

(1

(5)

The Company declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 in scrip form (with a cash option) on 17 March 2008
and an interim dividend for the 6 months ended 30 June 2008 in scrip form (with a cash option) on 11 September 2008, which
gave rise to adjustments to the number of unexercised share options and the exercise price. The exercise price per share of the
share options was adjusted from HK$6.09 to HK$5.961 on 17 July 2008, and further to HK$5.875 on 28 November 2008.

The Company declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 in scrip form (with a cash option) on 17 March 2008
and an interim dividend for the 6 months ended 30 June 2008 in scrip form (with a cash option) on 11 September 2008, which
gave rise to adjustments to the number of unexercised share options and the exercise price. The exercise price per share of the
share options was adjusted from HK$1.2 to HK$1.175 on 17 July 2008, and further to HK$1.158 on 28 November 2008.

The Company declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 in scrip form (with a cash option) on 17 March 2008
and an interim dividend for the 6 months ended 30 June 2008 in scrip form (with a cash option) on 11 September 2008, which
gave rise to adjustments to the number of unexercised share options and the exercise price. The exercise price per share of the
share options was adjusted from HK$0.94 to HK$0.92 on 17 July 2008, and further to HK$0.907 on 28 November 2008.

These share options lapsed during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 as a result of expiry.

These share options lapsed during the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 as a result of staff resignation.
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares

As at 30 June 2009, the interests and short positions of those persons (other than the directors of the Company) in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Number of Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares held the Company’s
Number of shares held under equity total issued
Name of substantial shareholders and nature of interests derivatives Total share capital
Direct Deemed
Cheng Yu Tung Family - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
(Holdings) Limited (“CYTF")
Centennial Success Limited (“CSL") - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
("CTFE")
New World Development Company - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
Limited (“NWD")
NWS Holdings Limited (“NWS") - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
NWS Service Management Limited - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands)
(“NWSSM (Cayman)”)
NWS Service Management Limited - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)
("NWSSM (BVI)")
NWS Financial Management 437,034,720 - - 437,034,720 61.86

Services Limited (“NWSFM")

Note: CYTF held a 51% interest in CSL, which in turn held the entire issued share capital of CTFE. CTFE and its subsidiaries held an
interest of approximately 38.61% in NWD, which in turn and its subsidiaries held approximately 57% of the issued share capital
of NWS. NWS, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, NWSSM (Cayman), held the entire issued share capital of NWSSM (BVI),
which in turn held the entire issued share capital of NWSFM. By virtue of the provisions of the SFO, each of CYTF, CSL, CTFE,
NWD, NWS, NWSSM (Cayman) and NWSSM (BVI) is deemed to be interested in the shares in which NWSFM is interested.
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All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section headed "“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ interests in competing businesses

As at 30 June 2009, the following director is considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, as set out

below:

Entities Description of businesses

whose businesses of the entities

are considered which are considered

to compete or likely to compete or likely
to compete with the to compete with the  Nature of interest of the
Name of director businesses of the Group  businesses of the Group director in the entities
Lam Wai Hon, Patrick Certain subsidiaries of Provision of corporate Director of East Asia
East Asia Secretaries advisory services, Secretaries (BVI) Limited
(BVI) Limited nominee and custodian and certain of its
services subsidiaries

As the board of directors of the Company is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies and
the above director does not control the board of the Company, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, none of the board of directors of the Company and their associates
had any interests in an entity whose business competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Company'’s business.

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

The connected transactions/continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group are included in the transactions
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
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The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions in note 35 to the financial
statements and have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the directors engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain agreed-upon procedures on the continuing connected transactions mentioned in note 35 to the financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-
Upon Procedures Relating Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has reported to the directors that (i) the transactions have been approved by the board of directors of
the Company; (i) the pricing of the transactions, on a sample basis, are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company; (iii) the transactions, on a sample basis, have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) the amounts of the transactions have not exceeded the relevant caps.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25%
of the Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Corporate governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
19 to 28 of this Annual Report.

Auditors

During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the Group and
PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed by the directors to fill the casual vacancy so arising. The financial statements
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board

Dr. CHENG Kar Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 October 2009
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FARBEERAEESREREZ BEHN N FRETOZTIHE »

EE2RBEH

i B S AR R R AR A FET Y S B BB 2 RIS A 1) - RARFBR T 1M £ BASRIHBEN M EBe 2 5
B AR IR A 2 RIFA L -

EEREANT iR

HE2009476 A30H 1L 18E AR « EFBERNALTHEEMINELNFTLHARE > LHBEAZ (FAA 0T EEHIBHEEAE
K o

EERRG - HEARDRES 2 RERKXE

M20094E6 A30H « AR TRMES S 1501 ([ B4 RAE 50 ) F362E AT FE 2 BRBAR - JRB ETANEBETE

HR 52T A(MREST R DAARR R FAEL 2 Hitb 2T - EERARFREEMEBER (E& BRSSP HRMIEXVER)
2Bty Bk REFPEE 2R IORRMT

(a) A&AQF

BERA N

fTETR BRITRA

FERBEE FEEZ “agr

BEERE REAER BARER RikER ARERE  HERGHE ay BHEAL

=k L@k = - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.71

(HzE1)

vl L@k B 15,550,000 = = 2,073,242 17,623,242 2.49
(BzE2) (RzE3)

TR FERRE = = = 1,554,931 1,554,931 0.22
(GED)

BEZ L@k B 864,421 - - 1,554,931 2,419,352 034
(BzE2) (GED)
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(b) A2 TZIHEE

iyl
BEIRALY/
BERAFEIA imEx/
FERAYE/FRERSE/ BLE k2 52
ESf?  EBERR kit /&5 85 BARR FikER ARRE ABRAEA g BB
954 FEEEEARAA LEk /e 9,179,199 = 8,000,000 3,001,277 20,180,476 097
(i) (Ft6) ()
VEEBERAT Lk = = 3710 = 3710 3461
(t6)
it RAEDE LEk /e 12,500,000 1,950,000 52,271,200 3,600,000 70,321,200 183
BRAR (izt) (Bists) (ki) (Bsto)
FtREERE ke = = = 1,000,000 1,000,000 006
BRAF (Kzt0)
it RERARAA LElk/EkE = 300,000 = 36,710,652 37,010,652 09
(Hzte) (BtzE11)
By, ARHBERAR ERTRELRD = = 47,670,000 = 47,670,000 4734
(Hst12)
HEE  FEREEARLT LElk/EikE 2,006,566 = 9,130,000 2,000,851 13,137,417 063
(W) (1) (Hz13)
FERPELE LiEhk/Bike/ 8,750,000 = 69,010,000 18,833,300 96,593,300 25
BRAF New World () (1) (14R15)
China Land
Finance Limited
MakES
New World ChinaLand RS AE%10000000  ARE36,000000  AEH67,700000% — AE#133,700,0007 524
Finance Limited (Hzk2) (zt16) (Hisk1)
it RERARAA Lk = = 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 003
(1)
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fiEE
BRIRASE/
RERAHTEIA e/
fraRfge/#REres/ B5eE Bz 52
ESfe ERiEER it/ B8R EAES Rk PG 3 RBRAEA ay L EER
45 FtRERE New World China Land = = = 130,017 130,017 0.00
BRAA Finance Limited (B7)
HAERES
New World ChinaLand "1k (5% AR1,000,0007 = = - AR#%1,0000007 0.04
Finance Limited (H&2)
TEE  WtRREnE New World China Land = = = 130,017 130,017 000
BRAF Finance Limited (it19)
MIakES
NewWorld ChinaLand ~~ Wiikfe% AR1,000,0007 - - - AR™%1,0000007 0.04
Finance Limited (Hfzk2)
EHZ  HMEREEERLA LR/ B 1,400,000 = = 1,500,638 2,900,638 0.14
(Hik2) (Htz19)
itk el E New World China Land - - - 3,380,447 3,380,447 0.09
BRAA Finance Limited (Kizt20)
HAERES
NewWorld ChinaLand ~~ WiikfE% AR26,000,0007 - - — AR#26,000,0007 1.02
Finance Limited (H&2)
FtRERERAA Lk 150,000 50,000 - - 200,000 0.01
(Kik2) (HE21)
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FRROEE/HREreE/ BeE fiER B4z

BEfit WBELE kit /&5 85 BARR Rk AR HERAEA g BRESR

WEE  HEREEARAA Lk /EikE 991,191 = 5072 1,500,638 2,496,901 0.12
(i) (Hi2) (H23)

it RPEE Lak 180,000 = = = 180,000 0.00

BRAA (i)

HER FEREEERAA FiE = = = 300,127 300,127 001

(Hfz24)

-

ZERD, TTREES AN BELERERE L R SRARMEE -

ZERD, THARES R ERESUARRERASNITEE o

ZERAD BB A B 20025 B AR 8 T M S AR I Se AR B VB AR R BT TR R 1) B S AR O 38 I B8 AT « % S RBARME (23002009576 A30H
/R FIT18) AT 1200846 A 1 H 2201645 431 BIRREE T RAN5.875/8 T T1E ©

ZERRMD ASIBIEAND 712002 F B ARIERT B T M R ST A IR ) B IR R B TR IR S AR Al B R BT - X SRR (2 5074200946 A30H
&8 17#) "] F120084E6 A1 H ZE201645 431 B IZREE SN G6.876/8 T1T1E °

ZERAD R BN A 20025 B AR AT ) T [RIFR S 20 58 AR 3 HH VBB AR M R BT TR AR 1) BR o AR BT 38 I B8 7T « % S RBARME (23002009576 A30H
/R FI4T18) A 1200846 A 1 H 2201645 431 BIRREE T RAN5.875/E T T1E

ZERBABRABL2ERE L —K/ SRAFHE

ZERM BIRFEAIEEE AR R 7 B ARAERT 1T 10 8 R AL 9% 0 A B AR AR AR B T 18 (M B0 19 - i 38 e B89T o R F R ARAE (2 20220094
6 A30B13AR1T1E) 7] FA2008F 8 A21 HZ2012F8 A20 HIZREE B TN 16.1937E TLITIE ©

ZERMTIRBRAE L 2 EEBATES -
ZERMEIREF T R R E SR A R BT 8 T mE R AT T E A B AR RS TG M EE LA 5 R BT - X EHEIRE R IR 2009
F6A30E AR 1T + EA2,000,00017 8 A% # 7] (1200842 A8 A 2201142 A7 HIZR B E SR (H6.972/8 7L1T1E + M1,600,00017 8 A% # A

AIF2009% 1 A30H £2013% 1 A29 Bz R B E B (ND1 578 LITfE ©

ZERMEBIEF TR EEPEBRA AIERET T R ERAE IR OB RS TE A MBS T A5 T - S SRERE (2572009
F6 3083 A R 1T{E) Al 12008411 827 A £20134 11 26 A IZ R BB TN 8.66/8 L1 T1E °

RERM BIREI RERAR D A FEARAERT ST 10 80 R AL IR 0 A B R AR AR BT 18 (M S0 18 1 i 38 e B8T o R F R ARAE (2207220094
6 A30B 13 AR1T1E) A] FA2007F3 A19H £2012F 3 A 18 AIZRE B FAA) 17.65478 TLITIE ©

ZERDTIRBERTELERAZARAFAE

ZERM BIREF AR EE AR R F BRI T AL RIS o A R DM BB ST R Mt S A Al 8 R BT - R EREARE (220720094
6 A308{3AR1T1F) a] FA20084F 8 A21 HZE 20128 A20 HIZREE(E TN 16.193/E TLITIE ©
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14, ZERGBIREHHT R P BEESR QR BEAEN S T Rt Bs AR B REERIITE R MM AR 3 R 3T - X SHERE 2 5712009
F6A30B AR TTE - EH800,00017 8K HER] 200842 A8H £2011F2 A7 BIZABEEFIALD6.97278 7T171E » M650,00017 § A% # 7] &
200941 A30HZ2013F1 829 HIZRBEFAAMD 1. 58T/ TE ©

15.  ZERMERAT ARSI TES B MEABNew World China Land Finance Limited®) a] 32 A8 {E 514 [A1:% 5 A B3 N 3817 © s S Al iR(E 5
(2 EBH2009%F 6 A 30 B AT EE A 7 t 52 A Bl 3th 22 A R A RV AR 5 ) RT3 20074F6 A 26 H 2201245 A 26 A #AfE T LA # -

— 1,300,172 # A B 1S S A R B TE A5 A HINew World China Land Finance Limited AR #10,000,0007T H) A] # A% (& 5514 A H A 3%
REEAT

—  &H#11,402,509R G R RISEEREREE 2 Z KD AIBBITEFH A B New World China Land Finance Limited & # A R #
87,700,0007CH) AT HAAR (B 518 MiZ 5 A FIBC B ] 3577
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HEMEREHEAR AR RET -

—
o
e

ZER BB ES AL RIS RB2ERE ZARMRE

17.  EERMD SRR AR EITE A ®INew World China Land Finance Limited A R#1,000,0007T# AI # % (& 514 (A1 8 L A RO B L 349T © 3%
LARRES (23042009476 A30 8 Al & At AP Bl EGR A RIAIARD ) AT 2007496 26 A 201245 A 26 B B T LA#S4 -

18.  ZERM G TR L ERETITEATE A HNew World China Land Finance Limited A% 1,000,000 08 A # A E S B A1 2 o £ B B8 2 39T © 7%
L[ ESH (2200946 A30 H Al 1% At R Bt A B BR A B A% 1)) A (52007476 A 26 H 22012475 A 26 H BifE] 7 LAsS34 -

19. ZERMNBREFAZEEERARNBERENTESTREE R EREOBREERSITER NS A ERERET - ZSHERE (2 HM2009F
6 A30B 1 AR1T1#) 7] H20084E8 A21 H ZE20124F8 A20 BIZREEE SR 16,193 TLITIE ©

20.  ZERM B EEER L ARSI TENEBHNew World China Land Finance Limited A FR#26,000,0007T H) 0] A% (& 5514 A 5 S A Br 2% ] 3577 »
ZE R ESH (27200996 A30 H Al iR A%t R Bl E B R A B AIAR 1)) A (52007476 A 26 H 2201245 A 26 H Bff] T bASi4 -

21, ZRERMTEERERAL ZEBHMFEE
22, REROIEMERELEZERE ZARMHE
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24. ZERGERBEHAIZEE AR A AIBERESEI T AR L AR HOBRIEERRITER A AR RETT - X EREAE (2R 2009F
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WA _EFIVER 2 PRAE eI RER AR B R B AR AE 2 B AR D 2 37 &

B bES  —REERAEERMBRRTHEHEATREA 2BEAER - DANTEREATKEHE ZREMIFA -

B ESCRTHREEE SN - 70200956 A30R » AR RIRIEEZ MR FHIFEI2EREA T FEZ BMAE - RERETRIRAARE R
B2 PR 2 B 2 MBS - EFURF2MBEALTUBERD R REAEAEER (ER RES RS KOIZEXVED) 2 - B H K
BERTREEMEmERSAR -

EEREROSES ZER

B EX[EERI  BRERD RER 2 e MoRR AT R T BB PrREESN - IREE200956 A30 B 11818 A EA K -

PEEAEFIREFESH ZRBH8EN T2 THERAIREE AR R Z RO HESMESN 2N - Mk FIMEITREM LSRR
ARABREAEMM B AR RSP B BRI NEREME AR R ESZERER -

RERSEEERAT » 4 2008/2009



fBRRERT &

2002498 A23H » ANA T REAL R — BRI E) ([ 20025 BAERT 2 ]) - 2002 B EA S 2 T 2GR 2BMERE LHHRAIZ
HERBOAT

2002F BB ETE 2B K
SEIBMARS B NEBEERZETUNERARTRENBARSIEZRERFEIZ  RANEL2EERFAOEREASRRREBNE
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2002 F R AETEISEA L
AARKEEMHBRARRBHL AT ZEMRBET RITEERIENTES -

RIE2002F BIRET BT HRTZROBHRREABEEARAERQTACRITREZBED L

1R 1%2002F 8 i st I R AR MBI B B st B1E TR 2B A EEBETE - AtM A TETZ&SR0EE - MEEBARR
RERA2002 6 RT3 A IR TR B 210% ([FHERERE]) - EARF A RBERAE S RERUEF M EEERE - BA
RAEERE2002FBRAEF 3 MAR AR MBREF I REBREER 2 &SRNEE - THEBARFRRNBERASHAE
Mt EREz AARBEEITRA10% - RAENEE T Z10%RER - Z A1 2R 15200240 AR REET ) AR R R ER H A0 AR &
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RATREEZ B H - RIE2002F EAREFTEI AT 31T 2 IR (5 48 80A33,623,747% (W AR RINE B BB TR ZA494.75% °

2002FBREBE TR 2EALZBEER

RAERN21E AR - £ 2 E1ERIZR2002F B & RA R TR A BRI 3ER T 2 BRE(RIET 1T R ARTTE 2 BRE) &
TEMBEBETRETETZROZESHE MSBBAATE BTN EE % « AE— PR LBBILRE 2 EREBRE - AEARRQF
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REBRERZBRG ZERBRER] FTENLARE ZREHE
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HEREABRESEM ZREARARNTRAMN AR EARBIR UM EARTERZHE
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20024 B IR R 51 21 1= 8 55 HA
2002 F FERAERT IS A R RIRR RS REF GEHRME - ANz ARETEBEIA10F - 15742012822 &M °

20025 BB AR KT &I T 2 BEAR PO B 222009576 H30H IR 181A A M2 HEIA T -

i ALERE
2008 2009 BhE SRRRR SRERE
SREZNRIRH 1818 ik RAKAE i d AR 6A0R  BRERLAS  BREGEER  REe RUiRMH fIERMH

HiEn BREL BhiEn

g2
E05 2,000,000 = 73242 - - BM ATEREIR 2008E6A1AE 5875 569 TR
(Fiskr) 16557318 (Hax1)
e 1,600,000 = 54931 = = 1,554,981 WERAIR 200856A1AZ 5875 569 TER
(Hisk1) 016554317 (Hat1)
Rz 1,600,000 = 54931 = = 1,554,931 NOTENEIR 2008E6A1AE 5875 569 TR
(Fiskr) 16557317 (Hax1)
5,000,000 = 183,104 = = 5,183,104
REANES
fi 650,000 = 1098 (350,000) (310,985) = 200359858 NNLEIFBAE 1158 116 364
(Fisk2) (i) 0095348 (#2)
At 1,650,000 = 1830 (1,551,830 = = N6E2R10R  2006%8A10AZ 0907 0% 37
(Fiska) W1458E9R (Ha3)
fi 23,700,000 = 817,119 = (3007,235) 21,509,884 NOTENEIR 200856R1AZ 5875 569 ER
(F1) (Risis) 016554318 (H)
26,900,000 = 829934 (1,901,830) (3318220) 21,509,884
30,900,000 = 1,013,038 (1,901,830 (3318220) 26,692,988

* Rz REEm RN AR - STRHARMANRAL - DlRERIREZ BENTR6ER -

o EARRRRAEHEB TR EMRLERT LIRS - BAETEER T -

e PRABRBRERFERERL BHR 2 ARTRE  DREBRERE PN —ERS A 2B ER o EREBERERBRETERSN AR
BB - ToB 2 PRI B ARSI R ER S8 E T A B BT TR e I T 19 1 o

Bt

(1) AAFRHR2008F3 /17 AR A S (AIERUEIRS) A NEIREZE2007F12 A31HIEFE Z AR E - WH2008F9 A 11 HIZ AR S (A& =2 UER
B&)FREIREZE200866 A308 IE61E A 2 R HIRR B - BB E T HARITEEREEE RITEEZFE - K2008F7A178 + BREZ BRITHEE
F6.0978 7L E5.961/8 T + WH20084 11 A28 Hitt— % E=5.875%8 T °

(2)  AARR2008F3IF17BZARKE(AIEZWEIRS) N IREZE2007F12 A31HIEFE Z RERRE - 17200849 A 11 B AR S (A& 2 UTER

&) TAEIREE2008F6 A308 L6188 2 FHIRRE. - SELRE T MARITEMBAER A RITHEE 2 HE - 11200857170 © B2 SRITEE
M2 ILREE1.1758 T » WH20084F11 A28 E—HREE1.1688 T
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(3)  AARIHA2008F3IAF17 UK E(AEZBUEIIRS) T NEIREZE2007F12A31HIEFE Z AR E - WH2008F9 A 11 HIZ AR B (A& =2 UTER
BE)FANEIREE2008F6 A308 IL61E A 2 HEIMRE - LR E T RAITEERERE RITEE 2 AL - K2008F7 8178 - BRE 2 BRITEE
FRO.94B LR Z0.9278 T » Wi20084 11 A28 H # — F8%20.90748 T ©

(4  HEREBRIENE F2009F6A308 1E181E AR EIEAM AR

(5)  ULERBAENEE 200996 A30F 1 181E A F R S A M AR ©

TERRRRORAEABERD 2EZRKAR

20096 A30H + IMARRIREEH LB EPIEIMRRERATFEZELMAH - ZFEAL(RRRESEHRINRAREZ BN FAR
Bl 2z EEMOARIAT -

HAR AT
REBRAITE 2RITRA
BERGEE ITEFREEZ BY
FERREE RERME TR B E B FEE2 BABE S
B RIEEE
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited — 437,034,720 — 437,034,720 61.86
(TCYTFJ)
Centennial Success Limited ([CSL]) = 437,034,720 — 437,034,720 61.86
AXBREEARAR(ARERED = 437,034,720 = 437,034,720 61.86
HERBEEAR AR ([FEFRERE]) = 437,034,720 = 437,034,720 61.86
MEIEEEARAR ([ FalE]) = 437,034,720 = 437,034,720 61.86
ARG EEAR AR = 437,034,720 = 437,034,720 61.86
(RSB S MKR)
(TNWSSM (Cayman)])
NWS Service Management Limited - 437,034,720 - 437,034,720 61.86
(REBE TS EMAL)
(TNWSSM (BVI) )
NWS Financial Management 437,034,720 — — 437,034,720 61.86

Services Limited ([NWSFM )

FisE : CYTFHEBCSL 51% 8 - MCSLABFARAREES PO BEITRA - AXECERANB ARG EIit REEL38.61%MER - Mt RERERE
B A BRI EHMAIREEITIRALST%  FAIRBEBE 2 EHEH B LR FINWSSM (Cayman)iFBNWSSM (BVIEZBE 1THA - TINWSSM (BVI) Al
FENWSFMEEE BITIRA o RIBFFH LS KD - CYTF - CSL ~ AARBEE - Httt RERE - #AlE - NWSSM (Cayman) ENWSSM (BV) &K A &)
WAR BHNWSFMIE A A 1) i A e -
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B EXXPTIEEE SN - R20095F6 A30R @ BIEEMAL(ARRESRSIN - HEREHN EX[EENRN - BERD REFZ MR
B8 B EAREE S IS FDIEIB61FRER T sk 2 AR R SRR 2 S SRR -

EENRFER T 2ER
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EBWEHEREEER

EBWRAEAEEEBER BRBEEHATRER EERZER

EERR BHERUHERFEER R ERERM ZERHE

MWE East Asia Secretaries REDEAEARE East Asia Secretaries

(BVI) Limited RIEARRE BRI (BVI) Limited

ZETHBAR REETHBARIZES

ERANRESEBYNAMAGRZESRS M LMERFTEREARRESS - A ASEE 2 XM LR EZ S AR EEMmETT
FEEFE -

B EXXCHREEESN - M2009F6H30H » ARREEGREBEERE ZHEATHMENE B EARD R ES BRSBTS AT B GH
FZ B YEE T2

REXZREGFEBERS

AEEETZER S, FHEWERH B REEIBRRM AR LZHA -

B SFITER O EAMBMRM AR ZIFEMER S - WD ERFEMERSDOEASE A E R —REBEETEL : (2K
BREARIR TN BERNANEE B F =D RESERS 2R ER)ETT - RVREEERZ ZABBRRATAERNAARAIRRE
BEMERAYIRIRAT AL

RE L THRANE14A 38 - EFEEARAREMREBTESHMASEM 2 B EFHEBRELERIFE 440055 P BERNNTHER T
AERE IRARERR P BREMABZIHEMEXHETETHERF - RBMCAEFTERE - (XEXHFCEARRESSH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Taifook Securities Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Taifook Securities Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to 223, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 30 June 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the 18 months then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009



Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 30 June 2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the 18 months then ended in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7 October 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

N TS

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009
EE20099F6 530H 111818 5

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
B=E HE
20094 20074
6H30H 12H31H
1IE18fE A 1E121@ A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FETT
Revenue WA ) 1,084,604 1,465,213
Other income HApA 5 66,369 119,650
1150973 1,684,863
Employee benefits costs: EERAFEX -
Salaries and allowances, bonuses and Fre ke EAK
pension scheme contributions RINEFT B 6 (349,099) (300,854)
Commission to accounts executives BREFEEE 6 (223,347) (240,344)
Depreciation e 13 (42,295) (24,886)
Other operating expenses HihiRE Y (274,641) (179,320)
Loss on re-measurement of assets/ EFFTERERERN
liabilities classified as held for sale BE/BE2ER 23 (24,132) -
(913,514) _..{745,404)
Finance costs EURL N 6 (35,401) _ (257,097)
Operating profit ReERR 202,058 582,362
Share of profit of an associate/ FE(GEE 2N T,/ HF
a jointly-controlled entity 7 ) B B i Al 6,324 198
Profit before taxation RRBE AR R 6 208,382 582,560
Taxation expenses HEMAX 9 (20,054) (92,329)
Profit for the period/year BRFEREF 188,328 490,231
Attributable to: AN AL RF
Equity holders of the Company AR AFEF A 10 188,974 484,847
Minority interests DEIRRE R (646) 5,384
188,328 490,231
Dividends ’RE 11
Interim dividend R HARR S 34,818 80,008
Final dividend paid in respect of RBEFEIRN 2
the previous year NEARR B 388 1,400
Proposed final dividend BORAREAAR 2 56,516 163,562
91,722 244 970
Earnings per share attributable to AATBREEFEA
equity holders of the Company EREREF 12
Basic HIK HK cents HK cents
27.6154l 78.847811l
Diluted b 1 HK cents HK cents
27.593# 77.977841
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AR EE R

As at 30 June 2009
200965304

30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6H30H 12H31H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
gz FET FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets EEE&E 13 119,036 77,454
Goodwill [EES 14 9,854 9,854
Other intangible assets HipmmEE 15 4,609 4,609
Other assets Hih&EE 16 7,025 11,329
Interest in an associate/ REgEZ R 7],/ HRF
a jointly-controlled entity PR E RS s RS 18 9,119 3,245
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 19 33,075 196,160
Deferred tax assets BIETHIREE 29 10,598 1,666
Total non-current assets JEMENEEEEE 193,316 304,317
Current assets MENEE
Advances to customers BIBEEZEBR 20 1,726,668 2,816,256
Accounts receivable FEUBR X 21 2,745,969 683,607
Prepayments, deposits and AN FIE - e REM
other receivables FEULBRIE 22 40,510 47,040
Tax prepaid SEINETAE 29,019 1,314
Assets classified as held for sale HEFENEE 23 80,374 —
Financial investments at fair value BATEEGTAEBZZ
through profit or loss IS E 24 22,628 134,285
Cash held on behalf of customers REEPEZEAZIRSE 25 3,661,886 3,361,897
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTEF 403,790 422,894
Total current assets BB EERR 8,710,844 7,467,293
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable FETBR X 25, 26 (4,694,069) (4,305,333)
Tax payable R B I8 (18,082) (73,588)
Other payables and accruals Hth FEA BR X M JEST RN IE 27 (52,933) (149,351)
Liabilities classified as held for sale HEFENAE 23 (9,774) —
Loans and other borrowings ERNHMEE 28 (2,184,237) (1,126,557)
Total current liabilities e A (EEZE (6,959,095) (5,654,829)
Net current assets REEEFE 1,751,749 1,812,464
Total assets less current liabilities REERRDAERE 1,945,065 2,116,781
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
LEREAMER

As at 30 June 2009

R2009F6530H

30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6H30H 12H318
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBERF
Loans and other borrowings ERNHMEE 28 - (245,625)
Deferred tax liabilities EIETHIEAE 29 (14,207) (6,006)
Total non-current liabilities IR BEARE (14,207) (251,631)
Net assets FEE 1,930,858 1,865,150
Equity MR
Equity attributable to equity holders ARATREFEA
of the Company FE{h AR FE
Issued capital BT 30 70,645 65,395
Reserves =& 32(a) 1,798,303 1,627,533
Proposed final dividend R AR HARR B 11 56,516 163,562
1,925,464 1,856,490
Minority interests DERRER 5,394 8,660
Total equity [ iE4REE 1,930,858 1,865,150

WONG Shiu Hoi, Peter
=]

Director

=

LEE Yiu Wing, William
RS

Director

BE

RERSEEARAT 4R 2008/2009
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Balance Sheet

BE AR

As at 30 June 2009
200965304

30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6H30H 12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MI5E FET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13 16,769 15,212
Investments in subsidiaries REB AT ZIHE 17 105,377 105,377
Total non-current assets FrEEERE 0000000 122,146 120,589
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG O 17 1,784,687 1,643,531
Prepayments, deposits and BRI He Rk
other receivables E b el BRIA 22 2,985 4,682
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEF 3,916 3,001
Total current assets nePEEes 1,791,588 1,651,214
Current liabilities RBaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATB B A Bk IE 17 (804,009) (466,245)
Tax payable FEFLIR (52) (72)
Other payables and accruals H i FE BRI FE ST OB 27 (12,246) (32,122)
Loans and other borrowings ER R HAER 28 (47,500) =
Total current liabilities mERERE (863,807) | (498,439)
Net current assets REEEFHE %2118 1,152,775
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAE 1,049,927 1,273,364
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Loans and other borrowings BN EMER 28 - (245,625)
Total non-current liabilities SEMB B EETE . (245,625)
Net assets #EE 1,049,927 1,027,739
Equity e
Issued capital BEITARA 30 70,645 65,395
Reserves & 32(b) 922,766 798,782
Proposed final dividend ER R HARR B 11 56,516 163,562
Total equity g Tk 1,049,927 1,027,739

WONG Shiu Hoi, Peter
=2AR

Director

=

LEE Yiu Wing, William
TR

Director

BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR o e A B R

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009
EE20099F6 530H 111818 5

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KRaRAEEARL
Share Share Capital Investment Proposed
Issued ~ premium option  redemption ~ Contributed Capital ~revaluation  Exchange  cash/serip  Retained Minority Total
capital ~ account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  dividend profits Total interests equity
RE) it BhE s b BHReRE A8
i BER ff HEEE AARR EFBE  EMBE  ENBE OBRE REE at hRER  REEE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEL ThL THL THL THL TEn TEn TEn TEL TEL ThL THL THL
Note32(a)  Note 32(a)
MR MaES2le)
At 1 January 2008 008E 1518 653% 780,078 2903 3,705 1418 45,501 64,782 (30) 163562 729176 1856490 8660 1,865,150
Changesinfairvalueof  EHEREZ
avalable- forsale NS
vestments - - - - - - (68584) - - - [85%) - [585%4)
Impaiment oss of RERNERRZ
avalable- forsale T EREZAERR
investments charge to
consolidated income
statement - - - - - - 5922 - - - 5922 - 5922
Totalincome and expense  SNERRNRERT
forthe period recognised  EMAREER
directy in equity - - - - - - (Ra662) - - - [52662) - (52662)
Profitfor the period Bmiat] = = = o - - - - - 188,974 188,974 (646) 188,328
Totalincome and expense BN\ kEER
for the period - - - - - - (52,662 - - 188,974 136,312 (646) 135,666
Dividends paid to minorty &0 ERELRE
sharefolders - - - - - - - - - - - (2,620 (2,620
2007and 2008 nterim~— ESFA007E 2008 RS
dvidend declredand  RERUBAREARH
settled n shares and cash 6457 122476 - - - - - - (163562)  (35,206)  (69,835) - (6983%)
New share options granted 1 F(ES £ ERE
foemployess-note 31 K31 - - 13425 - - - - - - - 13425 - 1345
Issue of new shares - share {THIRA-ERiEs 2
opfonscheme-note 31 ~FHiE31 19 1,688 - - - - - - - - 1878 - 1878
Share optons lapsed BAIERE - 184 1844) - = - - - - - - - -
Purchase of shares BERH (1397)  (11409) - 1397 (1397) - - - - - (1280) - (12:806)
Proposed finel 2009 RE009ERERE
dividend - note 11 N - - - - - - - - 56,516 (56,516) - - -
At 30 June 2009 12009E6730A 70645 894677 14,484 5,102! il 45501 110 (300 56516  826428' 1925464 5394 1,930,858
1 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of hERFEBEREOERAGEEEEBRZGEHE

HK$1,798,303,000 (31 December 2007: HK$1,627,533,000) in the
consolidated balance sheet.

1,798,303,000/% 7t (2007412 A31H :1,627,533,000
BT e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e SN\ Al 4 434
SO )R
For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009

ELE2009%6 /1306 111818
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RATREREARR
Share Share Captal Investment Proposed
Issued — premium option ~ redemption  Contributed Captal ~ revluation  Exchange  casfiscrp  Retained Minority Total
capital account eSeIVe 16SeIVe surplus 6SeIve 8SeIVe reserve  dividend profits Total  interests equity
B&f B ERE i el ; b4
BE REE B BOBE gABR  ERER  EERE  EREE /U (R st BRER  BESE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TH
Note 32al ~ Note 320
e W
At 1 January 2007 R2007E1718 5752 526963 2369 3705 1418 45501 9,684 (30 4155 489299 1179216 4476 118369
Changesinfairvalueof  EHEREZ
avalatle- for-selp ATEEY
ivestments = = = = = = 31316 = = = 31316 = 31316
Totalincome and expense  FMERHRERZZ
fortheyearrecognised  BYAREER
directly in equity - - - - - - 336 - - - 31316 - 33
Profit for the year EgH| = = - = - = - - - s dped 534 490231
Totalincome and expense  EMENAREER
for the year - - - - - - 336 - - I8 52163 534 821547
Divdends paid to mnorty  HEDEHEZRE
sharefolders = = = = = = = = = = = (1200} (1,200)
Final 2006 dividend declared EE2006% KR E = - - = = = = - [455) (1400) (42968 - (9%
Issugof share-note 30 B{7R(A-HiE0 380 25216 - - - - - - - - 1801 - 1901
Share options evercised 27 {RERE-HiE1
- ote 31 2883 27899 2151) = = = = = = - 28591 - 85
New share options granted B FES /BB E
foemployess-note31 K31 - - 268 - - - - - - - 268 - 268
Releassondsposal ol HETRHERARAR
avaleble-orsale ~Hiz9
investment-note 19 - - - - - - 17,782 - - - 17,782 - 17,782
Interim 2007 dvidend 2007 R E-FhiEn
-note 11 - = = = = = = = - (80008)  (80,008) - (80008)
Proposed finel 2007 RENVERERE
dividend- note 11 K = = = = = = = - 163562 (163562) - - -
At31 December 2007 RA007E12A318 653% 780078 2908 3705! 1418 45501 64T (30 163562 729176" 1,836,490 8660 1,865,150
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

»\/:R/\}E» IDE‘

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009
EE20099F6 530H 111818 5

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
B5ZE Hz
20095 20074
6H30H 12A31H8
1L181@ A 1H1218 A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FEn FET
Cash flows from operating activities REERCHERE
Profit before taxation BRA A A 208,382 582,560
Adjustments for: ISEL TSI
Share of profit of an associate/ FE(EE AR,/ HA
a jointly-controlled entity B 2R F (6,324) (198)
Interest income FBUA 3 (245,728) (108,132)
Finance costs BETERK AR 6 35,401 257,097
Dividend income from listed investments FmRE BB WA 5 (3,784) (2,400)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEE 2 ER/ (W) 6 484 (127)
Depreciation e 13 42,295 24,886
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAEHEREZ
investments, net Wz 38 - (9,297)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHEREZ
investments REEE 3 5,922 =
Loss on re-measurement of assets/ B EREGEEE/
liabilities classified as held for sale BEZEER 24,132 =
Equity-settled share option expense IARRAN S A+ 2 B RS A =2 31 13,425 2,685
Decrease/(increase) in advances %ﬁ%@ﬁZ%%’\
to customers () 1,089,588 (1,704,148)
Increase in accounts receivable ﬁuﬁzﬁé eyl (2,071,329) (137,106)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, HBNFE - ke REAEK
deposits and other receivables BRI,/ (1) 6,530 (12,739)
Increase in an amount due from JE U R4 4| BB SR IEIE )
a jointly-controlled entity - (450)
Decrease in amounts due from JRE Uy B A B IR R A
related companies - 760
Decrease/(increase) in financial ROV ERABR
investments at fair value through 2T E
profit or loss w/(Em) 111,657 (47,105)
Increase in cash held on behalf of customers REEEHE 2SN (299,989) (1,555,943)
Increase in accounts payable JEABR SR 00 388,736 1,733,471
(Decrease)fincrease in other H BRI % R T FUR
payables and accruals CRA),/H#Ehn (96,418) 67,840
Increase in loans and other borrowings ER R HMESE N
(excluding bank overdraft) (TREFTEX) 780,740 791,399
Interest received BUYFE 254,695 108,132
Finance costs paid [SERLEUR DN (35,401) (257,097)
Tax paid BETRIE (103,996) (24,203)
Dividends received from listed investments B EMERE ZRE 3,784 2,400
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Tk HE
operating activities TN/ R RE 102,802 (287,715)

RERSEEARAT 4R 2008/2009
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

/T\ B ERER
For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009
ELE2009%6 /1306 111818

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HE
20094 20074
6H30H 12A31H
L1818 B 1E1218 A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
F&E FTER FHL
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEBEIRE
operating activities RN/ R B8 102,802 (287,715)
Cash flows from investing activities REEBRZHERE
Purchases of items of fixed assets BEETEE 13 (84,809) (39,126)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets ﬁﬁlmﬁigﬁﬁﬁfk 448 387
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHTB A - (9,472)
Decrease in other assets ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ@ 4,304 14,690
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEIHEERE - (84,071)
Dividend from an associate/a DUt N R R
jointly-controlled entity BRZIRE 450 450
Proceeds from disposal of HETHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments PS8 RUA - 98,564
Proceeds from disposal of assets/liabilities ﬁ’i%{ﬁ%’%ﬁfﬁ/ﬁﬁz
classified as held for sale FTSRUR 9,769 =
Net cash outflow from investing activities RETHZHE R L R (69,838) (18,578)
Cash flows from financing activities METHHERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITHRD FRE A 31 190 229,016
Proceeds from share options exercised TP IR G HIA 31 1,688 28,591
Repurchase and cancellation of shares AR SEEE ) (12,806) =
Dividends paid to shareholders N#HEREZIRE (69,835) (122,963)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders e DEIRE Z R E (2,620) (1,200)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REIEHZRESRE)
financing activities RAFRHE (83,383) 133,444
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BE&EMREEEBE 2RV T8 (50,419) (172,849)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning Y/ =9z Re RESZEE
of period/year 5B 422,472 595,321
Cash and cash equivalents at end HAtR SER 7S RIS E(E
of period/year B H 372,053 422,472
Analysis of balances of cash and HeRBELEEER
cash equivalents Xkl
Cash and bank balances B KRR 403,790 422,894
Bank overdrafts RITEL 28 (31,737) (422)
372,053 422,472
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Notes to Financial Statements

A B AR B AL

As at 30 June 2009
200965304

1

Corporate information

Taifook Securities Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 25th Floor, New World Tower, 16-18
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the Group was
involved in the following principal activities:

e  securities, futures and options contracts broking and trading

e the provision of margin and other financing

e the provision of corporate advisory, placing and underwriting
services

e Dullion contracts dealing and trading

o leveraged foreign exchange trading

e the provision of nominee and custodian services

e the provision of fund management

e the provision of financial planning and advisory services

Change of financial year end date

The financial year end date of the Company and its subsidiaries
apart from Taifook Securities Company Limited, (collectively, the
“Group”) has been changed from 31 December to 30 June to
conform with the financial year end date of its holding companies,
New World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings
Limited. Accordingly, the current financial period covered a
18-month period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2009 and the
comparatives covered a 12-month period from 1 January 2007 to
31 December 2007.

DAER

AEEBELHEBAR AT —HREREEMAK
NZERBEMERAR c AREIZEE L EH B
REBEFEAED16-185RH R AE 2542 o

HZE2009F6A30H 1F18MAR » REBMUET
DI EBER

s BN HEREANELRER
o RHUFREEGIBER
o REDMEFZARE - B REHRE

o BLBANEERXSH
o ERINEEE
o REREARRERS
e RHEESER

o RHEMIBERE NARRSE

ERMBFEELER

AR REMBAB(KEBESBRABIRIN)
(I AEE ) HBRFEEEREH12A31
HERAG6HA30H - NEEER A R 72
RERARRIAIZEEBFRAE 2 HHFE
HEHEE— - Bk - ANEBEE 87520084 1
BA1B%200946 A30H L1818 BRI + Mtt
R FABIE200741 81 BE2007F12 A31
B 11218 A AARS -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and assets/liabilities classified as held for sale.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 3.

(a) Amendments and interpretations effective for the
period and relevant to the Group’s operation
e  The HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’, amendment on reclassification
of financial assets permits reclassification of
certain financial assets out of the held-for-trading
and available-for-sale categories if specified
conditions are met. The related amendment to
HKFRS 7, 'Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
introduces disclosure requirements with respect
to financial assets reclassified out of the held-
for-trading and available-for-sale categories. The
amendment is effective prospectively from 1 July
2008. This amendment does not have any impact
on the Group's financial statements, as the Group
has not reclassified any financial assets during the
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Amendments and interpretations effective for the
period and relevant to the Group’s operation (continued)
e HK(IFRIC) = Int 11, "HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury
share transactions’, provides guidance on whether
share-based transactions involving treasury shares
or involving group entities (for example, options
over a parent’s shares) should be accounted for as
equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment
transactions in the stand-alone accounts of the
parent and group companies. This interpretation
does not have an impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

(b) Interpretations effective for the period but not relevant
to the Group's operations
° HK(IFRIC) - Int 12, 'Service Concession arrangements’

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 14, 'HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and
their interaction’

2 EASTHEEHMEmm)

21 REEEHE)
(a) RN H R A 50 4 7K 45 [ 2 75 A [
ST RBFE(E)

2R (ERMBHRERERE
) -REZVRIBEVBR
ERAFE2FE - EEREFR
DR 5 |5 HIES] - S R
EEkin sk EEE R (flmE
DA OB ) 2 B 2
ERX RGN AR NEE
NAZIBILERE ANERTE
FUNRDFHHRNERR S
AR o SRR H AR E 2 B
BRERLBEMNEATE -

(b)  FOA B A 3K 15 7N 52 B 32 755 2 [
ZiEFE

2R (EBRFBREREEZE
) BB 2% RISEFITE
2 HE ]

2R (ERMBHRERERE
) -RESAR BB E
A998 — AERAMEEZR
B REESEREMENE
HRIER]
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group

HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The
revised standard will prohibit the presentation of
items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner
changes in equity’) in the statement of changes
in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’
to be presented separately from owner changes
in equity. All non-owner changes in equity will be
required to be shown in a performance statement,
but entities can choose whether to present
one performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements (the
consolidated income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). Where entities restate
or reclassify comparative information, they will be
required to present a restated balance sheet as
at the beginning comparative period in addition
to the current requirement to present balance
sheets at the end of the current period and
comparative period. The Group will apply HKAS
1 (Revised) from 1 July 2009. It is likely that both
the consolidated income statement and statement
of comprehensive income will be presented as
performance statements.

HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and separate
financial statements’ (effective from 1 July 2009).
The revised standard requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control
and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to
fair value and a gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) to
transactions with non-controlling interests from 1
July 2009.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Presentation’, and HKAS 1 (Amendment),
‘Presentation of financial statements’ — 'Puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising on
liquidation’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The
amended standards require entities to classify
puttable financial instruments and instruments, or
components of instruments that impose on the
entity an obligation to deliver to another party a
pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only
on liquidation as equity, provided the financial
instruments have particular features and meet
specific conditions. The Group will apply the HKAS
32 (Amendment) and HKAS 1 (Amendment) from
1 July 2009, but it is not expected to have any
impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’
(effective from 1 January 2009). The amended
standard deals with vesting conditions and
cancellations. It clarifies that vesting conditions
are service conditions and performance conditions
only. Other features of a share-based payment
are not vesting conditions. As such these features
would need to be included in the grant date fair
value for transactions with employees and others
providing similar services, that is, these features
would not impact the number of awards expected
to vest or valuation thereof subsequent to grant
date. All cancellations, whether by the entity
or by other parties, should receive the same
accounting treatment. The Group will apply HKFRS
2 (Amendment) from 1 July 2009, but it is not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), '‘Business combinations’
(effective from 1 July 2009). The revised standard
continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations, with some significant
changes. For example, all payments to purchase
a business are to be recorded at fair value at
the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured
through the consolidated income statement. There
is a choice on an acquisition by acquisition basis
to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be
expensed. The Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised)
to all business combinations from 1 July 2009.

Amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
disclosures’. The amendment increases the
disclosure requirements about fair value
measurement and amends the disclosure about
liquidity risk. The amendment introduces a
three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement
disclosures about financial instruments and
requires some specific quantitative disclosures for
those instruments classified in the lowest level
in the hierarchy. These disclosures will help to
improve comparability between entities about the
effects of fair value measurements. In addition,
the amendment clarifies and enhances the existing
requirements for the disclosure of liquidity risk
primarily requiring a separate liquidity risk analysis
for derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities.
It also requires a maturity analysis for financial
assets where the information is needed to
understand the nature and context of liquidity risk.
The Group will make additional relevant disclosures
in its financial statements ending 30 June 2010.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 8, 'Operating segments’ (effective from
1 January 2009) HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14,
‘Segment reporting’, and aligns segment reporting
with the requirements of the US standard SFAS
131, '‘Disclosures about segments of an enterprise
and related information’. The new standard
requires a ‘'management approach’, under which
segment information is presented on the same
basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.
The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1 July 2009,
but it is not expected to have a material impact on
the Group's financial statements.

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008

HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The
amendment clarifies that some rather than all
financial assets and liabilities classified as held for
trading in accordance with HKAS 39, ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’
are examples of current assets and liabilities
respectively. The Group will apply the HKAS 1
(Amendment) from 1 July 2009. It is not expected
to have an impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
20096 730H

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

° HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

> HKAS 19 (Amendment), 'Employee benefits’
(effective from 1 January 2009).

—  The distinction between short term and long
term employee benefits will be based on
whether benefits are due to be settled within
or after 12 months of employee service being
rendered.

-  HKAS 37, 'Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets’ requires contingent liabilities
to be disclosed, not recognised. HKAS 19 has
been amended to be consistent.

The Group will apply the HKAS 19 (Amendment)
from 1 July 2009.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
20096 730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in
associates’ (and consequential amendments to
HKAS 32, 'Financial Instruments: Presentation’
and HKFRS 7, '"Financial instruments:
Disclosures’) (effective from 1 January 2009).
An investment in associate is treated as a single
asset for the purposes of impairment testing
and any impairment loss is not allocated to
specific assets included within the investment,
for example, goodwill. Reversals of impairment
are recorded as an adjustment to the investment
balance to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the associate increases. The Group will apply
the HKAS 28 (Amendment) to impairment tests
related to investment in associates and any
related impairment losses from 1 July 2009.

HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’
(effective from 1 January 2009). Where fair value
less costs to sell is calculated on the basis of
discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent to
those for value-in-use calculation should be made.
The Group will apply the HKAS 36 (Amendment)
and provide the required disclosure where
applicable for impairment tests from 1 July 2009.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’ (effective from
1 January 2009). The definition of financial asset
or financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss as it relates to items that are held for
trading is also amended. This clarifies that a
financial asset or liability that is part of a portfolio
of financial instruments managed together with
evidence of an actual recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking is included in such a portfolio
on initial recognition. The Group will apply the
HKAS 39 (Amendment) from 1 July 2009. It is
not expected to have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’ (and
consequential amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First-
time adoption’) (effective from 1 July 2009). The
amendment clarifies that all of a subsidiary’s
assets and liabilities are classified as held for
sale if a partial disposal sale plan results in loss
of control, and relevant disclosure should be
made for this subsidiary if the definition of a
discontinued operation is met. A consequential
amendment to HKFRS 1 states that these
amendments are applied prospectively from the
date of transition to HKFRSs. The Group will
apply the HKFRS 5 (Amendment) to all partial
disposals of subsidiaries from 1 July 2009. It
is not expected to have a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements
as the Group has already conformed with this
presentation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

There are a number of minor amendments to
HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
HKAS 8, "Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors’, HKAS 10,
‘Events after the balance sheet date’, HKAS
18, '‘Revenue’ and HKAS 34, 'Interim financial
reporting’ which are not addressed above. These
amendments are unlikely to have an impact
on the Group's financial statements and have
therefore not been analysed in detail.

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2009

Amendment to HKFRS 2 "Share-based
payments’, effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009. This clarification confirms that
HKFRS 3 (revised) does not change the scope
of HKFRS 2. This is not currently relevant for the
Group as it has not issued equity instruments for
business combination under common control or
for the formation of a joint venture.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2009 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’,
effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010. Disclosures in standards other
than HKFRS 5 do not apply to non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations unless those
HKFRSs specifically require disclosures for them.
Additional disclosures about these assets or
discontinued operations may be necessary to
comply with the general requirements of HKAS 1
‘Presentation of financial statements’. The Group
will apply HKFRS 5 (amendment) from 1 July
2010.

Amendment to HKFRS 8 'Operating segments’,
effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010. Disclosure of information about
total assets and liabilities for each reportable
segment is required only if such amounts
are regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Group will apply HKFRS 8
(amendment) from 1 July 2010.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2009 (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial
statements’, effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2010. Current/non-current
classification of the liability component of
convertible instruments is not affected by the
holder’s option which will result in the settlement
by the issuance of equity instruments. This is
not currently relevant for the Group as it has not
issued convertible instruments.

Amendment to HKAS 7 ‘Statement of cash
flows’, effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010. Only expenditures that result in
a recognised asset are eligible for classification as
investing activities. The Group will apply HKAS 7
(amendment) from 1 July 2010.

Amendment to HKAS 17 'Leases’, effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
The amendment removes the specific guidance
on the classification of long-term leases of land
as operating leases. When classifying land
leases, the general principles applicable to the
classification of leases should be applied. The
classification of land leases has to be reassessed
on adoption of the amendment on the basis of
information existing at inception of the leases.
The Group will apply HKAS 17 (amendment) from
1 July 2010.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2009 (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’,
effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010. This clarifies that the largest unit
permitted for the goodwill impairment test is the
lowest level of operating segment before any
aggregation as defined in HKFRS 8. The Group
will apply HKAS 36 (amendment) from 1 July
2010.

Amendment to HKAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’,
effective for periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009. This clarifies the description of
the valuation technigues commonly used to
measure intangible assets acquired in a business
combination when they are not traded in an active
market. In addition, an intangible asset acquired
in a business combination might be separable but
only together with a related contract, identifiable
asset or liability. In such cases, the intangible
asset is recognised separately from goodwill but
together with the related item. The Group will
apply HKAS 38 (amendment) from 1 July 2009.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2009 (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 39 'Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’, effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
Loan prepayment penalties are treated as
closely related embedded derivatives, only if
the penalties are payments that compensate
the lender for loss of interest by reducing the
economic loss from reinvestment risk. In addition,
the scope exemption to business combination
contracts only applies to forward contracts that
are firmly committed to be completed between
the acquirer and a selling shareholder to buy or
sell an acquiree in a business combination at a
future acquisition date. Therefore option contracts
are not in this scope exemption. This amendment
also clarifies that in a cash flow hedge of a
forecast transaction that a reclassification of the
gains or losses on the hedged item from equity
to profit or loss is made during the period the
hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss.
This is not currently relevant for the Group as it
does not have such embedded derivatives and
cash flow hedge items.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXEFBRBE®)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEEE)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing (c) AR A EE I FEIEERAZ

Standards that are not yet effective and have not been BRI - (EET R BRI 2 FE(4E)

early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2009 (Continued)

Amendment to HK(IFRIC) 9 ‘Reassessment
of embedded derivatives’, effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009. This
amendment aligns the scope of HK(IFRIC) 9 to
the scope of HKFRS 3 (revised): the interpretation
does not apply to embedded derivatives in
contracts acquired in a business combination, a
common control combination or the formation of
a joint venture. This is not currently relevant for
the Group as it does not have such embedded
derivatives.

Amendment to HK(IFRIC) 16 ‘Hedges of a net
investment in a foreign operation’, effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
This amendment removes the restriction on the
entity that can hold hedging instruments in a
net investment hedge. The hedging instruments
can be held by the foreign operation that itself is
being hedged. This is not currently relevant for
the Group as it does not have such hedge.

These amendments of HKICPA's improvements to
HKFRS published in May 2009 are unlikely to have an
impact on the Group's financial statements and have
therefore not been analysed in detail.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SV S M

As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statement of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June (2007: 31 December).

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group's
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SV S M

As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting polices of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the polices
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of associated
companies are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Gooadwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is
on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Gooadwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated
reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business
Combinations” (“SSAP 30") in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated reserve
in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3,
such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
reserve and is not recognised in the income statement
when all or part of the business to which the goodwill
relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXE:BRBE®)

23 FMBEE(BHERMNREE

2.3 Impairment of non-financial assets other than

goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset'’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case; the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

25

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Fixed assets

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXE:BRBE®)

2.5 Fixed assets (continued) 25 BEEEEM#E)
(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (a) Y% HERZERITE(E)

(continued)

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to

write off the cost of each item of property, plant and

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 2.5%

Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Computer hardware 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Fixed assets (continued)

(b)

Computer software and system development

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

(i) management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

(i) there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the software product are available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXEFBRBE®)

2.5 Fixed assets (continued) 25 BEEEEE)

(b) Computer software and system development (continued)

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives,
which does not exceed five years.

2.6 Intangible assets (other than goodwill and computer

software and system development)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet
date.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange and the
Futures Exchange, with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
are recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

29

Other assets
Other assets held on a long term basis are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessors are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a party
to it and assesses whether an embedded derivatives is
required to be separated from the host contract when the
analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those
of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there
is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets

are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the

Grou

p commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way

purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets

that

require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses
on investments held for trading are recognised in the
income statement. The net fair value or loss recognised
in the income statement does not include any dividends
on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SV S M

As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities
that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any of the other two categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised
as a separate component of equity until the investment
is derecognised or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “Other
income"” in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the
income statement as “Impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there
is no active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same and a discounted cash flow
analysis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SV S M

As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired.

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced either directly or through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

[f, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised in the income statement, to the extent
that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to advances to customers and accounts
receivable, a provision for impairment is made when
there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor and significant changes in the technological,
market economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will not
be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they
are assessed as uncollectible.
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made
for available-for-sale equity investments when there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost or where other objective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as
the share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement.

2.11 Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised where:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 30 June 2009

R2009F6 5304

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXE:BRBE®)

212 ZEERARIIR M BEE(BER

2.12 Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including

interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other payables
and accruals and loans and other borrowings are initially
stated at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
The related interest expense is recognised within “finance
costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

2.13 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are
accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial guarantee contract, except when
such contract is recognised at fair value through profit or
loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.

2.14 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

2.16 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entity, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXEFBRBE®)

2.16 Income tax (continued) 2.16 Fi8%i(4#&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entity, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

from the profit and loss on sale of available-for-sale
investments and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, on the transaction dates when
the relevant contract notes are executed;

commission on dealing in securities, futures, options
and bullion contracts and the profit and loss on trading
in securities, futures, options and bullion contracts, on
the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes
are executed,

consultancy and financial advisory fees, placing,
underwriting and sub-underwriting commissions,
and commission income from financial planning, on
an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements;

income from fund management, custodian and handling
services, in the period in which such services are
rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument,

income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions,
on an accrual basis; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXE:BRBE®)

2.18 Share-based payment transactions 218 BT 2B

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial
statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for
any modification, which increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November
2002 that had not vested by 1 January 2006 and to those
granted on or after 1 January 2005.

2.19 Other employee benefits

(i) Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave
which remains untaken as at the balance sheet date
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the balance sheet date for the expected future
cost of such paid leave earned during the period by the
employees and carried forward.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Other employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
"MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for
the Group's employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when an employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
refunded contribution is recognised in the consolidated
income statement to offset the current period
contribution made.

2.20 Dividends

Final

dividends proposed by the directors are classified as

a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity

section of the balance sheets, until they have been approved

by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these

divid

ends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interi
beca

m dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
use the Company’'s memorandum of association and

Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim

dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

imm

ediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and a jointly-controlled entity are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollars. As at the balance sheet date, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in a separate component of equity.
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the period/year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange
rates for the year.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 BEXE:BRBE®)

2.22 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as
assets held-for-sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.

The assets and liabilities of the disposal groups are classified
as "assets classified as held for sale” and “liabilities
classified as held for sale”, presented as current assets and
current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below:

(i) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group had available-for-sale investments which were
stated at their fair values on the basis of their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual
basis. Any gains or losses are recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is included in the consolidated income statement.
Management has to assess whether objective evidence
of significant impairment exists and consider whether it is
appropriate to charge the cumulative loss to consolidated
income statement.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments (continued)
In making its judgement, the Group considers if there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
its cost or whether other objective evidence of impairment
exist.

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, impairment loss
of HK$5,922,000 (31 December 2007: Nil) was recognised
by the Group with the cumulative loss in equity charged
to the consolidated income statement. Should there be no
impairment loss, the profit of the Group will increase by
HK$5,922,000 (31 December 2007: Nil).

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2009
was HK$9,854,000 (31 December 2007: HK$9,854,000). No
impairment is considered necessary as at 30 June 2009 as
the prospect of the cash-generating units is favorable to the
Company. More details are given in note 14.

Impairment allowances on advances to customers
The Group reviews its advances to customers to assess
impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the
consolidated income statement, the Group makes judgments
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows. This evidence may include observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in a group.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment allowances on advances to customers
(continued)

Management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

More details on the credit risk of the advances to customers
are included in note 20.

Estimation of realisability of deferred tax assets
Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences arising from depreciation of fixed
assets. As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised. Management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group recognised deferred tax
assets of approximately HK$10.6 million (31 December
2007: HK$1.7 million). Should future taxable profit become
totally unavailable, the Group would need to decrease the
deferred tax assets and increase its deferred tax expenses
by approximately HK$10.6 million for the 18-month period (12
months ended 31 December 2007: HK$1.7 million).

Furthermore, as at 30 June 2009, the Group has unrecognised
deferred tax assets of approximately HK$29 million (31
December 2007: HK$22 million) arising from the subsidiaries
of the Group which management consider that these
subsidiaries are unlikely to generate available future taxable
profit to utilise the deferred tax benefit.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(v) Classification of certain investment funds as assets/
liabilities held for sale
The assets and liabilities of certain investment funds of the
Group have been classified as held for sale and carried at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair value less costs
to sell as the directors of the Company considered these
investment funds were held by the Group with a view to
resell/dispose in the near future. As of 30 June 2009, all
the assets and liabilities of these investment funds were
presented as assets/liabilities classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5.

Should there be any changes in the disposal plan or
management'’s intention, the Group will have to consolidate
the financial position of these investment funds. More details
are included in note 23.

Segment information

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining
the Group's geographical segments, revenues are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the customers, and assets
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets.
No further geographical segment information is presented as the
majority of the Group’s customers and operations are located in
Hong Kong.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers services which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

(a) the broking segment engages in securities, futures, options
and bullion contracts broking and dealing;

(b) the margin and other financing segment engages in the
provision of margin financing to margin customers, and
personal loans and commercial loans to individuals and
corporate customers, respectively;
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4 Segment information (continued)

(c)

the corporate advisory, placing and underwriting segment
engages in the provision of corporate advisory, placing and
underwriting services;

the trading and investment segment engages in investment
holding, and proprietary trading of securities, futures,
options, bullion contracts and leveraged foreign exchange
trading;

the financial planning and advisory services segment
engages in the provision of financial planning and advisory
services; and

the “others” segment comprises fund management and the
provision of custodian and handling services.

Intersegment transactions are conducted with reference to the

prices charged to third parties and there was no change in the

basis in the current period.
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4 Segment information (continued) 4 SBERE)
Business segments EF S
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain TR HIEZE2009F6 A30H 181 A MEE
asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group's 2007F12A31BIL12A A REE 2 £ 53
business segments for the 18 months ended 30 June 2009 and ZUWA BRI (BR)RETEE AENE
12 months ended 31 December 2007. TER
Group P
Corporate advisory, Financial
Margin and placing and Trading planning and
Broking other financing underwriting and investment advisory services Others Eliminations Consolidated
fexn FRREMES iz ENHN EERAE HERARERRE i i &4
Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forhe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe  Forthe
18months  12months 18 months  12months 18 months  12months 18 months  12months  18months  12months  18months  12months 18 months  12months 18 months 12 months
ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31
30June December ~ 30June December ~ 30June December — 30June  December — 30June  December  30Jume  December ~ 30June  Decermber  30June  December
2009 2000 2009 2007 2009 2007 2009 2007 2009 2007 2009 2007 2009 2007 2009 007
1 EES BZ EE BZ EES BE EE B2 Bz B2 HE 1 HE 82 i
N0 N0TE 00F  007F 209 200F  200F  00F  009F 0% NMF  N0F  N09E  N01E 00F  2007F
6A308  12731B  GA3R 1A% 6ANR 12AYE  6A0R  12ANE  GAOR  12F3E 6ANA  1AYE  6ANR  12ANE  GAR  12A%1R
18BA @R L8ER t2BA L8@A tER L8BA E0ER L8BR f0EA Le@A bER 8@A ENER b8ER  fnER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
TR AT TR TAT  TAr TET TR TAr  TEn TEr TR fEr TR TR TRn TEn
Seqment evenue: AHHA:
Sles toextemal customers — HEFIKEE 72838 797440 176461 3959 7789 111305 3521 5583 70540 65089 49455 76002 - - 1084604 1465213
Intersegment sales AOME BE 801 13 464 4030 - - - - - - - - (25)  (0915) - -
Total ) 713639 798053 218105 399861 nn 13 3521 55838 0540 65059 49455 76002 (42445  (40.015) 1,084.604 146513
Segment results L 4655 230798 91836 24803 12558 50467 (54976) 35655 48 1249 (3115) 2649 - - a7 58T
Unallocated expenses RORAR (649) (352)
Share of profit of an associatel  EIEEEAT/ AR
ajoint-contrlled entiy BERZER - - - - - - - - - - 63 19 - - 63 19
Profit before taxaton el 208382 582560
Taxation expenses ST (20054) (92309
Profit or the periodyear B /E R 188328 490,231
Segment assets AHEE 8562550 5892248 3567983 4302405 269780 295530 659326 667423 195606 124113 249950 206960 (4649.807) (3683204) 8855428 7765385
Inerest n an assocate/ REEDF/ 2R
ajoint<ontrolled entity HHIER S - - - - - - - - - - 3 - -9 38
Unellocated assets FOREE 39613 2990
Totalassets BEE 8904160 7,771,610
Segment iabilties Mgk (8,280,123 [6475,045) (2368199 (2292.201)  (85536)  (4901) (702476) [500428)  (87502)  (60.245)  (66986)  (B6.440) 4649807 3683294 (6,941,014) (5826,866)
Unallocated libilties Fokak (32288)  (795%)
Totalibilties g (6,973,302)  (5,906,460)

Other segment information: ~~ EfAFE#
&

Depreciation i 28208 13,725 6,841 6,051 2,160 1,366 ") 1,04 3131 1458 191 1,245 - - DX U8
Capital expendiure BRRR 597 238 UM 96% 4497 2007 26 1708 1031 134 4161 2034 - - 809 391%
Fairvalue lossesfgains) o~ SRATESABRY

finencil investments atfar ~ BIEAEZATE

value through profitor loss, net 58 /(4 - - - - - - 19087 7990 - - - - - - 19087 7990

158 Taifook Securities Group Limited  Annual Report 2008/2009



Notes to Financial Statements
SR i 2% B 5

As at 30 June 2009
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5 Revenue and other income

An analysis of revenue (which is also the Group’s turnover) and

other income is as follows:

5

LN SEL L ON

WA (TREA R Bl 2 2 26 50) A R A Z D4

L

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HE
20094 20074
6AH30H 12H31H
1E181@ A 1E121@ A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue WA
Securities dealing and broking: BEEE RKLERS
Commission on securities BHEBE ML ES
dealing and broking ZRe 532,757 724,925
Futures, options and commodities HE  HErAEREE
dealing and broking: PEERES
Commission on futures, options and HE -  HRENERES
commodities dealing and broking ML EK 2 e 167,419 65,619
Margin and other financing: FREEMEE
Interest income on margin and FREEMERES
other financing activities ZAEHA 176,461 359,559
Corporate finance and advisory: ERE REH
Consultancy and financial advisory ERkREZAE
fee income A 37,814 37,956
Placing, underwriting and & - BiEED B
sub-underwriting commission Uitka 33,975 73,359
Bullion contracts dealing: BE2BAYESE
Commission on bullion BEERESBEY
contracts dealing ZHAE 12,662 6,896
Provision of nominee and RHAREAR
custodian services: RERT :
Custodian and handling service fees RIEARREREE 22,693 18,430
Fund management: AESEE
Management fee income EREE- PN 22,916 11,340
Performance fee income FIRBIWA 3,846 39,347
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5 Revenue and other income (continued) 5 WARHEMEA )
For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HE
2009 20074
6A30H 12H31H
L1818 A 1E121E A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue (continued) WA (%8)
Income from proprietary trading: BEEEZWA :
(Loss)/profit on financial assets at BATERT A BT MR E
fair value through profit or loss, net (B518), % F - B8 (67,488) 30,007
Profit on futures, options, commodities ~ Hi% - HiiE - B RESB
and bullion contracts trading, net BHEE N - FE 40,368 18,611
Dividend income AR EHA 3,784 2,400
Leveraged foreign exchange trading: ERINER F
Income from leveraged foreign ERINEEE 2
exchange trading, net WA - F5E 26,857 11,705
Financial planning and advisory services: B 753 2| & 5 RTS
Commission on the provision of IRIEEIEREI N
financial planning and advisory ARG 2
services s 70,540 65,059
1,084,604 1,465,213
Other income HAhug A
Bank interest income HRITHEUA 69,267 108,132
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEREZ
investments AR (5,922) =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHEEIRE
investments, net Wz R E - 9,297
Others Hh 3,024 2,221
66,369 119,650
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As at 30 June 2009

R2009F6730H

6 Profit before taxation 6 PBRBIAIER

The Group's profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ AEBZBRFAHEF TR, (G A) TF&E

(crediting): &5
For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HZE
20094 20074
6A30H 12A31H
1E18{@ A 1E12{8A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
The other operating expenses include: Hih S &M e
Minimum lease payments under KERETIAZ
operating leases: HEES :
Land and buildings T MIEF 78,349 30,048
Computer equipment BB 5,799 6,256
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEEN S 4,955 2,550
Foreign exchange difference, net SNFERE N Z=%8 - JFEE 13 (2,771)
(Reverse of)/impairment losses on BIRP 28R
advances to customers (#E),/BEEE (3,977) 908
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets HeEREFEEERB 2R, (k) 484 (127)
Repair and maintenance (including iR EE(BFE
system maintenance) RiuE) 38,094 12,469
Quotemeter services WERS 11,087 8,549
Marketing, advertising and promotion THIGHEE  BE &
expense SEMAY 25,724 19,560
Equipment rental and servicing SRAEEE R ARG 35,591 22,513
Employee benefits costs (including EEEMNAZ(BE
directors’ remuneration and five EZERAS
highest paid employees (note 7 and 8)): S=%E8(M7K&8)) :
Salaries and allowances e = 276,195 151,745
Bonuses TE4T 44,553 134,561
Commission to accounts executives BPEEA2 223,347 240,344
Equity-settled share option expense VARG AN 37 1~F 2 BE R #E R 2
(note 31) (FF5E31) 13,425 2,685
Pension scheme contributions BRS &R 16,453 12,460
Less: Forfeited contributions R R ER (1,527) (597)
572,446 541,198
Interest expense for securities broking REBAHEERITREE
and margin financing operations: ES i\
— bank loans and overdrafts —HRITERREY 20,221 198,324
— other loans —HE® 11,375 10,342
— accounts payable to clients —EAREEZERR 3,802 48,286
— others — Efth 3 145
35,401 257,097
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

7 Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the period/year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

EEMs

AT AR YR E AR R R BB AR RGIF161 15
RERBEBR FEEEMEFE

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HE
20094 20074
6H30H 12A31H
1E18{@ A 1E121E A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Fees: wE
Executive directors WITES 2,250 1,500
Non-executive directors HHITEE 1,500 983
Independent non-executive directors B FERITES 1,050 700
4,800 3,183
Other emoluments: EAb S -
Executive directors: WITES

Salaries and allowances e KoERL 16,338 10,272
Bonuses (note (a)) TEAL(FI7E(@)) 9,822 28,018

Employee share option benefits {2 B BB IS S 7
(note (b)) (MF7E(b)) 2,339 468
Pension scheme contributions RARE IR 766 902
29,265 39,660
34,065 42,843

Bonuses include performance related bonuses, in which certain
executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments
which are determined as a percentage of the profit after taxation of
the Group.

During the prior year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details on the share option scheme
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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As at 30 June 2009
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7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the period/year were as follows:

7

EEMEw)

(a)

BYFHTES
BN FANTFBLIERTEE 2SN
T

For the For the

18 months 12 months

ended ended

30 June 31 December

2009 2009 2007

B Z2009F EZE20074F

6H30H 12H31H

L1818 A 1E121E A

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Man Mo Leung XER 375 250
Tsui Hing Chuen, William BES 375 250
Lau Wai Piu, Bill A E % 300 200
1,050 700

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the period/year
(12 months ended 31 December 2007: Nil).

BN A ED e BB IEITE
E2Hib#E (EZ=2007F12A831H1E12
&R : &)
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(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

EEMEw)

(b) BITEERFUTES

Employee Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
Fees allowances Bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
= Bife
we  HeRER A BRERR HE e WeusE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER FER FER
For the 18 months ended BZ20096 H30H
30 June 2009 1E18{E A
Executive directors: HiTES:
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry ERhb 1,350 - - - 18 1,368
Lo Lin Shing, Simon By - 4,725 3,080 - 127 7,932
Doo Wai Hoi, William HERE 900 - - - 18 918
Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter HIAH - 4,725 3,080 935 245 8,985
Lee Yiu Wing, William TR - 3,522 1,765 702 181 6,170
Chan Chi On, Derek RER - 3,366 1,897 702 177 6,142
2,250 16,338 9,822 2,339 766 31515
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew HEE 300 - - - - 300
Lam Wai Hon, Patrick WEH 300 = = = = 300
Cheung Wing Yui, Edward Rk = = = = = =
Ho Hau Chong, Norman )=k 300 - - - - 300
To Hin Tsun, Gerald I Ea(k 300 - - - - 300
Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo et 300 - - - - 300
1,500 - - - - 1,500
3,750 16,338 9,822 2,339 766 33,015
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7 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

(continued)

EEMEw)

(b) BITESERFIITES W)

Employee Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
Fees  allowances Bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration
B8 Bihe
we  HahEl T BIRERA HEE Mo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Fin Tin TiEn Ti5r Ti5r
For the 12 months ended HZ2007%12A31R
31 December 2007 1E12{8R
Executive directors: HTES:
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry BRE 900 = = = 12 912
Lo Lin Shing, Simon BiEy - 3,000 8,700 = 150 11,850
Doo Wai Hoi, William HES 600 - - - 12 612
Wong Shiu Hoi, Peter AR = 3,000 8,700 188 300 12,188
Lee Yiu Wing, William FR - 2,136 5113 140 214 7,603
Chan Chi On, Derek BRE%z — 2,136 5,505 140 2114 7,995
1,500 10,272 28,018 468 902 41,160
Non-executive directors: FaiTES:
Wong Kwok Kin, Andrew SRS 200 - - - - 200
Lam Wai Hon, Patrick WER 200 - - - - 200
Cheung Wing Yui, Edward ok 150 - - - - 150
Ho Hau Chong, Norman Gk 200 - - - - 200
To Hin Tsun, Gerald Ak 200 - - - - 200
Lee Ka Sz, Carmelo et 3 - - - - 3
983 - - - - 983
2483 10,272 28,018 468 902 42,143

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the period/year.

EEREAFALERBEMLHHELR
BRERIBUEMHE -
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As at 30 June 2009

R2009F6730H

8 Five highest paid employees 8 hIEFEEEZEE
The five highest paid employees during the period/year included BN/ FNhEF Rz EERE2E(HE
two (12 months ended 31 December 2007: three) directors, 200712 A31HE12M8A8 : 3R)EE - HEH
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7 above. Details S 7 EBER EXXMEE7E T o BN, ER T3
of the remuneration of the remaining three (12 months ended 31 Z(EZE2007F12A31HIE12(AAR  28) %S
December 2007: two) non-director, highest paid employees for HIEESRERE 2SS EN T ¢

the period/year are as follows:

For the For the

18 months 12 months

ended ended

30 June 31 December

2009 2007

BZE HZE

2009 20074

6A30H 12H31H

1F181E A 1E121@ A

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries and allowances e k2L 29,665 19,733
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHER 68 36
Employee share option benefits (note (a)) & 8 fEA&HEEF (Hi3E(a)) 210 23
29,943 19,792
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8 Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

LEFEREZEE®)

et TIEEN R FEERE AZM

T

Number of employees

EEAZ
For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
Bz HE
20094 20074
6H30H 12A31H
1IE18fE A 1E121@A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,000,001 727,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 728,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$16,000,001 to HK$17,000,000 16,000,00178 752 17,000,000/ 7T 1 1
3 2

During the prior year, share options were granted to two
non-director, highest paid employees in respect of his
services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised to the consolidated income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosure.

(a)

RESFE  2ussHREE (LFEF) 5t
Hp AR ERHE 2 IRFBERERRE -
FHBENGA M B MRMEIIRE -
WEBREZ AFERBBRANESRS
WaRRATER - 2N TEDN L A E
o ARZEREIARFEMBHRRE
EXZEMZIFERRRHRE ZHHH
B e
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9 Taxation expenses 9 BIEMAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBFERIMEBA/ EREEBEL 2 A5
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in JE R ML T %16.5% (20074 : 17.56% )
Hong Kong during the period/year. Taxes on profits assessable % o L E AR 2 FERRBR T TR IR AR S B4
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in EEBBERNRITED - REBRIED - REH
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing ZIBITREETE o

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HE
2009 20074
6H30H 12A31H
L1818 A 1E121E A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET

Current taxation — Hong Kong EABITE — B8
Charge for the year FRXEH 35,986 85,322
Over provision in prior years B EE R (16,496) _
Current taxation — Overseas N EAREIE — AN 1,295 502
Deferred taxation (note 29) RIERIE (i E29) (731) 6,505
Total taxation charge for the period/year  HiA /4 NFIIAES 14858 20,054 92,329
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9 Taxation expenses (continued) 9

The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the

HIER X ()

AEEZBBRADEMNBERETBRETEE 2HE

theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of Hong REREERNAT
Kong as follows:
For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HE
2009 20074
6H30H 12H31H
1H18{@ A 1128 A
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation A A R 208,382 582,560
Tax calculated at 16.5% B %16.5% (20074  17.56% )51 &

(2007: 17.5%) ZTRIE 34,383 101,948
Income not subject to tax BIARNTIIE 2 A (13,899) (19,553)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes FaJfifiz %+ 2,609 10,678
Over provisions in prior years BT ESRERE (16,496) =
Tax losses not recognised W EEIER 2 BB 18 14,136 3,394
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BABAWERER HEEE

tax losses (4,379) (4,043)
Recognition of deferred tax on tax BAF W EAER 2 RIS EIBRER

losses not recognised in prior years R (1,180) -
Effect of different overseas tax rates BIRERERHE (18) (206)
Others Hib 4,898 111
Taxation charge RIS H 20,054 92,329

The average effective tax rate of the Group was 9.6% for
the 18-month period ended 30 June 2009 (12 months ended
31 December 2007: 15.8%). The decrease is caused by a change
in the profitability of the Group's subsidiaries and against the
impact of the reduction in the Hong Kong tax rate from 17.5% to
16.5% during the period.

B ZE2009F6 A30B LL18fA A © ALE T3
B EH.6% (B E=2007F12A31H1E121E
A 15.8%) - BEFBITIEAREENBE AR Z
BIKFEY  URIZBNEBBEHI175%

FHE16.5% 2 LT -
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10 Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 10 ZA2 ARERFHE AELER

B F2009%6 A30 8 11818 A (LIRS « AAF
IESmEFRE 2 AR RIRERE AEBLRE
s34 1) 2.4 3% 189,526,000 7T (1 2 2007 4F
12831811218 8 : 241,755,000/ 7T) °

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the 18 months period ended 30 June 2009 includes
a profit of HK$89,526,000 (12 months ended 31 December 2007:
HK$241,755,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

170

statements of the Company.

11 Dividends 11 RE
For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
S HE
20094 20074F
6H30H 12A31H
1E18{@A 1E12{8A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividend declared for the interim period & Z2008%E6 A308 &
for 6 months end 30 June 2008 20076 A30H IE6EA 2
and 30 June 2007 B E IR 2 BR B
— HK5 cents (2007: HK13 cents) — ST RREEL
per ordinary share (20074 : 137%8{) 34,818 80,008
Final dividend paid in respect of the RMAEFIRN 2 REARRE
previous year 388 1,400
Proposed final dividend B R AR S
— HK8 cents (2007: HK25 cents) — BIRE ARSI
per ordinary share (20074 : 255841l) 56,516 163,562
91,722 244,970
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B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
20096 730H

1

12

Dividends (continued)

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 11 September
2008, the directors resolved to declare a first interim dividend
of HK5 cents per share in scrip form with a cash option (6
months ended 30 June 2007: HK13 cents per share in cash), to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Wednesday, 15 October 2008. The interim
dividend was paid on 28 November 2008, with a total of
HK$11,594,448 cash dividend paid to the shareholders and
23,991,899 shares were issued in scrip form.

On 7 October 2009, the directors of the Company declared a final
dividend of HK8 cents per share in scrip with a cash option (12
months ended 31 December 2007: HK25 cents per share in scrip
form with a cash option).

The proposed final dividend for the 18-month period is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of
the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period/year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the period/year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the period/year attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the period/year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

1

12

L 8=NE 9

2008F9AMBRITZARFIESEEEH L
EHERFEMMN2008F 104168 (2H=)BFIA
RARREMZ RRE R E R AR GRS
il WERA LA B A X DR - ERRAEE
WERER & (B Z2007F6 A30H 1E61E A : &k
138 - LIREHIR) o R HREH 20084 11
A28RIRN + & HIR(T11,594,448 BT %
BFRE - Wik E 75 R 81723,991,899
ARAR 17

200910378 « AARESEIRAMRKRE
BRARGSHEN - WRALUBRREFRDIR - 1
ARER AT AR € (B £ 2007412 A31H 1
12188 - BR25B - WERALBRREF RS
& - MERRRPEBINIIRS) ©

A181E A #fE 2 BR R HIR B ARG AR AR
REEERBFERG LIER - HAMER -

RRARARERFBEARGERER

BREAERMSEIREHA,FRAARFR
AFEANEGERFIARBA, FNEHETER
Rz i I9 R E -

SREFANSEIRESA,FRAR AR
A AEGRFGFTE - 5HERARNERR
MEFHEEAEGRERBR RN 2B
A ERNEETEREEE AR - WRR TR
RINEFHHE A2 PEEETEBRRERA
EATE s ER AT mRMETRERET -
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12 Earnings per share attributable to
the Company (continued)

equity holders of

12 XRTREFEAELERER &)

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BEREXRZEF
For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE BHZE
200945 20074
6H30H 12H31H
11818 A 1E121E A
HK$"000 HK$'000
FETT FHIT
Profit attributable to equity holders  ARATIIRAEH AFE(S T
of the Company 188,974 484,847
Weighted average number of BEITE @R 2 T £
ordinary shares in issue (F)
(in thousands) 684,530 614,981
Basic earnings per share BREARZF
(HK cents per share) (FREEL) 27.61 78.84
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREERF
For the For the
18 months 12 months
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
BZE HE
20094 20074
6H30H 12A31H
1E181E A 1E121E A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit attributable to equity holders A& B NS A A BT
of the Company 188,974 484,847
Weighted average number of BB TE B Z INRE I
ordinary shares in issue (F)
(in thousands) 684,530 614,981
Adjustments for share options BLEERRIE 2 FH 8
(in thousands) (Fp%) 430 6,825
684,960 621,806
Diluted earnings per share BREES AT
(HK cents per share) (RS 27.59 77.97
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R2009F6730H

13 Fixed assets 13 BEEE
Group REE
Computer
Leasehold  Leasehold  Furniture, software
land and improve- fixturesand ~ Computer and system
buildings ments  equipment hardware development Total
RELH HE Hh-%EB EREBAR
RETF NELE RkfE £ ARER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FET FET FET TR
30 June 2009 14200965300
At 1 January 2008: 12008F1 A18 :
Cost AR 3,092 52,872 44,331 68,362 86,704 255,361
Accumulated depreciation ZfEE (829) (45,959) (34,462) (55,239) (41,418) (177,907)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,263 6,913 9,869 13123 45,286 77,454
At 1 January 2008, net of 120081518
accumulated depreciation MR 2RmE 2,263 6,913 9,869 13123 45,286 71,454
Additions NE - 1117 6,354 8,980 61,758 84,809
Disposals HE - (364) (429) (139) - (932)
Depreciation ik (116) (5,348) (6,042) (10,718) (20,071) (42,295)
At 30 June 2009, net of 120096 A30H
accumulated depreciation MR 2R-mE 2,141 8918 9,752 11,246 86,973 119,036
At 30 June 2009: 120096 4308 :
Cost R 3,092 59,641 48,425 76,186 148,462 335,306
Accumulated depreciation ZHENE (945) (50,723) (38,673) (64,940) (61,489) (216,770)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,147 8,918 9,752 11,246 86,973 119,036
31 December 2007 4200712831R
At 1 January 2007: 120074 1A18 :
Cost AR 3,092 50,842 41,236 60,089 62,762 218,021
Accumulated depreciation ZfENE (762) (42,833) (32,346) (48,848) (29,769) (164,548)
Net carrying amount FEFE 2,340 8,009 8,890 11,241 32,993 63,473
At 1 January 2007, net of 1200741 A18
accumulated depreciation MR2kENE 2,340 8,009 8,890 11,241 32,993 63,473
Additions NE - 2,030 4,452 8,702 23,942 39,126
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKB AR - - - 1 - 1
Disposals HE - - (259) (1) - (260)
Depreciation & (77) (3,126) (3,214) (6,820) (11,649) (24,886)
At 31 December 2007, net of 12007%12A31H
accumulated depreciation MR 2R_mE 2,263 6,913 9,869 13,123 45,286 77,454
At 31 December 2007: 12007124318 :
Cost B 3,092 52,872 44,331 68,362 86,704 255,361
Accumulated depreciation 2HENE (829) (45,959 ) (34,462) (55,239) (41.418)  (177,907)
Net carrying amount EmFE 2,263 6,913 9,869 13,123 45,286 77,454
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13 Fixed assets (continued)

13 BEEEE®)

Company AT
Computer
Leasehold  Leasehold Furniture, software
land and improve- fixturesand ~ Computer and system
buildings ments  equipment hardware development Total
RELH HE Hh-%EB EREBAR
RETF NELE RkfE £ ARER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FET FET FET TR
30 June 2009 14200965300
At 1 January 2008: 12008F1 A18 :
Cost AR 1,178 29,837 25,140 219 62 56,436
Accumulated depreciation ZfEE (228) (23,617) (17,127) (190) (62) (41,224)
Net carrying amount REFE 950 6,220 8,013 29 = 15,212
At 1 January 2008, net of 120081518
accumulated depreciation MR 2RmE 950 6,220 8,013 29 - 15,212
Additions AE = 6,757 4,280 2 - 11,039
Disposals HE - (323) - - - (323)
Transfer to a subsidiary BREEHBAR - (237) (58) - - (295)
Depreciation nE (44) (4,453) (4,350) (17) - (8,864)
At 30 June 2009, net of 220096 A30H
accumulated depreciation N 2iEnE 906 7,964 7,885 14 = 16,769
At 30 June 2009: 120096 4308 :
Cost BA 1178 34,429 27,564 21 62 63,454
Accumulated depreciation ZRmE (272) (26,465) (19,679) (207) (62) (46,685)
Net carrying amount BREHE 906 7,964 7,885 14 - 16,769
31 December 2007 142007%12A831H
At 1 January 2007; 120071518 :
Cost AR 1,178 28,175 23,038 190 62 52,643
Accumulated depreciation ZfEE (199) (21,233) (15,997) (162) (60) (37,651)
Net carrying amount REFE 979 6,942 7,041 28 2 14,992
At 1 January 2007, net of 720071518
accumulated depreciation MR 2R_mE 979 6,942 7,041 28 2 14,992
Additions NE - 1,662 3,460 29 - 5,151
Disposals HE - - (259) - - (259)
Depreciation ik (29) (2,384) (2,229) (28) 2) (4,672)
At 31 December 2007, net of 120074124318
accumulated depreciation MR 2RmE 950 6,220 8,013 29 - 15,212
At 31 December 2007: 12007F12A318 :
Cost B 1,178 29,837 25,140 219 62 56,436
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (228) (23,617) (17,127) (190) (62) (41,224)
Net carrying amount BREHE 950 6,220 8,013 29 - 15,212
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13 Fixed assets (continued) 13 BEEE@)
The Group's leasehold land and buildings included above are EXFEAREEZAE LI REFURES
situated in Hong Kong and are held under the following lease BRI AEFEREES
terms:
Group
AEEH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20095 20074
6A30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At net carrying amount: REREFE ¢
Medium term leases FHEIFRE 2,147 2,263
14 Goodwill 14 BHE
The movement in goodwill during the period/year is as follows: LUAPE RN Eas R U
Group
AEE
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20095 20074
6A30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the period/year A%, 4] 9,854 854
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEHT B A A - 9,000
At the end of the period/year HAAR IR 9,854 9,854
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

14 Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are
reportable segments, for impairment testing:

° Financial planning and advisory services cash-generating unit;
and

e Asset and fund management services cash generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units is as follows:

14 EHE@)

BB RE R
SETRENR  EREBAMKEBZEED
DEETINBI 2D A 2R EELE B -

PBREINFARBREELEN R

EENESEERBRSELEMN

DEESREELEU BB ZREENT

Financial Asset
planning and and fund
advisory management
services services Total
MBERER EERES
o AR A EE R e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET
Carrying amount of goodwill P52~ BRE(E 854 9,000 9,854
(i) Financial planning and advisory services cash-generating unit () BIBREREAREE 2 EEEND

The recoverable amount of the financial planning and
advisory services has been determined based on value in
use calculation using cash flow projections covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 5% (2007: 5%)
and cash flows are using a growth rate of 15% (2007:
15%) which is determined based on past performance and
management'’s expectations for the market development.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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14 Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

(i) Asset and fund management services cash generating unit
The recoverable amount of the asset and fund management
services cash-generated unit has been determined based
on value in use calculation using cash flow projections
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
5% (2007: 5.5%) and cash flows are using a growth rate of
10% (2007: 20%) (for investment fund management) and
20% (2007: 30%) (for other fund management) which are
determined based on past performance and management’s
expectation for the market development.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the financial planning and advisory services and asset and fund
management cash-generating units for 30 June 2009 and 31
December 2007. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the period/year immediately before
the budget period/year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

14 EHE@)

EmERENEE)

(i) BERECEBREEELEN
BERECEERBESEESG 2T
WEeEDAFEREEAEEGTRER
EARitERERAFHR R REAE
o BeRETEAMERZ TEER5%
(20074 : 55%) * MRE K= RIEKA
10% (20074 : 20%) ' (BB EESEE
&) &%20% (20074 : 30% ) (FhE A E
SEEMS ) ZEER - WHREBEAR
BREBELUTSGHRZAMMETE -

&T#20094F6 A30H &%20074F 12 A31 H B 755
BRBARGREERESEERBREESE
BRUZEREEN  BEAETEERRE - U
THMEREETEEREIR RS RER
RIFTIIE 2 & EE2RE

HEEBREN - BIEEERE BB ENPIEE
EECEE  REEREHE FEAHN
FARGZFIEREN T ERRER
HH RS ERMELARESES -

PR — P A Z IR R B R B IR AT R Rt
ERRMBEN A ERRZLLE -
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15 Other intangible assets 15 HtBEEE
Group
AEE
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6A30H 12A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Cost, net of accumulated amortisation AN - HIG RIEE Y 4,609 4,609
Cost (gross carrying amount) A (BREARE) 8,131 8,131
Accumulated amortisation Z2iEH (3,522) (3,622)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 4,609 4,609
Upon the adoption of HKAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’ in 2005, the AR EERWER - N2005FHAE BT
Group's eligibility rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange AERFEIQSR[ B EE B - NEBREZAT R
and the Futures Exchange are considered to have indefinite lives, ARPMETEE ERENERRERRE -
which are not amortised, as the trading rights have no expiry date. HUS BRHZ#E - THMNE B ST LER|ZE 385
The accumulated amortisation is brought forward from prior years (MEREEDR  2EBHEIEANEBEFE
before the adoption of HKAS 38 (“intangible assets”). FTHE -
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16 Other assets

16

Hitb&E

Group
AEEH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6H30H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At cost: LR AE -
Deposits with the Stock Exchange: RERFZIES
Compensation fund EEES 300 300
Fidelity fund ERE® 300 300
Dealers’ deposit with the Securities Hs NI E BRI
and Futures Commission ZEER RS 350 350
Stamp duty deposit ENFER RS 500 500
Contributions to The Central RO AEE K U KA
Clearing and Settlement REESHK
System Guarantee Fund 350 370
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong NFEBERREE
Securities Clearing Company Limited ERATIZAZE 300 300
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options ERME R EREEEMR
Clearing House Limited BRARZHES 1,937 6,420
Deposit with HKFE Clearing REBHELEEER AT
Corporation Limited in contribution fEET2kE
to the reserve fund 1,500 1,500
Cost of membership for a seat at EECIREEFHS
The Chinese Gold and Silver @R
Exchange Society 486 486
Compensation fund paid to The T RINBEHERSZET
Shenzhen Stock Exchange Co., Ltd. BRAFICHEEES 300 300
Settlement Risk Fund paid to ¥ EiFEEPREL
The Shanghai Securities Central HEE N T2 R E R
Clearing & Registration Corporation HEES 387 387
Others Hith 315 116
7,025 11,329
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from/ 17
to subsidiaries

The investments in subsidiaries and the amounts due from/to
subsidiaries are as follows:

REE AR ZRER B, FESH B

DB ZFEA

RIE QR 2 RE R YL FET P B R R 2 5K
BT

Company
b NN

30 June 31 December

2009 2007

2009 20074

6H30H 12H31H

HK$"000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Unlisted shares/investments, at cost JELEMRRG 1RE - ERANME 105,377 105,377
Due from subsidiaries JE W Bt B A B 2 5ROE 1,784,687 1,643,531
Due to subsidiaries FEIFT B R A2 3R (804,009) (466,245)
1,086,055 1,282,663

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of these
amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from/

to subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of principal subsidiaries are as follows:

17 RHBRARZRERER FENSHE

DR ZRE ()

ITEMBARFBNOT

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Nominal value
of issued
share capital/
amount of

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
KL BRITREZ RPEELZ
i) ZHE/ REABS
PEEL LE EWELXSH E# i TEEH
E-wealth Club Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Club association
EIEgERAA BB 1,000,000/ 7T SR
iT Technology Company Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Limited BE 28T REZR
ERBARBAR R
iT Technology Holdings Inc. British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands (E REZR
EERLHS
iT Technology (Shenzhen) People's HK$4,000,000 - 100 Provision of software
Company Limited! Republic of 4,000,000 T development services
BEREARRER ORI China (“PRC") TRAR BN 2 AR
BRAR hEE ARAAE
(TR )
Ocean Pilot Investments British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands E RERR
EERAHS
Prosper Ideal Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BERARAH BB 287 REER
Taifook Asset Management Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited BB 13,000,000/ T and asset management
ARBEEERAR R REERKEEER
Taifook Asset Management Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 - 100 Proprietary trading
Nominees Limited &% 6,000,000/ 7T B2EE

AREEEEREABRAR
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17 RMBRARZREREY FEASHE
AR ZRIE (M)

17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from/
to subsidiaries (continued)

182

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Nominal value
of issued
share capital/
amount of

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
FMRL BRITRE 2 ANAELZ
TR ZHE/ ENER
ARER TEwH BEWEXSH E# i TEXH
Taifook Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 - 100 Bullion contracts
ABEEEBRA B 7,000,000 7T dealing and trading
BEEBANEERRS
Taifook (BVI) Limited British Virgin HK$11,576 100 - Investment holding
Islands 11,576/ 7T REZR
EEENES
Taifook Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 100 Provision of corporate
NERBERRAA &k 20,000,000 7T advisory services
R R AR
Taifook E-wealth Club Inc. British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands 17T REARR
RERNES
Taifook Finance Company Hong Kong HK$300,000,002 - 100 Investment holding,
Limited iy (Non-voting money lending and
NEHBERAA deferred? securities trading
HK$100,700,001) RARR - BEEH
300,000,002/ 7T BHEE
(BRERELR
100,700,00177C)
Tai Fook Fund Management Bermuda US$12,000 - 100 Inactive
Company Limited BRE 12,000 7T EmER
Tai Fook Fund Managers British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands (ES REZRR
NEESLBEERAR EBERLES
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17

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from/

to subsidiaries (continued)

17 RHBRARZRERER FENSHE

DR ZRE ()

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Nominal value
of issued
share capital/
amount of

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
B30 BRITRE 2 ANAELZ
R ZHE/ ENER
ARER TEwH BEWEXSH E# i TEXH
Taifook Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100 Futures and options
ANBHEER A Bt 50,000,00058 7T broking and trading
E YL S
AKREE
Taifook Information British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Systems Inc. Islands (E REER
EERLHS
Taifook Information Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 - 100 Provision of information
Systems Limited BB 11,000,000/ 70 technology solutions
AREAZRAR R REEARBBANR
Taifook Information British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Technology Inc. Islands EI REZR
EEENAS
Taifook Investment PRC HK$2,000,000 = 100 Provision of investment
Consultancy (Guangzhou) e 2,000,000/ 70 consultancy services
Company Limited’ R B ARMRE
AERER AR
(BM)ERARD
Taifook Investment PRC US$700,000 - 100 Provision of investment
Consultancy (Shanghai) s 700,000% T consultancy services
Company Limited’ R B ARMRE
AERER AR
(E8)BRAR
Taifook Investment British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Management Inc. Islands 1%L REFER
EERLHS
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17
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Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from/

to subsidiaries (continued)

17 RMBRARZREREY FEASHE
AR ZRIE (M)

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage of

incorporation/ share capital/ equity attributable

registration amount of to the Company
Name and operations paid-up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities

B30 A BRTREZ VNG g
TR ZHE/ ENER
ARER REWH BEWELXSH E# i TEXH
Taifook Investment Managers Hong Kong HK$47,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Limited BE 47,000,000 T asset and fund
NERBLBEERAR management services
RUEEERESERRY
Taifook Investment Services Hong Kong HK$42,500,000 - 100 Securities broking
Limited &b 42,500,000/ T and dealing
NEREBRBERAR BHRELREE
Taifook Lexton Consultants Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 60 Provision of financial
Limited* BB 5,000,000 7T advisory services
ANBEERERER AR TR T MR
Taifook Lexton Wealth Hong Kong HK$1,240,000 - 60 Provision of financial
Management Limited? BE 1,240,000/ T, planning services
ANBEIBAIZ R B R AR and financial and
insurance products
brokerage
RAEABREIR -
R EE R
REERER
Taifook Management Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of
Consultancy Limited BE 25T consultancy services
NErEERBRERAT AR RS
Taifook Management Services Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of
Company Limited BB 287 management services
ARERREERAA RILERRY
Taifook Net Inc. British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands (E REER
REENES
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17

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from/

to subsidiaries (continued)

17 RMBRARZREREY FEASHE
AR ZRIE (M)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Nominal value
of issued
share capital/
amount of

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Name and operations paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
FMRL BRITRE 2 ANAELZ
TR FHE/ ENER

ARER TEwH BEWEXSH E# i TEXH
Taifook Net Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Inactive
AEBERAR BE 1,000,00077¢ EEXK
Taifook Nominees Company Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100 Securities trading
Limited BE 50,000,000/ 7 EHZH

ARREABR AT
Taifook On-line Inc. British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands (ESH REZR

EEENES

Taifook On-line Services Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 - 100 Provision of electronic
Limited BE 6,000,000/ 70 financial services
ANEETRLERBERAA RIS TS MRS
Taifook Research Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of
ABERAREB AR Bt 1,000,000 7¢ research services
RALAFR IR
Taifook Securities Company Hong Kong HK$600,000,000 - 100 Securities broking and
Limited b 600,000,00078 T dealing and leveraged
NERHFBERAA foreign exchange trading
EAREREER - AR
BINEEE
Taifook Securities Nominees Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of nominee
Limited a5 28T and custodian services
AEEAREABRAR REREARRE RS
Taifook Wealth Management Hong Kong HK$3,500,000 - 100 Provision of financial
Group Limited BE 3,500,000/ 70 planning services

ABEIEEHMEBERAA

BRI R B RS
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17 Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from/
to subsidiaries (continued)

! iT Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited, Taifook Investment
Consultancy (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Taifook Investment
Consultancy (Shanghai) Company Limited are registered as wholly-
foreign-owned enterprises under the People’s Republic of China law.

2 The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends,
attend or vote at general meetings and receive any surplus in a
return of capital, winding-up or otherwise in respect of the first
HK$100,000,000,000,000 thereof.

# Subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The aggregate

net assets of subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
approximates 0.42% of the Group’s net assets.

18 Interests in an associate/a jointly-controlled entity

17 RMBRARZREREY EASHE
AR ZRIE (M)

! BEREMBECRIDBRAF - KIBREZEA
BRE(EMN) BRATRABKREBABER (L
BARATEREFEARKMBEZEIMA
SNEBAMREE

2 BREREERYLTMEZAME - HEER
KAWEAABXKUE?HJ TR USRS
HAb 150 T2 #100,000,000,000,0007# T2 fF
AR TR B ERFR

# I 3F M 2R R oK B R TR B AR AR A I
DA o W IR BB R AT R FE TR
MEBAREEFEREAEE L EEFEY
0.42% °

18 MEE QT HEZREIEE o ES

Group
rEH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074F
6H30H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of net assets EIHFEE 9,119 2,795
Due from a jointly-controlled entity JE UL R ) B BE SRR - 450
9,119 3,245

During the period, the Group transferred 50,000 shares of its
investment in CMTF Asset Management Limited to the other
shareholder, reducing its beneficiary interest from 50% to 49%
and its voting right from 50% to 49%. As a result of the transfer,
the investment in CMTF Asset Management Limited was
reclassified from a jointly-controlled entity to an associate.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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18 Interests in an associate/a jointly-controlled entity 18 RE&E AT HEZ4I SR o #EH

(continued) (#)
Particulars of the associate as at 30 June 2009 are as follows: 7200966 A30 A 2B & A B 2 s BEEH I
T~
Place of Particulars
incorporation of issued % interest Principal
Name and operations shares held activity
AR 2RITRAG s
NGRS 1 b B =3 Bk FEEK
CMTF Asset Management Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 49% Asset
HEABEEEEGRAA Eib ordinary shares management
5,000,000% & @ A% BEEEE
The associate/jointly-controlled entity, which is unlisted, is Bt AE HRARHEEAIE LA HRAAR
indirectly held by the Company. EERA -
The Group's share of the results and aggregated assets and REE P 20099F6 A30H &2007F 12 A31HfE
liabilities of its associate/jointly controlled entity as at 30 June EEBE AR/ HAEHERE  ZEHBEE
2009 and 31 December 2007 are as follows: MadEmT
Profit
attributable
to equity
Name Assets Liabilities Revenue holders
REEFEA
=1 BE 8fE& WA PE(RE R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR TETT

30 June 2009 200946 H30H
CMTF Asset Management HRAEEEER
Limited EEAT 10,346 1,227 12,136 6,324
31 December 2007 2007%12H31H
CMTF Asset Management HEaXEEEER
Limited BRAT] 3,307 512 340 198
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19 Available-for-sale investments 19 AHHERE
Group
REH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6A30H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Listed equity investments in Bz EmiRE
Hong Kong, at fair value "E - BATE 20,075 35,644
Unlisted equity investments, JEETARAERE -
at fair value: BAFEE
Hong Kong B = 126,516
Mainland China (Note) A B A e (B ) 13,000 34,000
33,075 196,160
An analysis of the issuers of A ERE T
available-for-sale investments g2 DT
is as follows:
Equity investments : IR E
Corporates NG| 33,075 196,160
Note:The balance represents promoter foreign shares of Changmao Mz REBRKRREREVECEIEROHERAF

Biochemical Engineering Company Limited (“Changmao”), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the
Stock Exchange. Subject to certain restrictions on transfer and upon
obtaining the requisite approvals from, among other bodies, the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Stock Exchange,
the promoter foreign shares may be convertible into listed H shares
and shall thereafter carry the same rights and obligations of those
listed H shares. The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity
investments, mainly comprising the promoter foreign shares of
Changmao, are based on the quoted market prices of the listed H
shares of Changmao.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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19 Available-for-sale investments (continued)

The movement in available-for-sale investments is summarised as

follow:

1

(<]

AHHERE®)

AR ERELSHAMT -

Group
AEEH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6A30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the period/year 24 FE 4] 196,160 146,258
Additions NE - 84,070
Disposal k= - (89,266)
Classified as assets/liabilities held for sale #FH{EHELE A& (104,501) -
Fair value changes transferred ERENESEMHEE S
to the investment revaluation reserve N EEE) (52,662) 37,316
Fair value changes released to HERTAGERERZ
consolidated income statement NEEEE)
on disposal - 17,782
Impairment loss on available-for-sale RERE WS TR 2 ]
investments charged to HERE R ERE
consolidated income statement (5,922) -
At the end of the period/year HAMR /4R 33,075 196,160
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20 Advances to customers 20 BTFEFZEX
Group
rEH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
2009 20074
6H30H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Loans to margin clients HEEFEZEX 1,734,335 2,810,829
Accrued interest FERTH B - 17,256
1,734,335 2,828,085
Less: Impairment allowance S OB RS (7,667) (11,829)
1,726,668 2,816,256
(a) The movements in impairment allowance of advances to (@ RERIBERFEZGETEP BN EME
customers, all assessed individually, are as follows: BB
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6A30H 12HA31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the period/year  RAEI¥,F4) 11,829 12,113
Impairment losses recognised ERERRERE 143 795
Reversal of impairments losses B[Ol EE R (4,120) -
Amount written off as uncollectible  Hifi$5 &~ el Uk Bl 2 FX 18 (185) (1,079)
At the end of the period/year RHEAR R 7,667 11,829
The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is RIFARBEEZMERERE - TR B ANEEER
determined by the discounted market value of the collateral ZHEBRZITENEMETE -
securities accepted by the Group.
The majority of the loans to margin clients are secured by ABHOBTFHFERF2ERAHABE KA
the underlying pledged securities and are interests bearing. BHEEMEEF S - R2009F6 A30H -
As at 30 June 2009, advances to customers of HK$1,727 1,727,000,000 /& 7T ( 2007 £ 12 A 31 B :
million (31 December 2007: HK$2,828 million) was secured 2,828,000,000/87T) 28 TR ZRATIFER
by securities pledged by the customers to the Group as FRAAEEEMZz BHEABERRMER - X
collateral with undiscounted market value of HK$10,759 HraEMIE A10,759,000,00078 7T (2007 12 A
million (31 December 2007: HK$17,690 million). 318 :17,690,000,000/&7T) °
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20 Advances to customers (continued)

(b)

Among the advances to customers, HK$1,604 million,
HK$122.6 million and HK$7.7 million represent advances
that are neither past due nor impaired, advances being
past due but not impaired and impaired loans respectively.
Advances being past due but not impaired represent 7.1%
of the advances to customers. An impairment allowance
of HK$7.7 million (31 December 2007: HK$11.8 million) has
been provided (note (a)).

Advances to customers classified under past due but not
impaired represent those receivables from customers who
have outstanding unfilled margin call position.

All advances to customers are secured by listed securities
and collateral. The Group maintains a list of approved stocks
for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio.

Any excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call
which the customers have to made good the shortfall.

As of 30 June 2009, approximately 5.1%, 0.3% and 1.7%
of the entire advances to customers are overdue for 0 — 30
days, 31 — 90 days and above 90 days respectively. All the
above overdue advances to customers are fully secured
by listed securities held by the Group as collateral with
undiscounted market value of HK$1,434 million.

20

BIEFZBRE)
b TEHFEFLZBHES - I EHHR

B8R BOBEERECB2RARE
BB E 5 Bl A 1,604,000,000 7 7T
122,600,000 % 7T . 7,700,000 % 7T ° &,
BHARREs BTG TEP 2R
7.1% ° BERLULEHREE 7,700,000/
JL(20074F12 B31H : 11,800,000/ 7T )
(FftEE(a)) °

B AT RBERAENE T ES 2 DK
SR SRS RS N A 2%
PR -

Bk TEP 225 h LTRSS R ERR
TR - REBRE —HERAMRMDB
B NIRRT ERERRL R THRE

h
N

fHEBEE R R - QI RIRSBHR
;o MEPAGHEZER -

720096 A30H © 2L THEF 28K
FHI51% ~ 0.3% K% 1.7%E 9 Bl E
30H “31E90H BB AL » LiltFiAE
BT EP 28 B2 Sk A S EI R

5 2 RYTRET(E A 1,434,000,0008 7T
2 FTBSIERAE -
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21 Accounts receivable 21 FEWERR
Group
AEE
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094F 20074
6A30H 12A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAIT
Accounts receivable from: PATNEEAE 2 FEURBREX ¢
— Clients = 47,534 178,629
— Brokers, dealers and clearing house — 4 R REEFT 1,043,292 488,659
— Subscription of new shares in IPO —REEFIR LT 2 FR D
(Note) (B3E) 1,646,881 -
— Others —Hfth 8,262 16,419
2,745,969 683,707
Less: Impairment allowance o RE RS - (100)
2,745,969 683,607
Note: Accounts receivable from subscription of new shares in IPO are MisE  SREEFTAR ET0 .2 SRR 1) FEE 4 2 FEUR R EL

£2009%6 A30H It EFER1ELENE

& -

settled within 1 week after the financial year end of 30 June 2009.

There are no impaired accounts receivables as of the balance MEEER - WEREME EUERR - BIER
sheet dates. The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable is as KRB AT -
follows:
Group
rEH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
2009 20074F
6H30H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current or overdue within 3 months BNEASL31E A A8 & 2,743,072 678,322
Between 4 and 6 months AZ6fE A 2,099 2,783
Between 7 and 12 months 72128 A 151 2,307
Over 1 year A1 F 647 195
2,745,969 683,607

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to maintain
tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable in order to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly monitored by

management.
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

22

23

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

22 FANFIE > BERHMEWIRE

Group Company
] AT
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2009 2007 2009 2007
20094 20074 20095 20074
6A30A 12A31H 6A30A 12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitzx TR THT TR FEL
Prepayments, deposits and BAFE - &e
other debtors RE KRR 40,510 46,750 2,985 4,682
Due from related companies [ NG QE] 23 - 290 - -
40,510 47,040 2,985 4,682

Neither of the above balances is past due nor impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances related to
receivables for which there was no past history of default.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

Following a plan to divest certain investment funds managed by
the Group, the assets and liabilities of certain investment funds of
the Group have been classified and presented as held for sale and
carried at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair value less
costs to sell.

Their carrying values are recovered principally through sale
transactions rather than through continuing use in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
operations”.

23

bt e EE B OR(E o St A LSSz
MIBEETS MBELEEL 2 RUYRIA

REREZEERAR

BRE—AHEREBER 2 ETREES 25
g ARBEETREESZEEREBEHNE
R 2FIRFHERE - WIRHREERRTER
HEKRAME 2 RIEEIIR

HERmEREE B MBI E E R E 6551
EZIRBEERCRKRIEES]  TEBBHE
RS MIEREER TAMD -
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As at 30 June 2009

R2009F6730H

23 Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

(continued)

Details of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale were as

follows:

(a) Assets classified as held for sale

23 BEFECEEREE®)

DERFKEFEZEERBEHBOT

(a) BEREZEE

30 June 31 December
2009 2007
2009F 20074
6A30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
— Financial assets at fair value —RATEFABRZ
through profit or loss B EE 23,860 -
— Cash and bank balances —Re RIBITHET 10,563 =
— Other current assets/ —HihmnsEE A
investment 45,951 -
Total #Et 80,374 -

(b) Liabilities classified as held for sale

(b) HERFEZAE

30 June 31 December

2009 2007

20094F 20074

6H30H 12A31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Accounts payable JEISHBRFX 2,057 =
Other liabilities EMEE 7,717 =
9,774 -
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

24 Financial investments at fair value through profit or 24 EAFEABRZHERE
loss

Group
£8
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074F
6A30H 12A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Held for trading: BIEEE :
Listed equity investments, TR E
at fair value: BATE :
—in Hong Kong —REE 20,176 130,057
— in overseas (including — BN BIEFR B A ih)
Mainland China) = 859
Unlisted investment funds, FETREES -
at fair value: BATE :
— in overseas (including —REINBIEF B A )
Mainland China) 2,452 3,369
22,628 134,285

An analysis of issuers of financial investments at fair value

through profit or loss is as follows:

S

BAVEFARSEZPBRE ZETASTN

30 June 31 December
2009 2007
2009 20074
6A30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT

Equity securities: RAFES
Bank and other financial institutions 4877 % ELfib & gkt = 14,825
Corporate entities NGIN= 22,628 119,460
22,628 134,285
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

25 Cash held on behalf of customers

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with authorised
institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as cash
held on behalf of customers under the current assets section of
the consolidated balance sheet and recognised the corresponding
accounts payable (note 26) to respective clients on grounds that
it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies.
The cash held on behalf of customers is restricted and governed
by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

25

REFBEZEE

AEENRABERSIBIERRP - UFK
EPRLEREBBREPMELZFA - KEE
B EEPRBENEREAEERBRZAY
BEATZREFEZRE  UREBHARE
PHRIEZEMBRIIAE EEEZER LM
RRENTHREEP ZER(E26) - KT
FHRAZReX B S MHEERIIETES L
E(FPRIE)RBAR SRR E -

26 Accounts payable 26 FEERRM

Group

REH
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074F
6H30H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

Accounts payable to: ATEEZ AR
— Clients = 4,647,021 4,264,216
— Brokers, dealers and — D X P R AT

clearing house 43,834 5,181
— Others —Efth 3,214 35,936
4,694,069 4,305,333

The majority of the accounts payable balances is repayable
on demand except where certain accounts payable to clients
represent margin deposits received from clients for their trading
activities under normal course of business. Only the excess
amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated are
repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payments
immediately within 1 business day. There is no overdue accounts
payable balance as of the balance sheet dates.

Except for the accounts payable to clients which bear interest at
0.001% as at 30 June 2009 (31 December 2007: 0.5% - 1%), all
the accounts payable are non-interest bearing.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables placed in
trust accounts with authorised institutions of HK$3,661,886,000
(31 December 2007: HK$3,361,897,000), Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited, Stock Exchange Options
Clearing House and other futures dealers totaling HK$355,659,000
(31 December 2007: HK$212,156,000).
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REBEBRNFIESXANBFEMEXNEZ
fo MEAEER - WREHRENRRAER o

720096 A30H © BERN TEFE ZRMKIZ
0.001% (2007412 A31H : 0.5% = 1%):t &
G FTE R BRI TET B ©

BN TFREEZERNBIETHRRTEEA
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

27 Other payables and accruals

27 HMEMABRRZESTFIE

Group Company
£8 NG|
30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2009 2007 2009 2007
20094 2007 2009F 20075
6H30H 12A318 6A30H 12A318
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT THT TET
Accruals and other liabilities E:taEREMERE 52,933 149,351 12,246 32,122
Other payables are non-interest bearing and are repayable within HibEMIRRA T B REM FAEE -
1 year.
28 Loans and other borrowings 28 ERRHMEE
Group Company
30June 31 December 30June 371 December
2009 2007 2009 2007
20094 20074 20095 20074
6H30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THT TET
Current Liabilities MHaE
Secured borrowing: BEMEES
Bank overdrafts (note (a), (b)) F17E Y (i), b)) 31,737 422 - -
Bank loans (note (b), (c)) FITE R (b)) 235,000 564,000 - -
Unsecured borrowing; ERMEE
Bank loans (note (c)) FITER () 1,817,500 20,000 47,500 =
Other loans (note (c), (d) HiEFR(KizE(e),(d) 100,000 542,135 - -
2.184,237 1,126,557 47,500 -
Non-Current Liabilities FEENE
Unsecured borrowing: ERRES
Bank loans BITER - 245,625 - 245,625
2,184,237 1,372,182 47,500 245,625
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B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

28 Loans and other borrowings (continued)
(a) The secured bank overdrafts are repayable on demand.

(b) Bank overdrafts and bank loans of HK$267 million (31
December 2007: HK$564 million) are secured by the listed
shares held by the Group as security for advances to
customers (with the customers’ consent) of HK$578 million
(31 December 2007: HK$3,701 million).

(c) Bank loans and other loans are repayable on demand or
within 1 year.

(d) Asat 31 December 2007, the unsecured other loans included
a loan of HK$500 million from the immediate holding
company. The entire amount of loan was repaid during the
period. Interest expense of HK$6,021,000 (12 months ended
31 December 2007: HK$2,318,000), calculated at HIBOR
plus 0.8% per annum, was paid during the period.

The HK$100 million unsecured other loan was obtained from
an independent third party, charged at 4% per annum.

All the Group's bank borrowings bear interest at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.675% to 0.9% or
at a fixed rate from 0.9% to 1.15% per annum (31 December
2007: HIBOR plus 0.25% to 1.25% per annum).

29 Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance

28

29

EXREMEE®)
(a) HEMBITELEEEREE -

(b) R17iE X M ER1T E F267,000,000 7% T
(2007412 A318 : 564,000,000/ 7T) T3
UAREEEAGL TREEZBR(EEFR
& T ) 578,000,000 7T (2007 F 12 A 31
B :3,701,000,000/70) 2 HIFRI5E
2 FTIR IR o

() MITERREMERAREREERIN
FAEE -

(d F2007FE12A8318 - EBEHEMERE
FRHEEER A AR M 2 B 51500,000,000
BT ZEREHEREPREE - 786
6,021,000/ 70 (# 22007612 A31H
1E1218 A : 2,318,000/ L) * ILEBRTT
FEEFEDBMEFROSEE - DR
NIERE -

100,000,0007% 7T K fE K R E b B FOR 5
—ZBIEZF  RFEFRAEE -

REEFARITEEIREBIRITRZER
BB IMNFRZE0.675EZ0.9E L EFE FF|
RHO0.9EZE1.15E(2007F12A318

EBBRTRAERESMEFNR2ESE
1.25[F )5t E °

EEBIREE Af

ERATEREANAISASARIAEERRAHIAE
IR - MELEAEES KR — e - Bl
AR IEEE A B EAREE - 5T A
EEEEE  TIEREFREEEREBRAT
BE -

sheet.
Group
568
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6H30H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FiBT
Deferred tax assets to be settled BIEZ 2B AZENZ
after more than 12 months IRIER R B B 10,598 1,666
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled HBIEZR12EA%ZENZ
after more than 12 months EEFHEAE (14,207) (6,006)
(3,609) (4,340)
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As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

The Company does not have any deferred tax assets and liabilities

29 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)

as at 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2007.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
period/year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets - Group

29 EEBBEE EE@)

7200946 A30 A 20076124318 - AAT
BT FIREFIAEELAE -

EEBREE R BEREN,FRZ 28 (L F
FHRARIER — B ADERE RN Z AERAD AT

EERIREE - AREE

Accelerated
depreciation

allowance Tax losses Total

IETERE HIEEE &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT FAT

At 1 January 2007 20071 A18 1,693 927 2,620

Deferred tax charged to the FARGEWERA

consolidated income statement kg 2 ERERL IR

during the year (note 9) (FfF5E9) (27) (927) (954)
At 31 December 2007 and 72007124311

1 January 2008 20081 H1H 1,666 — 1,666
Deferred tax credited to the ARG A =R
consolidated income statement SR 2 IRFERL IR

during the period (note 9) (Kt&E9) 2,799 7,657 10,456

At 30 June 2009 720096 H30H 4,465 7,657 12,122
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As at 30 June 2009
20096 730H

29 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities — Group

29 EEBBEE EE@)

EERBRE-FNEEH

Accelerated
depreciation

allowance

IR ERE

HK$'000

FAET

At 1 January 2007 720071 A18 455

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FRREREREERA

income statement during the year (note 9) Mk 2 BEFIA(MI7E9) 5,651

At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 7200712 A31H K&2008%1 A1H 6,006
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated HIRR SR A R R IR 2 BERIB

income statement during the period (note 9) (K7E9) 9,725

At 30 June 2009 200956 H30H 15,731

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately HK$29,138,000
(31 December 2007: HK$21,807,000) in respect of losses
amounting to approximately HK$176,592,000 (31 December
2007: HK$124,611,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry date.
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As at 30 June 2009
20096 730H

30 Share capital

30

R

30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6H30H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Authorised: EERRA
2,000,000,000 (31 December 2007: 2,000,000,0000% (20074128318 :
2,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000%) &R&HEE
HK$0.10 each 0.108 T2 L @x 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREBREA
706,448,228 (31 December 2007: 706,448,228[%(2007F 12 A31H
653,949,699) ordinary shares of 653,949,699 ) I HEE
HK$0.10 each 0.10%8 72 L@k 70,645 65,395
The movements in issued share capital were as follows: BEITIRAZEINT ¢
Number of
shares Issued
inissue  share capital
ERITROEE BERITRA
HK$'000
T
As at 1 January 2007 720071 A1H 587,519,699 58,752
New shares issued due to exercise of [A {7 k&I #E M 21T RO ET A
share options (note (a)) (Kt7E(@)) 28,430,000 2,843
Share allotment R B 2% 38,000,000 3,800
As at 31 December 2007 720074128318 653,949,699 65,395
As at 1 January 2008 720081 81H 653,949,699 65,395
New shares issued due to exercise of [F77{5 B AL RE M 347 THY
share options (note (a)) A% (FiE(a)) 1,901,830 190
Scrip dividends issued (note (b)) B BTN B E (M s (b)) 64,564,699 6,457
Share buyback (note (c)) & EEE (M RE(c) (13,968,000) (1,397)
As at 30 June 2009 120096 BA30H 706,448,228 70,645
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30 Share capital (continued)

31

(@) During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, 1,901,830 (12
months ended 31 December 2007: 28,430,000) share options
were exercised at subscription prices from HK$0.907 per share to
HK$1.20 per share (12 months ended 31 December 2007: HK$0.94
per share to HK$1.20 per share), resulting in the issue of 1,901,830
(12 months ended 31 December 2007: 28,430,000) new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each for a total consideration of HK$1,877,000 (12
months ended 31 December 2007: HK$28,591,000).

(b) At the annual general meeting held on 29 May 2008, the
shareholders of the Company have approved a final dividend of
HK25 cents per share in scrip form with a cash option. 40,572,800
shares were issued in scrip form.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 11 September 2008,
the directors resolved to declare an interim dividend of HK5 cents
per share in scrip form with a cash option (6 months ended 30 June
2007: HK13 cents per share in cash). 23,991,899 shares were issued
in scrip form.

(c)  During the 18 months ended 30 June 2009, the Company bought
back 13,968,000 shares from the market at an average price from
HK$0.905 to HK$0.937 per share.

Share option scheme

On 23 August 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”). A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules, is set out as follows:

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted for the purpose of
attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees to strive
towards long term performance targets set by the Company and
its subsidiaries and at the same time allowing the participants to
enjoy the results of the Company attained through their effort
and contribution. Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to any full time employees, executive and non-
executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associates.
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(a)  E ZE20099F6A30H1E181@A + 1,901,8301%
(220074128318 11218 B : 28,430,000
17) R E S IR FMR0.907 8 T EFAX1.20/8 T
(HZ=2007F12 A31 A L1218 A : &R%0.9475
TLEGR1.2087T) 2 RBERITE - BEAR
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FREIE0. 1087 2 ¥ BAR ©

(b)  M2008F5A29B RITZREBEFAE £+ &K
AR B AR BT = (HI R &R i2H)
Ik B R HRS B % 257 © 40,572,800 % B 17
FEUBRR BT -

M2008F9AMBETT 2 ESFEGR L &S
REFEUABRR B (RS EERE) SR H
A% S A% 5780 (81200746 A30 A LE6{E A -
TR - LABREHIR) © 23,991,899/ AR (1
EUBRR B EET -

(c) EZE2009%6A30H1L18@A @ ARAFIZFY
B8 EZA%0.905/8 L £ 0.937 B L iS5 g E
13,968,0000%f% 17 °
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31 Share option scheme (continued) 31 BREE @)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) but the Company may
seek approval of its shareholders at general meetings to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit, save that the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted by directors
of the Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval by the shareholders of the Company at general meetings
where such limit is refreshed. Options previously granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating such 10% limit as refreshed. Notwithstanding the
aforesaid in this paragraph, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time
to time. As at 30 June 2009, the total number of shares available
for issue under the 2002 Share Option Scheme was 31,243,181
shares, which represented approximately 4.42% of the issued
share capital of the Company at that day. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of the Company’s shares
in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at a
general meeting.

1B 1E2002F B AR M AT &I K AR R (] H At BB AR
RERTEE TR 2 BREEERBITE - Bt
el FHTZHEERMHEE - TSBIBAAA
FERAN2002 FF BB AR IE ST 81 A EAE 1TAR 1D 48 L
Z10% ([EramEmea]) - HEARD A ATRRE
SRR EE AT EIRERLE - BARQ
RIE FRZB2002F EARMERT 8| R A A RIERIE
BT EI AT IR LR S Sem RO B
B - TMEEBARR R A &8 EE
HEREZ BARQAIEEITIRA10%  RatHE
ILEEEH 2 10%REE - 2 51 2R 152002
FREMRME ST B R AR A A ] H Ath B AR AE ET 4%
2 ERE(BERARITE Bl BAK
HEATECERE) TEHELEN - REAR
BRUA E TR TE - RIR2002F B AR HE St &) Ko AR
DR EMBERETSERBERKRTEZ
BREEREEITE  Alkmal THTZES
RDEE - TEBBARETEZ B BEITRG
HBEB0% (K EMBRBT 2BREEDL) o B
20094F6 A30H * R#£20024F 88 Mk st &I 7] it
1T 2 BRID B 20AR31,243,18108 » (5 R B
B HDEBETIRINK4.42% © 1RIF2002 4 B HE
EPEI R AR A ] E Aty BE AR A AT &1 85 T &1 R
S 7 B (BIERITE R ARTTE 2 BAR
R ETEMEETRETEIT 2RO ZZSE
B - REM121E A BT ERBRAR AR B T
AR5 48801 % o IAERE— SR B UL REE 2 (£
BEARAE - 7B D AR A -
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31 Share option scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue at the date
on which such grant is proposed by the directors or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date on which such grant is proposed by the
directors) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at a general
meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30
days from the date of the offer upon payment of a consideration
of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and such period shall
commence not earlier than 6 months from the date of grant of the
options and expire not later than 10 years after the date of grant
of the options. The vesting period of the share options is from
the date of the grant until the commencement of the exercise
period. All share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
are subject to a 6-month vesting period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing from the date on which it is
conditionally adopted by resolution of the Company at a general
meeting and will expire on 22 August 2012.
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31 Share option scheme (continued)

31 BREEE)

Movements of share options outstanding under the 2002 Share FR20024F BEARE ST &I T 2 18 AR 77150 R AR i 70 R
Option Scheme during the period/year are as follows: R EREEIT
2009 2007
2009F 20076
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
IEF Y BRE TS e
168 L= BB A
HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
per share per share
BRET T4 BRAET T
At 1 January ®1A1H 5.73 30,900 1.01 30,630
Granted during the period/year A,/ FRR - - 6.09 28,700
Adjusted during the period/year R,/ FREE 5.87 1,013 = =
Exercised during the period/year R/ ERTE 0.99 (1,902) 1.01 (28,430)
Forfeited during the period/year IR/ ERE 5.52 (3,318) - -
At 30 June 2009/31 December 2007 200946 4308/
2007%12A31H 5.88 26,693 5.73 30,900
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for Him,ER - BATERERER T B B2 hnik
share options exercised during the period/year was HK$3.73 FHRR{E A3.738 T (20074 : 2.6687T) °
(2007: HK$2.56).
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RUtAEE BRITEERE ZITEERITEHRAN
outstanding as at that balance sheet date are as follows: T~
30 June 2009
20096 H30H
Number of options Exercise price ' Exercise period
BREHE TEE 1T
‘000 HKS$ per share
T4 BRET
26,693 5.875 1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016
20086 H1H £20165H31H
26,693
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31 Share option scheme (continued)

31 BREEE)

31 December 2007
200712 A31H

Number of options Exercise price ' Exercise period
RERESA 1TEE 1T HR
‘000 HK$ per share
T FETT
650 1.20 5 March 2004 to 4 March 2009
200493 H5HE2009F3 H4H
1,550 0.94 10 August 2006 to 9 August 2014
20068 H10H £201448 H9H
28,700 6.09 1 June 2008 to 31 May 2016
2008F6 H1HZ=2016F5H31H
30,900

1 The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

No new share options were granted during the period. In prior
year, share options at fair value of HK$16,110,000 (HK$0.56
each) were granted, which were amortised over a vesting period
of 6 months. Accordingly, the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$13,425,000 (12 months ended 31 December
2007: HK$2,685,000) (note 6).

The 1,901,830 share options exercised during the period resulted
in the issue of 1,901,830 ordinary shares of the Company
and new share capital of HK$190,183 and share premium of
HK$1,687,827 (before issue expenses), as further detailed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 26,692,988 share
options outstanding under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 3.78% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the remaining
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 26,692,988 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$2,669,299 and share premium of HK$154,152,006 (before
issue expenses).
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31

32

Share option scheme (continued)

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company had 24,412,422 share options outstanding under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
3.46% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Reserves

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current period and prior year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
111 to 112 of the consolidated financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose in 1996 as a
result of the group reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company and represented the difference between (the
nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company
and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of
the subsidiaries acquired.

31

32

BT S(®)

RZZFGRAMBHREIALER - ARAIIBE
2002 F PR RERT Bl M RITR 2 EIRERE
24,412,4221% - RMEAR R RN Z B2 BITRD
23.46% °

&

(a) *~5£H
AEEFRBEAZ CERENTBAE R EF
B8 2HRGREMBHREREINE
2B 2 FABHEHE -

AREBER1996F REHA AR EMmE
TREESHELEGA RS  TIEARFE
FATRAEE SRR E AT Z AR
Bl mEmE @ RMmER -
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32 Reserves (continued) 32 @@
(b) Company (b) A&AF
Share Share Capital Investment
premium option redemption Contributed revaluation  Retained
account reserve reserve surplus reserve profits Total
RVEEE BRERE RARERE SRR REEMEE  REEA ait
HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
TE#L Thn TE#L TR TEL T T
At 1 January 2007 20071 A1 526,963 2,369 3,705 4,09 (25,599) 11,217 522,749
Final 2006 dividend paid BETR20065RERSE = = = - - (14000 (1,400)
Profitfor the year - note 10 AERRF-Hiz0 - - - - - M M5
Issug of shares - note 31 B -ME31 225216 - - - - - 5216
Share options exercised-note 31 BT ERE-FiE31 27,899 (2,151) = = = = 25,748
New share options granted to RTES ZHERE-HH
employees - note 31 - 2,685 - - - - 2,685
Release on disposal of HEMRNERE &M
available-for-sale investments - - - - 25599 - 25599
Interim 2007 dividend paid - note 11 32007k & 8~ 11 - - - - - (B0008)  (80,008)
Proposed final 2007 dividend - note 11 $E2007ERERE — Kt 11 - - - - - (163562)  (163562)
At 31 December 2007 R2007512A318 780,078 2,903 3,705 4,09 - 8,002 798,782
Profit for the period - note 10 Byl - - - - - 89,526 89,526
Share options exercised -note 31 B3 2 BIRE-Kiz31 1,688 = - = = - 1,688
New share options granted to RYESzHBERE-HH
employees - note 31 - 13,425 - - - - 13,425
2007and 2008 interim dividend - EREURARBEL LM
declared and settled in shares 20075 R2008EH RS
and cash - note 11 el 122,476 - - - - (35206) 87,20
Proposed final 2009 dividend - note 11 $EE2009F R ER 2 iz - - - - - (66,616)  (56,516)
Share options lapsed BANERE 1804 (1,844 - - - - -
Purchase of share - note 31 BERG - M (11,409) = 12397 (1,397) = - [11409)
At 30 June 2009 2009464308 894,677 14,484 5,102 2,697 - 5806 922,766

The contributed surplus of the Company also arose in 1996
as a result of the group reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company and represented the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company and the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition. Under

(1@

L

the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company may make distributions to its members out of the

contributed surplus provided certain conditions are met.
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32 Reserves (continued) 32 @@

(b) Company (continued) (b) ARAT (&)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share EREREEFEESRDE®RITE 2 BER
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further B2 ANTE FREEMBRENT2.18
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment BREABMHINZR S Z SR - &8
transactions in note 2.18 to the consolidated financial PRSI B ARk 2 W - RIS BT RE R
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the F

share premium account when the related options are expired
or forfeited.

33 Operating lease arrangements 33 REHERH
The Group leases certain of its office properties and computer AEBENGEEHERHREE TR TEMEMN
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases for BIRE - STFEYEHEEHH6ME A =65 -
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 6 months to MEKREHRERASF -

6 years, and those for computer equipment for terms of three

years.
At 30 June 2009, the Group and the Company had total future 720096 A30H « ANERE KRR BIRETA
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BUH 2 KB T ER AR MR R E X
falling due as follows: ZERAETR S BTN
Group Company
%6 N
30 June 371 December 30June 31 December
2009 2007 2009 2007
2009 2007 20095 20074
6A30AH 12A318 6H30H 123318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET FHET THT
Within one year 1FER 47,692 44,773 341 690
In the second to fifth years, FE2EERF
inclusive (BEEERME) 22,052 59,518 298 199
69,744 104,291 639 889
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34 Other commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note

34 EiE

Bk £ XXM EE33F Il 2 AR = M E RS - AEE

33 above, the Group had the following commitments at the WEEH ZFAENT -
balance sheet date:
Group
%E
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20095 20074
6H30H 12H31H
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHESRREES -
Computer equipment EH R 1,211 1,221

35 Related party transactions

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties during
the period/year:

()  During the period/year, a subsidiary of the Company
leased from New World Tower Company Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWD"), which is
itself the ultimate holding company of the Company,
certain office premises at New World Tower, 16-18
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, at a monthly rental,
including rates, management and air-conditioning fees,
of approximately HK$2,030,555 (12 months ended
31 December 2007: HK$1,035,833) for a term of 3
years. The Group paid total rentals of HK$36,550,000
for the period (12 months ended 31 December 2007:
HK$12,430,000). The rentals paid were calculated by
reference to open market rentals as confirmed to the
Group by an independent professional valuer.

During the period/year, a subsidiary of the Company
leased from New World First Bus Services Limited,
an indirect jointly-controlled entity of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited (“CTF") (which is itself a company
controlled by the family of Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry)
and NWS Holdings Limited (which is itself is a listed
holding company of the Company), certain office
premises at No. 8 Chong Fu Road, Chai Wan, Hong
Kong. The Group paid total rentals, including rates,
management and air-conditioning fees of approximately
HK$342,000 for the period (12 months ended 31
December 2007: Nil).
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35 Related

(ii)

(iii)

ncial Statements

party transactions (continued)

During the period/year, the Group provided various
corporate advisory services to Mongolia Energy
Corporation Limited (“MEC"), a company of which Mr.
Lo Lin Shing, Simon, a director of the Company, is also
a substantial shareholder and an executive director.
Mr. To Hin Tsun, Gerald, a director of the Company,
is also a non-executive director of MEC. Mr. Tsui Hing
Chuen, William and Mr. Lau Wai Piu, Bill, directors
of the Company, are also independent non-executive
directors of MEC. The income from these transactions
amounted to HK$550,000 for the period (12 months
ended 31 December 2007: HK$1,605,000). During the
period/year, the Group also provided placement service
to MEC. The income from these transactions amounted
to HK$3,960,000 for the period (12 months ended 31
December 2007: Nil) and was recognised in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

During the period/year, the Group provided various
corporate advisory services to International
Entertainment Corporation (“IEC"), a subsidiary of
CTF. Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry, Mr. Lo Lin Shing,
Simon and Mr. To Hin Tsun, Gerald, directors of the
Company, are also executive directors of IEC. Mr.
Tsui Hing Chuen, William and Mr. Lau Wai Piu, Bill,
directors of the Company, are also independent non-
executive directors of IEC. The income from these
transactions amounted to HK$818,000 for the period (12
months ended 31 December 2007: HK$2,630,000) and
was recognised in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements.

During the period/year, the Group provided various
underwriting services to New World Department Store
China Limited (“NWDS"), a subsidiary of NWD. Dr.
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry, a director of the Company, is
also a non-executive director of NWDS. The income
from these transactions amounted to HK$308,000
for the period (12 months ended 31 December 2007:
HK$488,000) and was recognised in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements.

35 BEEALXRZ @)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BN/ FR - AREREGERE
BAR([SHAER]DIRESHEME
BHRRYG  ARAESRER AL
MASHER FZRERNITE
T MARBEEHBRELENA
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HERZBIIENTES - %F
X S BN T EE A 2 WA 550,000
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s Z IGRARIERR
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35 Related party transactions (continued)

(b)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

During the period/year, the Group repaid an unsecured
other loan due to the immediate holding company of
the Company. The interest expense for such other loan
amounted to HK$6,021,000 for the period (12 months
ended 31 December 2007: HK$2,318,000) and was
charged at HIBOR plus 0.8% per annum (12 months
ended 31 December 2007: HIBOR plus 0.8% per
annum).

During the prior year, the Group obtained an unsecured
other loan from Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company
Limited, a company controlled by the family of Dr.
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry. The interest expense for such
other loan amounted to HK$1,526,000 for the prior year
and was charged at HIBOR. The unsecured other loan
was settled during the prior year.

During the period/year, the Group obtained an
unsecured loan of HK$151 million from Chow Tai Fook
Nominee Limited, a company controlled by the family
of Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry. The entire loan was
repaid during the period. Interest expenses amounted
to HK$1,554,000 for the period (12 months ended 31
December 2007: Nil) and was charged at 1.85% per
annum (12 months ended 31 December 2007: Nil).

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

35 BEEALXRZ @)

(c)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

HAR/FR - ASBECEERM
FTARBIZEZZERAAREZ
EIEBEMER - NGB EAM
EH 2B X A6,021,000% T
(H=2007912A3181L12( A :
2,318,000/ 7T ) Jyig BB IRIT R 2
B S INEFFR0.8E (H Z20074F
12A3181E128 A : FBRITEZE
FESIENZF08E)FE -

EF AEBREBARKBHREST
BRARRHEZEEBEMER
AR BB RAEE - 2 REE
fil e KFBBEEMERZFEHAX
1,626,000/ T TR BB RITEE
FEFE - BERAHMERENE
FEIE -

e

WA ER AEBEESEAER
BABRARRHZEEBER
151,000,000/ 7C * % A & T &5
REHE T 2 REZEH - BEER
EREAFEERE -HRNFEHAZA
1,554,000/ 7T (# 22007412 A31
BHiE1218A : &) TR EBsRITRE
7B 5 hNFF|=1.85[F (B £2007F
12A31H1E12{8A : #\)Ft8 -

AEBETZEBEAE ZHH -

For the For the

18 months 12 months

ended ended

30 June 31 December

2009 2007

HZE2009% B ZE20074F

6A30H 12HA31H

1F181@ A 1E121@A

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Short term employee benefits HHIREEEA 46,171 51,698

Post-employment benefits BRIREFIZ 2,368 1,515

Share-based payments LARHE S 5 3RIR 5,239 954
Total compensation paid to MEETEETIRAS

key management personnel 2 4R EE 53,778 54,167
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35 Related party transactions (continued)

36

35 BEEALXRZ @)

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions disclosed in note 35(a)(i), note

35(a)(iii) to 35(a)(v) and note 35(a)(vii) above also constitute

connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Maturity profile of assets and liabilities

36

An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and liabilities

of the Group analysed by the remaining period at the balance

sheet date to the contractual maturity date is as follows:

EFRESZHFMFBHRSEPBIRERME

7 e

XX EESB(a)() + 35(a)ii) 2 35(a)(v) & 35(a)(vii)
Frig e 2 BB A X BB _E AR BB 14A
EMTEBERGRIFERERS o

BEREEZIBRAS

AEEETEENBBERNGEEREAHEIH
BZH TR 2 ZIMBRAENT

5 years or
Repayable 3 months less but
on demand or less over 1year Total
SEHT
RERER 3EAZMUT HRB1F @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TR
30 June 2009 2009568308
Assets BE
Accounts receivable from subscription K& RBHR L2
of new shares in IPO HR1D 2 FEMUR R - 1,646,881 - 1,646,881
Advances to customers BIZE 28T 1,726,668 - - 1,726,668
Cash held on behalf of customers REFEEZERS 3,661,886 - - 3,661,886
Cash and bank balances BE RIBIT8TF 224,044 179,746 - 403,790
5,612,598 1,826,627 - 7,439,225
Liabilities &
Account payables to clients ENEPER(TEHE
excluding payables to brokers, RBEE  RIEK
dealers and clearing house HEFT 2 508) 4,295,664 351,357 = 4,647,021
Loans and other borrowings ENREMEE 131,737 2,052,500 = 2,184,237
4,427,401 2,403,857 - 6,831,258
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36 Maturity profile of assets and liabilities (continued) 36 EERAGBZIHBAAS @)
5 years or
Repayable 3 months less but
on demand or less over 1 year Total
SEHIAT
REXEE  EASEMUT a1 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT FET THET
31 December 2007 2007F12A31H
Assets EE
Advances to customers BIRE 28T 2,816,256 - - 2,816,256
Cash held of behalf of customers REFEEZERSE 3,361,897 - - 3,361,897
Cash and bank balances R RBITAE 251,456 171,438 - 422,894
6,429,609 171,438 - 6,601,047
Liabilities =
Account payables to clients excluding  ENEFER(TEE
payables to brokers, RBELE  RIEK
dealers and clearing house HEF 2 508) 3,932,639 333,270 = 4,265,909
Loans and other borrowings ENREMEE = 1,126,557 245,625 1,372,182
3,932,639 1,459,827 245,625 5,638,091
37 Financial instruments by category 37 RERESZERTA
All the financial assets and financial liabilities (including advances ARG AERBENMKEAERTKARE
to customers, accounts receivable/payable, deposits, cash, (BESFRE S - EWIEZ PEBED -
loans and other borrowings, other assets and payables) in the %% He BEXRAEMES  EHEERE
consolidated balance sheet are carried at amortised cost using the RPERIE) DA SRR A EHEIRE R R AT B2
effective interest method as “loans and receivables” except for REWEIE | - A EHEERE | RIRATEE
the “available-for-sale investments” and “financial investments = A B2 D BHGIEE A A ESHER S o

at fair value through profit or loss” which are both carried at fair
value.
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38 BiIEEMEEZENRBER

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise advances
to customers, accounts receivable, accounts payable, cash and
bank balances and loans and other borrowings. Advances to
customers, accounts receivable and accounts payable mainly
arise from the Group's operations while cash and bank balances
and loans and other borrowings are to maintain liquidity or to raise
financing for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and equity price risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank deposits, advances to
customers, loans and other borrowings as well as other interest-
bearing accounts receivables and payables.

The Group's major interest-bearing asset is the advances to
customers, whose financing and interest rate risk exposure
are matched by the Group’'s loans and other borrowings.
Management actively monitors the Group’s net interest rate
exposure through setting limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing and duration gap and aims at maintaining
an interest rate spread, such that the Group is always in a net
interest-bearing asset position and derives net interest income.

The Group's interest rate risk lies in fluctuations of HIBOR or Hong
Kong Dollar Best Lending Rate, as the Group’s interest-bearing
assets and liabilities are mainly Hong Kong dollar denominated.

All the interest bearing financial assets and liabilities are subject
to an interest re-pricing risk of 3 months or below. There is no
concentration of interest risk exposure.

At 30 June 2009, if market interest rates at that date had been 25
basis points (31 December 2007: 25 basis points) higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the
period would have been HK$817,000 higher/lower (12 months
ended 31 December 2007: HK$2,998,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of higher/lower net interest income earned on floating
rate bank balances, advances to customers, accounts receivables,
accounts payable and loans and other borrowings.

The Company's interest rate risk exposure is considered
insignificant.
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency risk arises principally from its
leveraged foreign exchange business as well as the Group's
transactions denominated in currencies other than HKD.

The Group hedges majority of its client trades in its leveraged
foreign exchange business back-to-back with external
counterparties, such that the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk.

Apart from this foreign exchange exposure, the majority of the
Group's and the Company's assets and liabilities are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars of which the
exchange rates have remained relatively stable during the period/
year.

Credit risk

The advances to customers, accounts and other receivables,
cash and bank balances and other assets represent the Group's
major exposure to the credit risk arising from the default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these financial assets in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The Credit Committee of the Group has appointed a group of
authorised persons who are charged with the responsibility
of approving credit limit of each customer. The Committee is
responsible for approval of share acceptable for margin lending,
setting stock margin ratio for each approved share. The approved
share list is updated bimonthly, and will be revised as and when
deemed necessary by the Committee. The Committee will
prescribe from time to time lending limits on individual share or
on any individual customer and his/her associates.

The Credit Control Department of the Group is responsible for
making margin calls to customers whose trades exceed their
respective limits. Any such excess is required to be made good
within two days for securities and the next day for futures of the
deficiency report. The deficiency report will be monitored daily by
the Group's finance director and responsible officers. Failure to
meet margin calls may result in the liquidation of the customers’
positions.

Taifook Securities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2008/2009
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38 HEEMREE B NWREE@®)

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and
sustain minimal exposure of credit risk to the Group resulting
from both its advances to customers (margin loan) and cash and
bank balances based on the following:

e Advances to customers (margin loan) are backed by
collateral. The Group only accepts collateral in the form of
cash and liquid stocks.

e  (Cash and balances with banks were deposited in reputable
large commercial banks with credit rating of Baa2 or above
issued by Moody'’s.

For accounts and other receivables, approximately HK$45 million
(31 December 2007: HK$136 million) was receivables from
clients arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a
delivery-against-payment settlement term of 2 days. There is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to the receivables, as
the Group has a large number of clients who are internationally
dispersed. Most of the accounts and other receivables from
clients with overdue more than 30 days are fully secured by listed
securities with market value significantly higher than the carrying
amount. The ageing analysis of the advances to customers
and accounts receivable are included in note 20 and note 21
respectively.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing house
are placed with large international financial institutions which
are governed by regulators including Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission ( SFC"). The risk of default in repayment is
considered to be minimal.

Accounts receivable from subscription of new shares in IPO are
normally settled within 1 week after the financial year end of 30
June 2009.

Other assets are mainly deposits placed with the regulators which
are considered to have minimum credit risk.

Other than the above, the Company’'s credit risk exposure
mainly represents the amounts due from subsidiaries. These
intercompany balances are considered to have minimum credit
risk.
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk

A number of the Group's activities are subject to various statutory
liquidity requirements as prescribed by the Securities and Futures
Commission in accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the "HKSFQO"). The Group has put in place
monitoring system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid
capital to fund its business commitments and to comply with the
relevant Financial Resources Rules under the HKSFO.

As part of the measures to safeguard liquidity, the Group has
maintained substantial long term and other stand-by banking
facilities, diversifying the funding sources and spacing out the
maturity dates.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
balance sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

MENE SR

REBEZETEEAR 9§%§$ETF§°’%§§”
R EAE RG] ([ 3 5 R ERE &G 1) BT
EEMRBDESRE - AEEBRY
NRRERFTHRZRBES LM%E%%‘%F)?%
RMES  URETESRAEEDIE R
BERIRA -

ERRERBE SR D
FHRZEREEMBRRITES
HR MIEREIFAR -

CREEESR
UDBES

$‘§ EREERZMBRERBESFTORTR
NHFEZZHABEMT

Group REE
30 June 2009
200946 H30H
Less than 1to5
On demand 3 months Years Total
EEX DH3EA 1255 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Loans and other borrowings EXREMES 131,737 2,052,873 - 2,184,610
Accounts payable FERERR 4,342,712 351,357 - 4,694,069
Financial liabilities included FTAE fh BT HIE R B AT
in other payables and accruals FEHBEE 52,933 - - 52,933
4,527,382 2,404,230 - 6,931,612
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38 HEEKREEHHNREK®)

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESR(HE)
31 December 2007
2007F12A31H
Less than 1t0b
On demand 3 months Years Total
[EEK DR3EA 1255 CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET TET
Loans and other borrowings ERREMEE - 1,126,557 245,625 1,372,182
Accounts payable FETRRIR 4,305,333 = = 4,305,333
Financial liabilities included AR R FA R ER
in other payables and accruals REZBBEE - 18,971 - 18,971
4,305,333 1,145,528 245,625 5,696,486
Company b /N
30 June 2009
20096 A30H
Less than 1to5
On demand 3 months Years Total
EEX D3R 1255 @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEr TERr
Loans and other borrowings ERREMER - 47,543 = 47,543
Financial liabilities included FTAE fh BT RIE R B AT
in other payables and accruals FEZEBMBAE 12,246 - - 12,246
Amounts due to subsidiaries e B A RIFIB 804,009 - - 804,009
816,255 47,543 - 863,798

AFRLHEMEMRAT » 37 2008/2009 219



220

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R B
As at 30 June 2009
R2009F6730H

38 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

B ERERE 2B WREBUR (&)

RBES R E)

31 December 2007

2007F12A31H
Less than 1t0b
On demand 3 months Years Total
[EEK DR3EA 1255 CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET TET
Loans and other borrowings ERREMER = = 245,625 245,625
Financial liabilities included FTAE fh BT RIE R B AT

in other payables and accruals FEZEBMBAE 32,122 - - 32,122
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHBARFIE 466,245 - - 466,245
498,367 - 245,625 743,992

Equity price risk RAEHFEE R

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices
and the values of individual securities. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk arising from individual equity investment
classified as financial investment at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale investments as at 30 June 2009 and 31
December 2007. The Group's equity investments are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date.

The table below summarises the impact of increases in the Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index on the equity’s profit before taxation for
the period/year and on the investment revaluation reserve. The
analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had
changed by 10% with all other variables held constant and all the
equity instruments move according to the historical correlation
with the index.
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies

B ERERE 2B WREBUR (&)

(continued)
Equity price risk (continued) RAE S ERERE)
Hong Kong Hang Seng Index BERELEH
Impact on the
investment
Impact revaluation
on profit reserve
before taxation in equity
HRBARNZYE HREEMREZYE
HK$"000 HK$°000
TR TR
Increase by 10% E9010% 1,765 2,720
Decrease by 10% HA10% (2,323) (2,162)
Fair value of financial instruments EHTAZNFE

Apart from the financial investments at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale investments, which are carried at
fair value, the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and
liabilities approximated their fair value.

Capital management

The capital represents the Group’s equity. The primary objective
of the Group's capital management is to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the period/year.
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38

(continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for certain subsidiaries engaged in securities
and futures dealings and broking, corporate finance and advisory,
nominee and custodian services, leveraged foreign exchange
trading, and fund management, which are regulated entities
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC")
and subject to the respective minimum liquid capital requirements
from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million as at 30 June 2009 and 31
December 2007.

During the period/year, the subsidiaries of the Group, which
are regulated by SFC, complied with all the minimum capital
requirement.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings divided by the total shareholders’ equity. Total
borrowings include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
Total shareholders’ equity comprises all components of equity
attributable to the equity holders. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios
as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

BEXEE (%)
REEBRERINBER 2 EMEARERS) -
HETREEFMYEERELL - DERE
HAEAR - IR ABRE R $ﬁﬁﬁ9l\ﬂi§§
RESERZMBRBRN EZ%W%“
EEBRBFLBEEHERE (Fa’iEﬁ@J)
REZER  BHERESRAE Zﬁﬂf&ﬁmh@ﬁ
% 7200946 A30H &2007412A318 + H
53 7l %%100,0007% 7L % 15,000,000 7T ©

REIN R EEt
ﬂEﬁé?ﬁéﬁﬂS% S

REZAKENBR

REBRAERBBLREREARER - M
BERBELERTIAREERARRER %@ﬁﬁ.ﬁ
HoBEERETRRITERREMER
ﬁ%ﬁmﬁ@ﬁ%EHﬁAﬁﬁ%EZ%ﬁ%

o REEZ MR REFHEIPRFZEAERE
&T WEER 2 ERBELRET

Group REE
30 June 31 December
2009 2007
20094 20074
6A30H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Total borrowings EEE 2,184,237 1,372,182
Total shareholders’ equity A% R i RS 4a K 1,925,464 1,856,490
Gearing ratio EXREELE 113% 74%
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Capital management (continued)

The increase in gearing ratio as at 30 June 2009 is resulted from
the provision of financing on certain IPO issues by the Group to its
clients at the end of June amounted to HK$1,645 million. These
IPO loans were borrowed back-to-back from banks and were
repaid in early July following the allotment of the corresponding
new issues. Taking out these short-lived IPO loans, the Group’s
gearing ratio would have been 28%.

Immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding company
are NWS Holdings Limited and New World Development
Company Limited, which are incorporated in Bermuda and Hong
Kong respectively.

Comparatives

The classifications of certain items in the consolidated balance
sheet and income statements last year have been reclassified to
conform with the current period presentation. The impact of the
reclassification is not significant to the total assets, net current
assets, shareholders’ equity and consolidated income statements.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 7 October 2009.
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Ten Years Financial Summary

RRCSEUR S TR

1/1/2008- 1/4/2003-
30/6/2000 311202007 3171202006 311202005 311202004  31/1202003 3132003 3132002 3132001 3132000  31/31999
20085 20035
1A102 4F18E
20095 20075 20065 2005F 2045 2003F 2003F 20025 20015 2000 1999F
68308 2R3 1ANE NANE RANE 12A31E 3A318 38318 38318 38318 38318
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS$000
T Fin Fin Fin Fin Fin Tin Tin Tin Tin Fin
RESULTS E+
Revenue WA 1084604 1465213 726913 390,781 356,776 245,258 3,779 270,669 403,849 560,323 343,50
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) e/ (FE) 202,058 582,362 197,689 68,663 77919 45,881 {40002 (121,614) 99243 245,576 46,251
Share of profitsflosses) of ElBERARRRA
an associate and EHEE 2 ER/ (Bl
jointly-controlled entities 6324 198 %2 33 1,456 ) (372) 48) 365 541 776
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX REAER/ (858) 208,382 582,560 197,941 68998 79375 45,877 (40d64)  (121662) 99,608 26,117 47,007
Tax (charge) credit FE(ER)/HA (20,04) (92,329) (22971) (6,040) (9,09) 4.297) 1,033 15,860 2601 30,768) 7591)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE B/ FRERN/ (58)
PERIOD/YEAR 188,328 490,231 174970 62,958 70,280 41580 (39431) (1058020 102,209 215,349 39,436
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: UTALEEER :
Equity holders of the parent FATREEEA 188,974 484,847 172325 62,958 70,280 41,580 (39431) (1058020 103048 216,554 39738
Minority Interests DYRFER (646) 5384 2,645 - - - - - 839) (1,208) (302)
188,328 490,231 174970 62,958 70,280 41,580 (39431) (105802 102209 215,349 39436
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE 8ER
MINORITY INTERESTS: HURRER !
TOTAL ASSETS HEE 8904160 7771610 4405092 3152524 2793151 2883828 2146237 2032843 2185873 2506861 1909245
TOTAL LIABILITIES T (6973302) (9064600 (32214000  (2148493) (18061941  (2061376)  (1380096)  (1202849)  (1225574)  (1809964)  (1415030)
MINORITY INTERESTS SYRFER (5,394) (8,660) (4476) - - - - - - (2,090 (1,099)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS KxEe 1925468 1856490 1179216 1,004,031 986,957 822,452 766,141 829,994 960,299 694,607 493,116
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